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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM") OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sino-Life
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
include particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and (ii) there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Review

| am pleased to present the results of Sino-Life Group Limited
(“Sino-Life” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 (“Year
2013") on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”).

Over the past year, taking advantage of our solid business
platform, we continued to extend our coverage actively, and
enhance our corporate image and brand visibility. We remain
committed to taking us to a higher level of professional and high-
quality services. Our efforts in a wide array of horizons were
paying off with promising results.

During the year, the Group spent efforts on expanding the funeral
business in ex-Greater China region. The Group entered into a
share transfer agreement dated 6 December 2012 in respect
of the acquisition of a 80% equity interest in a Vietnam-based
company owning the land use rights of a piece of land plot in
Vietnam designated as cemetery purposes. On 27 February 2013,
the Group held a groundbreaking ceremony for the cemetery
development project in Vietnam. Sales of the cemetery plots
commenced in May 2013.

In order to expand our service presence in China, the Group
entered into an agreement dated 12 January 2013 with an
independent third party in relation to the service cooperation
in the project relating to the funeral parlor in Pinggu District,
Beijing (“Cooperation Agreement”), whereby, the Group will be
responsible for the market research and development as well
as the provision of technical personnel and equipment required
for the operations. The Group will be entitled to 70% of pre-
tax turnover generated from the Cooperation Agreement. The
Cooperation Agreement will span over a term of three years.
Upon the conclusion of the Cooperation Agreement, the Group
has the right to automatically extend the term of the Cooperation
Agreement for further five years.
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At the same time, The Group entered into a management and
construction technical support contract (the “Support Contract”)
dated 4 January 2013, and the Group will be mainly responsible
for supporting the overall planning and design of a cemetery
park located in Beijing as well as the technical and financial
support for the construction of cemetery and tombstone under
the Support Contract. The Group will entitle to share 63% of the
profit therein. In order to implement the Support Contract, Beijing
Xizhou Hangyu Property Management Company Limited (“Xizhou
Hangyu”) (Jb R85 B FYI £ EE AR A 7)) was established on
2 April 2013, in which the Group held 70% of the equity interest.
However, after the re-assessment by the Group’s management,
as the sale of the cemetery park was below the intended target,
and there were different views on the pace of development of the
cemetery plan among the Group, other shareholders of Xizhou
Hangyu and other stakeholders of the cemetery park, the Group’s
management believed that the yielding period of its investment in
the cemetery park may be significantly lengthened. To ensure that
the cash throughout the Group can be applied towards projects
of higher return potential, the Group decided to dispose of its
equity interest therein to an independent third party in exchange
for funds to be applied towards other projects. The aggregate
consideration for the transfer of 70% of the equity interest
in Xizhou Hangyu and related assets was RMB3,050,000. The
transfer was completed in December 2013.

The past year was a challenging year for the Group. For
the twelve months ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s
turnover amounted to approximately RMB63,100,000 (2012:
approximately RMB61,800,000). In particular, approximately
92.2%, approximately 5.4% and approximately 2.4% of the
turnover was derived from the PRC market, the Taiwan market,
and the Hong Kong market respectively. Although there is a
growth in the Group's turnover, due to the increase in one-off
costs and marketing expenses along with our business expansion,
some of our newly added operation bases have not yet brought
profit contribution to us albeit they are generating revenue
for us. With these factors, coupled with the rise in costs, loss
attributable to shareholders for the Year 2013 was approximately
RMB 16,800,000 (2012: approximately R\MB29,500,000).
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Prospects

The crucial focus of our development will rest in large part on the
PRC, Hong Kong and Vietnam, which is exceptionally going to be
a stronghold for reaping huge revenue to the Group in the coming
year. We expect that the cemetery park project in Vietnam will
provide more than 4,000 burial tomb spaces and 1,000 niches,
which are anticipated to generate a revenue of approximately
RMB217,800,000 for the Group upon the completion of sales of
all these spaces in full. The Group’'s management will continue
to effectively raise our business goal in different areas to a new
high by adhering to its unique, professional business model. Our
management will keep close eyes on other regions blessed with
immense potential and myriad opportunities as well, so as to
extend our business reach.

In connection with the newly added operations bases in early
2013, we expect that these bases are starting to reward us
with profit contribution in 2014 upon their investment period.
What is more, we will also strengthen cost control. Building
on the Group's strategically well-established layout of business
development, and backed by an abundant pool of funds, our
management is confident to bring long-term returns and create
substantial value for shareholders.

I would like to express heartfelt thanks to banks and investors for
their support and trust on behalf of the Board of Directors. | would
also like to take this opportunity to thank our management and
staff for their efforts over the past year and their contribution to
the Group's success in business operations.

Chairman
Liu Tien-Tsai

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Business Review

The PRC

Funeral business in the PRC continues to be the driving force of
the Group's operations. The Group's turnover derived from funeral
business in the PRC market for the year ended 31 December
2013 was approximately RMB58.2 million, representing an slightly
increase of about 3.0% to the corresponding period last year and
accounted for about 92.2% of the Group's turnover.

Hong Kong

The Group's funeral business in the Hong Kong market generated
an approximate turnover of RMB1.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 representing a decrease of about 16.7% to the
corresponding period last year and accounted for approximately
2.4% of the Group's turnover.

Taiwan

The Group's turnover derived from funeral business in the Taiwan
market for the year ended 31 December 2013 was approximately
RMB3.4 million, representing a slightly decrease of approximately
2.9% to the corresponding period last year and accounted for
approximately 5.4% of the Group’s turnover. In light of this
decreasing scope of business in Taiwan, the Group will consider
directing resources to other markets with higher revenue growth
potentials.

Prospects

On 27 February 2013, the Group held a groundbreaking ceremony
for the cemetery development project in Vietnam. Also, the sale
of the graves of the cemetery started in May 2013. The Group
acquired the land use right of the land in Vietnam through
entering into a share transfer contract on 6 December 2012
to prepare for the acquisition of the 80% equity interest of a
Vietnamese company. The total number for saleable graves and
columbarium of the cemetery is expected over 4,000 and 1,000
respectively.

The PRC and Hong Kong will continue to be the Group's key
development regions, and Vietnam will also become another
region with huge development potential for the Group in the
coming year. The management of the Group will continue to
apply its professional and distinctive business model effectively in
different regions, and simultaneously envisage other regions with
huge potential and opportunities, thereby expanding our business
coverage.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Financial review

Turnover

The turnover arising from principal activities for the year ended
31 December 2013 was approximately RMB63.1 million (2012:
approximately RMB61.8 million), representing a increase of
approximately 2.1% as compared to 2012. Regarding to the
funeral services business provided in the PRC during the year, the
turnover was approximately RMB58.2 million (2012: approximately
RMB56.5 million), representing an increase of approximately
3.0% which accounted for 92.2% of the Group's turnover
(2012: 91.4%). The turnover generated by the funeral services
business provided in Taiwan was approximately RMB3.4 million
(2012: approximately RMB3.5 million), or 5.4% of the Group's
turnover, representing a decrease of approximately 2.9% due
to strengthened competition in Taiwan. The turnover generated
by the funeral services business provided in Hong Kong was
approximately RMB1.5 million (2012: approximately RMB1.8
million), or 2.4% of the Group’s turnover, representing an
decrease of approximately 16.7%.

The turnover from the funeral service provided in funeral parlour
and funeral service centres under the Group’s management
slightly decreased by 0.5%, amounting to approximately RMB42.5
million (2012: approximately RMB42.7 million). The drop was
mainly due to the decrease in the number of funeral services
provided to 2,324 for 2013 which resulted from cessation of
management of the operation of Au Fu Tang in May 2012.
However, the average spending per service provided increase to
approximately RMB 18,284 for 2013.

The turnover from the cremation services increased by
7.1%, amounting to approximately RMB12.1 million (2012:
approximately RMB11.3 million). The increase was due to the
increase in the number of cremation services provided to 9,313
for 2013. The average spending per service provided was
approximately RMB1,299 for 2013. Under the funeral parlour
management agreement and funeral service centre management
agreements, the Group is entitled to all income and responsible for
all liabilities and all expenses incurred in the funeral parlour and
funeral service centres under the Group’s management.
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The revenue generated from funeral arrangement services
provided in Taiwan and Hong Kong was approximately RMB3.4
million and RMB1.5 million respectively (2012: approximately
RMB3.5 million and RMB1.8 million), representing a decline
of 2.9% and 16.7% respectively over last year. The decline in
Taiwan business was due to the intense competition in the Taiwan
funeral service industry and the Directors believe that the market
in Taiwan is saturated and room for growth is limited. Thus, the
number of cases for the funeral arrangement services provided in
Taiwan dropped in 2013 and resulted in the decrease in the total
turnover here.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit slightly increase by 1.7% to approximately RMB47.1
million (2012: approximately RMB46.3 million), and gross profit
margin maintained on same level of approximately 74.6% (2012:
approximately 74.9%). The gross profit margin of funeral services
provided in funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the
Group’s management maintained the same level of approximately
77.6% (2012: approximately 77.6%) which was mainly due
to the net effect of the increase in the average spending per
funeral service provided and increase in the cost for providing the
services. The gross profit margin of cremation services increased
to approximately 85.4% (2012: approximately 83.4%) which was
mainly due to the increase in the number of cremation services
provided which reduces the cost sharing of each cremation
service and that of funeral arrangement services decreased to
approximately 13.5% (2012: approximately 33.8%) due to the
increase in cost for providing the services.

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of costs directly
attributable to the provision of its services, which mainly include (i)
direct labour for the funeral services provided by individuals during
the funeral ceremony held in a funeral parlour or a funeral service
centre managed by the Group; (ii) subcontracting charges for
services provided by the subcontractors in Taiwan; (iii) commission
expenses from the recognition of commission paid to sales agents
for funeral services deeds at the point when the services of the
funeral services deeds are provided; and (iv) materials used for
funeral ceremonies and cremation services such as fresh flowers,
fuel for the cremation furnace and cost of the goods sold in the
funeral parlour and funeral service centres under the Group's
management in the PRC.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling expenses decreased by approximately 2.8% to
approximately RMB24.4 million (2012: approximately RMB25.1
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to net effect of
the Group’s decreased rental and management costs due to the
cessation of the management of the operation of An Fu Tang.
The proportion of selling expenses to turnover was approximately
38.7% (2012: approximately 40.6%). Administrative expenses
drop by approximately 15.9% to approximately RMB37.1 million
(2012: approximately RMB44.1 million) as a result of enhancing
the efforts in cost control of staff cost, entertainment expenses
and rental expenses. The proportion of administrative expenses to
turnover was approximately 58.9% (2012: approximately 71.4%).
Finance costs remained nearly the same of approximately RMBO.3
million (2012: approximately RMBO0.2 million) because of raising
short-term loan during 2013. Income tax expense decreased by
approximately 33.3% to approximately RMBO0.8 million (2012:
approximately RMB1.2 million).

Loss for the Year

In 2013, loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
year was approximately RMB16.8 million (2012: approximately
RMB29.5 million). The decrease in loss for the year ended 31
December 2012 was mainly due to the net effect of (i) increase in
the gross profit; (i) decrease in other revenue and other net gain
as there was an increase in loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (iii) decrease in other operating expenses.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31
December 2013, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately RMB122.8 million (2012: approximately RMB177.6
million) and bank and other loans of approximately RMB9.0
million (2012: approximately RMB20.5 million). All bank and other
loans were denominated in New Taiwan Dollars, at prevailing
market interest. During the year, the Group did not use any
financial instruments for hedging purposes. The gearing ratio
representing the ratio of total borrowing to the total assets of the
Group was 3.0% as at 31 December 2013 (2012: 5.9%,).
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Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

During the year, the Group’s major operations were geographically
based in the PRC, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam. The
aggregate revenue derived from Taiwan, Hong Kong and Vietnam
accounted for approximately 7.8% (2012: approximately 8.5%)
of the total revenue. Its financial statements are presented in
Renminbi, while a significant portion of the revenue and expenses
are denominated in the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar,
Hong Kong Dollar and Vietnamese dong. It is possible that the
value of Renminbi may fluctuate in value against that of the
United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and
Vietnamese dong. The Group’s operating results and financial
condition may be affected by changes in the exchange rates of
Renminbi against the United States Dollar, New Taiwan Dollar,
Hong Kong Dollar and Vietnamese dong, in which the Group’s
revenue and expenses are denominated. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group did not have any bank liabilities, foreign exchange
contracts, interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives
for hedging purpose. Therefore, the Group is not exposed to any
material interest and exchange risks.

Significant Acquisitions and Disposal of
Investments

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not have
any significant acquisition or disposal of investment.

The Number and Remuneration of
Employees

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed approximately 328
employees (2012: 339 employees). The Group determines staff
remuneration in accordance with prevailing market salary scales,
individual qualifications and performance. Remuneration packages
including performance bonuses and entitlements to share options
are reviewed on regular basis.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Charge on Group Assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and bank
deposits pledged as security for the Group's bank borrowings
and other loans were approximately RMB20.5 million and RMBNil
million respectively (2012: RMB21.3 million and RMB17.9 million
respectively).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2012: Nil).

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2013, capital expenditure
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB14.8 million (2012: approximately RMB14.2
million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements
amounting to approximately RMB8.2 million (2012: approximately
RMB15.1 million).
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Comparison of Business Objectives With
Actual Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in
the Prospectus with the Group's actual business progress for
the period from 9 September 2009 (the “Listing Date”) to 31
December 2013 is set out below:

REEOREARARRERRELR

BRERMMLXFEFREAREE -_ZTAH
FARANBLETEHREE T —=F
TZA=+T—HISREREEERLBN
DIER T X

Business objectives for the period
from the Listing Date to

31 December 2013 as stated

in the Prospectus
BEEEFEALHHME
—E—=F+_A=+—HI1 M8
EBER

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2013

BE_2-=F+-A=+—HA
HEREERR

Expand funeral services network in other
major cities by entering into funeral-
services agreement

FREI L BERE W ® BARMER
YT RO 7B R AR TS A 4R
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The Group has implemented two memoranda of understanding
(the “MOU") disclosed in the “Future Plan and Prospects”
section of the Prospectus.

AEEETHRER [RRFAERATR] — S EENE AR
DR = ([FRRE=ER]) -

The Group is in the process of negotiating the terms with the
owners of remaining funeral parlours and new funeral service
centres.

AREEFERESRBERIABEREG T OES NERGK-

The Group has also signed two other new subcontracting
agreements during 2010.

AREER-_Z—ZFANCREMODAING D BIBE -
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Business objectives for the period
from the Listing Date to

31 December 2013 as stated

in the Prospectus
BEEEMEALHEME
—E—=F+_A=+—HIHEH
XBAR

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2013

BE_2—=F+-RA=+—HA
EREBRR

Develop business in columbarium in
Taiwan

BRAETNEER

Purchase of funeral service equipment
and facilities

BEAERGRE &G

Refurbishment of new and existing
service centres

KIEHEIERIRENRBF O

Expansion of marketing network

mRMSEE

As disclosed in the announcement by the Company on 5 January
2011, the register for the owner of the columbarium was
changed. At present, the new owner is still negotiating with Bau
Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (& 1L 4 & BRI 17
A &]) (“Bau Shan”), the direct subsidiary of the Company, as
to the continuance of the agency agreement to sell cubicles and
space for urn storage in the columbarium (the “Products”) in
Miaoli County in Taiwan or the sale of the columbarium (and the
Products) to Bau Shan.

WA RFTR =T ——F—ARBRBEZAGAESR  Bk&E
LHEBAREEEL BRI FHEBALRARREEMER
AIBLEGRERNHAERAR (B EN EEERTEE
REHBUEERBEERENENEULRERL ([ZEE
mlEEERE (RZEER) TEIL-

The Group is conducting the feasibility study on advanced
equipment and facilities designated for funeral.

AREBEEETTRBEEN R TERRERREH AT

The Group has started the decoration and improvement of
funeral parlours and services centres under its managements.

AEBERBE B FIGRERAEBEERREF O -

The Group has started the establishment of the website and
organised and sponsored a forum and research on the funeral
industry.

AEECEFRIMUMNMEBNE) —EABRBEEZWER
s
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The business objectives and planned use of proceeds as stated
in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation of future
market conditions made by the Group at the time of preparing
the Prospectus while the proceeds were applied in accordance
with the actual development of the market. During the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013, the net proceeds
from issuance of new shares of the Company had been applied as

follows:

BRERMMLERB RN
Ty AR S B AR SR AX

sHEIB A HR
2B R SR

tEREMFT AER - MAASFRDREBEERT

BERRPB-NLEHAME—

T=F+=

A=1— B8 KRR FTHBRD A

RIEFHCH AW

Planned use of
proceeds

as stated in
the Prospectus

Actual use of
proceeds from

from the Listing the date of
Date to listing to
31 December 31 December
2013 2013
BREEMRL
LHAHE LIHAHE
—=_=g —E—_=%
+=-—A=+—H +=-A=+—H
LMt 8 BA LHEEERBA
RS RRIE KRR IR
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T AREFT
Expand funeral services network BBV BRERS B
in other major cities by entering into BWAHAE ZWTH
funeral-services agreement EIR IS4 12,960 12,960
Develop business in columbarium BREEBREED
in Taiwan 11,560 -
Purchase of funeral service BERERGRERZE
equipment and facilities 28,600 8,897
Refurbishment of new and RIEHMEBERRAN
existing service centres ARG A0 21,266 21,266
Expansion of marketing network HIE 5 44 1,450 1,450

The Group had to renegotiate several terms and conditions with
the owners of the funeral parlours and new funeral service centres
under the MOUs and the owner of columbarium in Taiwan.
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Due to the above reasons and certain expansion activities were
postponed, the net proceeds applied during the period from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2013 are less than expected. The
Directors expect that most of the business objectives stated in the
Prospectus for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2013 will be revisited in the first half of 2014.

All the remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2013 have been
placed as interest bearing deposits in banks.

MR EAERRETHREHCEE XL
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company had complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as contained in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, except for Code Provision A.2.1.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The positions of Chairman of
the Board and Chief Executive Officer (“CEOQ") of the Company
are both currently carried on by Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai. The Board
considers that the Group's size is still relatively small and thus not
justified in separating the role of Chairman and CEO. The Group
has in place internal control system to perform the check and
balance function. The Board believes that having the same person
performing the roles of both Chairman and CEO does provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership and that, operating
in this manner allows for more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2013.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Board of Directors

A)

B)

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprises three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai

Mr. Kim Eun Back

Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu

Mr. Chai Chung Wai

Mr. Lee Koon Hung

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. Pursuant to the Code
Provision, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
"Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. While
all Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the needs of the Company's business. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The biographical details
of the Directors and the relationship among the members
of the Board are set out in the “Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 30 to 35 of this annual report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for formulating the strategic
business development, reviewing and monitoring the
business performance of the Group, as well as preparing and
approving financial statements. The Directors, collectively
and individually, are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders, for the manner in which the affairs of the
Group are managed and operated. As and when necessary,
the Directors can access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), and in the appropriate circumstances, seeking
of independent professional advice at the Group’s expense
to ensure that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
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The Board gives clear directions as to the powers delegated
to the management for the management and administration
functions of the Group, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments on behalf of the
Group. The Board fully supports the senior management to
discharge its duties and responsibilities in all circumstances.
The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of
the Group.

The Board normally should schedule four meetings a year
at quarterly intervals and meets as and when required
to discuss the overall business, development strategy,
operations and financial reporting of the Company. For the
year ended 31 December 2013, the Board held six meetings.
The Directors can attend meetings in person or through
other means of electronic communication in accordance
with the Company's articles of association. The Directors
will receive agenda and details of items for decision in
advance of each board meeting. The following table shows
the attendance of individual Directors at the meetings held
during the year:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) BN SEE (£ /E)
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh TR EE

Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBLAE

Independent non-executive Directors Y8V FHTESE

Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

BEERREE
B—rE
FRAEE
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There was one general meeting held on 15 May 2013 which
was the annual general meeting of the Company. The
following table shows the attendance of individual Directors
at the general meeting held:

RoT-=£HRATRABTRE
AR RARDAREZRTBEX
& FREI B EE L BT 2R
HARZER:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (Chairman) RIRNET e & (F/) 171
Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh THRE XA 0/1
Mr. Kim Eun Back ®EHEE 01
Independent non-executive Directors ¥ FHTESE

Mr. Chai Chung Wai B REL A 1”1
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—RiE 0/1
Mr. Lee Koon Hung 25 A e A 0/1

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai is appointed as the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company who is responsible for managing the
Board and the Group's business. The Board considers that Mr. Liu
has in-depth knowledge in the Group’s business and can make
appropriate decisions promptly and efficiently. Nevertheless, the
Board will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure to assess whether the separation
of the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company is necessary.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year, the Board complies at all times with the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least 3 independent non-executive directors presenting
at least one-third of the Board with at least one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and the Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Training

According to the Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

During the year and up to the date of this report, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development by attending
training course or reading relevant materials on the topics related

to corporate governance and regulations.

The Board has also established the following committees with
defined terms of reference:

o Audit Committee

° Remuneration Committee

o Nomination Committee

Each Board committee makes decisions on matters within its
terms of reference and applicable limits of authority. The terms

of reference as well as the structure and membership of each
committee will be reviewed from time to time.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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A) Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) in August 2009 which consists of three
independent non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the Audit
Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2013, five meetings were
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (Chairman)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

BRERE
FEALE

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports before submission
to the Board. The Audit Committee focused not only on the
impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the
GEM Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review
of the Company’s quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, the followings:

i. making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditor;

i. reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

ii.  monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, annual report and accounts, half-yearly
report and, quarterly reports;

iv.  liaising with the Board and the senior management
and to meet with the auditors;
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V. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems; and

vi.  reviewing the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

v REARRALZ SRS - R
REBREERL: &

vi.  RETAREEZ T REEBERN
K BB -

B) Remuneration Committee B) #EER®
The Company has established a remuneration committee AARERZZEZNFNAKLEHNE
(the “Remuneration Committee”) in August 2009 which g ([FEEe]) HA=283F
consists of three independent non-executive Directors. HMAITEBHERK
Composition and Meeting Record of the FNEEENERSRETHE
Remuneration Committee
For the year ended 31 December 2013, one meeting was BHE-_ZT—=F+-HA=T—HLL#HF
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual B -E8ET-RgH  TREAIERE
Directors at the meetings held during the year: EFNLFEERIBN:
Mr. Chai Chung Wai (Chairman) BRELE (FE) 17

B—EE
FEHEE

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu
Mr. Lee Koon Hung

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the remuneration package of the Board members and the
senior management of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, the followings:

making recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management;

i. determining the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management;

ii. reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;
and
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iv.  reviewing and approving the compensation payable
to executive directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) in August 2009 which consists of
three independent non-executive Directors.

Composition and Meeting Record of the
Nomination Committee

For the year ended 31 December 2013, two meeting was
held. The following table shows the attendance of individual
Directors at the meetings held during the year:

Q)

Mr. Lee Koon Hung (Chairman) ML (FE)
Mr. Chai Chung Wai B ESEE

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—RiE
During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed
the appointment of the Board members of the Company.

Role and Function
The major responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include, among others, the followings:

i. reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board on a regular basis and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed changes;

i.  identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

iii. assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;
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e
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iv.  making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;

V. making recommendations to the Board on the policy
concerning the diversity of Board members; and

vi. giving full consideration to the Board’s policy
concerning diversity of Board members adopted from
time to time.

Appointment, Re-Election and Removal

Under Code Provision A.4.1, all the non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. At present,
each of Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu, Mr. Chai Chung Wai and Mr.
Lee Koon Hung, the independent non-executive Directors have
been appointed for a specific term of three years.

According to the Company’s articles of association, one-third of
the Directors are required to retire from office at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once in every three years. The
Directors to retire every year shall be those appointed by the Board
during the year and those who have been longest in office since
their last re-election.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, Crowe Horwarth (HK) CPA Limited in respect of audit
services amounted to approximately RMB1,094,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration paid to the previous
auditors, CCIF CPA Limited, which tendered its resignation on
27 December 2013 as auditors of the Company, in respect of
audit services and non-audit service assignment amounted to
approximately RMBNil (2012: approximately RMB1,120,000) and
approximately RMB166,000 (2012: approximately RMB171,000)
respectively.
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Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flows for the period. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year, the Directors
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and on a going concern basis. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Having made appropriate
enquiries, the Board is not aware any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cost significant doubt
over the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. It is the
auditor’s responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements and
to report their opinion solely to the Shareholders, as a body, and
for no other purpose. They do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the
auditor’s report.

Internal Control

During the year, the Board complied with the Code Provision
on internal control. The Board is responsible for the Group's
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors. During the
year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Company and its principal
subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

The Board also considered that there is adequate resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in the Group to monitor
the Group's accounting and financial reporting functions. The
Company will ensure such matters are under review by the Board
periodically and training programmes will be provided to the staff
whenever necessary to ensure their knowledge and experience are
adequate to discharge their duties.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting was appointed as Company Secretary. According
to Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Mok have taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to article 12.3 of the articles of association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the
"EGM(s)") shall also be convened on the requisition of two
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within three months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s), as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and
the Shareholders, the Company has adopted a Shareholders’
communication policy (the "Policy”). Under the Policy,
the Company’s information shall be communicated to the
Shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, the Company’s financial reports (quarterly
report, half-yearly reports and annual reports), and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company'’s website and the Stock Exchange website.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of
business in Hong Kong or the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office.
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Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting
The number of Shareholders necessary for a requisition for putting
forward a proposal at a Shareholders’ meeting shall be any
number of Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings at the date of the requisition.

Shareholders or investors can enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:—

Hotline no.: 2153 3231

Shops 1-4, G/F Lok Ka House,

240-242 Chatham Road North,
1A-1C Baker Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong

By post:

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers' liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.

Investor Relations and Communication with
Shareholders

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and its shareholders, and investors. These include
the publication of annual, half-yearly and quarterly reports,
notices, announcements and circulars, the Company’s website at
www.sinolifegroup.com and meetings with investors and analysts.
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai (ZI#R) , aged 56, is the chairman of
the Group. He was appointed as an executive Director on 24
February 2005. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall corporate
strategies, planning, overall operational management and business
development of the Group. Mr. Liu founded Bau Shan and became
its controlling shareholder in 1998, and has since then been
continuously expanding its management team. Mr. Liu is also the
team head of the funeral services deed team. Since the Group's
establishment, Mr. Liu has played an active role in training its
team.

Mr. Liu obtained certificates in Non-Profit Making Organisation
Management and Mortuary Science and Funeral Service
Management from Nanhua University ( % A2 ) in 2000
and 2001 respectively. Having over 10 years of managerial,
corporate and business experience, Mr. Liu began his career in
funeral business since 1998. Mr. Liu has been a member of Japan
Environmental Zhai Yuan Association ( B ANIBIE 4612 ) , the
National Funeral Director Association of the United States and the
FIAT-IFTA of Holland, and a council member of Society of Chinese
Funeral Education (R BIEZZE 2 € ) and Chinese Society
of Life and Death Studies ( FZEAFLZ & ) . Mr. Liu had also been
a lecturer holding seminars on the skills of being a ceremonial
master and cosmetology at the Continuing Education Centre, Ling
Tung College (SBRFZMBREEEHEEHEH ) in Taiwan.
Mr. Liu is currently an honorary member of the China Funeral
Association (R B ZEH# € ) in the PRC. Mr. Liu has not served
in any other public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3
years.
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Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh (T B 8fi), aged 50, is an executive
Director of the Company appointed on 30 September 2012.
Mr. Ting joined the Group in February 2012 as the Business
Controller and has been appointed as Chief Operating Officer
of the Group since June 2012 and is responsible for overall
corporate operational management and business development
of the Group. Mr. Ting graduated from the Department of
Business Administration of the National Chengchi University in
June 1990 with a bachelor degree in business administration in
Taiwan. Mr. Ting has extensive professional experience in business
management, products planning and marketing and services
innovation of funeral services industry in Taiwan and has held
senior position in well-known funeral enterprises which are listed
in Taiwan. Mr. Ting has over 20 years of management experiences
in the funeral services industry and possessed the requisite
management capability to manage the funeral services business
of the Group. Mr. Ting was a deputy general manager of Lungyen
Life Service Corporation (GTSM Stock Code: 5530), a company
listed on the Gre Tai Securities Market in Taiwan, from 2008 to
2011.

Mr. Kim Eun Back (& {#) , aged 47, is an executive Director
of the Company appointed on 16 February 2009. Mr. Kim joined
the Group in July 1999. Mr. Kim has over 10 years of experience
in the industry of funeral services since he joined Bau Shan in
1999. He is responsible for the implementation of the Group's
objectives and business development in Vietnam, in particular
overseeing the daily operations in Vietnam, monitoring and over-
seeing the implementation of funeral services, the improvement
of the services and public relation affairs of the Group. Mr.
Kim graduated from the Department of Political Science of the
National Chengchi University (B3 BUA K E) in June 1989,
obtained a master degree from the Department of Public Affairs
of the Yonsei University (£t K& ) Korea in February 1993
and obtained the certificate of ceremonial master from Nanhua
University, Taiwan in 2000. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kim had
working experience in companies that provide funeral services.
He has accumulated experience in the funeral services industry
which is beneficial to the Group. Mr. Kim has not served in any
other public companies the securities of which are listed on any
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past 3 years.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chai Chung Wai (BE &), aged 47, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. He joined the Group in
February 2009 and was appointed an independent non-executive
Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Chai obtained his master
degree of Accounting from Jinan University on 6 January 2004
and of business administration from the University of Manchester
in December 2006. Mr. Chai is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and
a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Chai has
extensive experience of over 20 years in the accounting and
financial field. Mr. Chai has been the company secretary of Ping
Shan Tea Group Limited (formerly known as “Huafeng Group
Holdings Limited”) (Stock Code: 364), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, from 6 August 2009 to 30 September 2013. Mr.
Chai has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three years.

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu (2 — &), aged 69, is an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. He joined
the Group in February 2009 and was appointed an independent
non-executive Director on 16 February 2009. Mr. Ching obtained
the degree of bachelor of Science in Aerospace Engineering from
the University of Kansas in 1967, and the master of business
administration degree from the University of Toronto in 1976. He
is the director of Caneast Group (Canada) Inc. and also a fellow
of the Institute of Canadian Bankers. Mr. Ching has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an term of three years.
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Mr. Lee Koon Hung (ZEj@E#t), aged 51, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company appointed on 30
September 2012. Mr. Lee obtained a higher diploma from Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as “The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University”). Mr. Lee is presently the director of Long Rich
Investment Consultants Limited. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in investment. Mr. Lee is presently a member of the North District
Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Lee is also the chairman of Sha
Tau Kok District Rural Committee, N.T., the Ex-officio Executive
Councillor of Heung Yee Kuk N.T. and Village Indigenous
Inhabitant Representative of Wu Kau Tang of Sha Tau Kok District
Rural Committee, N.T.. Mr. Lee is also the honorary president of
Border District Junior Police Call of Hong Kong, a member of the
school management committee of New Territories Heung Yee
Kuk Tai Po District Secondary School and a member of the school
management committee of Sha Tau Kok Central Primary School.
Mr. Lee has entered into a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years.

Senior Management

Ms. Chang Hui-Lan (3RE ), aged 48, graduated from the
National Sun Yat-sen University (BIxZ A 1IKE) | Taiwan with
a master degree of Execuitive MBA program in 2012 and joined
the Group in 2012 as Department Head of Head Management
Office. Ms. Chang has also obtained the certificate of IPMA
Level D, Certificated Project Management Associate issued by
Taiwan Project Management Association in 2009. As head of
the Department Head of Head Management Office, Ms. Chang
is responsible for the implementation of the Group’s objectives
and business development, in particular overseeing of personnel,
business analysis and internal audit function of the Group. Ms.
Chang is also the team head of the internal compliance team. She
also has over 8 years of experience in management in respect of
the business and operation in funeral industry.
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Mr. Shih Chih Jen (ME%{Z), aged 44, joined the Group in
July 2010 as the deputy general manager of the Group’s Hong
Kong division and has been appointed as the general manager
of Chongging Xibao Funeral Technology Company Limited ( & &
HEREREARAT) (“Chongging Xibao”) and Chongging
Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited ( E & 5 /& 7& 28 AR 75
ABR/A7A]) ("Chongging Xizhou”) since 2013. He obtained the
certificate of ceremonial master from Nanhua University ( & %
KE)  Taiwan in September 2002 and also was employed by
Continuing Education Center, Ling Tung College ( 58 5 £ 1i7 £z
EEBHEZHE L) as the lecturer of Funeral service in 2002,
As the general manager of Chongqging Xibao and Chongging
Xizhou, Mr. Shih is responsible for the sales, marketing and overall
business development of all funeral parlours and funeral service
centres in the PRC. Mr. Tuan has over 13 years of management
experience in the funeral services industry and acquired the
requisite management capability to manage the funeral services
business of the Group to its benefit.

Mr. Chiang Hsienchang (i I &), aged 43, joined the Group
in 2012 as the special assistants to the managing directors of the
Group and has been appointed as the general manager of Bau
Shan since 2013. He is graduated from Fu Jen Catholic University
(REHBH{CAE), Taiwan with a bachelor degree of art in
history program in June 1994 and also obtained the certificate
of invigilator for field tests of skills certification in skill category
of Funeral Service Classes B, C Techician from Council of Labor
Affairs Executive Yuan in October 2013. As the general manager
of Bau Shan, Mr. Chiang is responsible for the sales, marketing
and overall business development of all funeral parlours and
funeral service centres in Taiwan. Mr. Chiang has over 12 years
of management experience in the funeral services industry and
acquired the requisite management capability to manage the
funeral services business of the Group to its benefit.
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Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying (8% &), aged 35, graduated from the
Ming Chuan University ($%{Z X2 ) with a bachelor degree of
Management in 2001 and joined the Group in June 2001 as
an administrative assistant. Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying has since served
the Group to the present in various capacities. Ms. Pan has a
thorough knowledge and understanding of the Group's business
and operations, and has developed a high level of proficiency and
management ability with respect to her work with the Group.
As head of the funeral services deed department, Ms. Pan is
responsible for marketing and attaining the sale of funeral services
deeds. Ms. Pan has over 10 years of experience in management in
respect of the Group's business and operation.

Company Secretary

Mr. Mok Yu Ting (RR#EE) , aged 37, has served as the financial
controller and company secretary of the Company since March
2008. Mr. Mok is responsible for the Company’s financial and
treasury management. Mr. Mok is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr.
Mok graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 1999 with the degree of bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and further obtained two master
degrees of Corporate Finance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2006 and of Law in China Business Law from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2009. He has over 14 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and financial management.
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The Board is here to present the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in nature of Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Appropriations

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 53 to 208.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Use of Proceeds From the Company’s Initial
Public Offering

The proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares at the
time of its listing on the GEM of Stock Exchange in September
2009, after deduction of related issuance expenses, amounted
to approximately RMB82.3 million. These proceeds will be fully
applied in accordance with the proposed applications set out in
the Prospectus, as follows:

approximately RMB28.6 million for the expansion of funeral
services in the PRC;

- approximately RMB5.6 million for the refurbishment of
existing funeral parlours and funeral service centres under

the Group’s management in the PRC;

- approximately RMB28.6 million for the purchase of funeral
service equipment and facilities;

- approximately RMB1.5 million for the expansion of its
marketing network in the PRC;
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- approximately RMB11.6 million for the development of

columbarium business in Taiwan, and;

- approximately RMB6.4 million for general working capital of

the Group.

All the remaining proceeds as at 31 December 2013 have been

placed as interest bearing deposits in banks.

Summary of Financial Information

—  HAR®11,600,000t AR ERNAE
ZBIREUESE: &

— # AR®6,400,0007T HIEAREE 2 —
BIEEE -

R-E—Z=F+_A=+—HMOMAFRAHM
BHRECERRITIERT BFRK -

MERHER

Year ended 31 December

B8E+-A=+-HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
= S —T-%F CZTTHE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARSTr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Turnover EEE 63,106 61,767 72,521 67,600 47,544
Gross profit £ 47,131 46,288 45,564 50,363 34,138
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiA (B8) /& F (15,966) (28,565) (27,947) 5,355 16,780
(Loss)profit attributable to UNGE 2PN A
owners of the Company (B#8),/ &7 (16,175) (29,487) (30,079) 1,105 12,463
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RMB cents) SREA (E18) /&7
(ARER) (2.18) (3.97) (4.05) 0.16 248
As at 31 December
®+=R=+-8H
2013 2012 201 2010 2009
Zg-Z§ T C"Z——4% CZ-ZF _"ZTNF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARSTr ARETT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets ERBEE 65,433 63,403 57,027 53,495 38,747
Current assets nmEEE 236,955 282,592 315,135 367,006 222,561
Current liabilities TELR=NE 107,495 126,141 125,207 133,778 126,344
Net assets HEE 186,620 210,294 236,892 273,374 121,610
Major Customers and Suppliers FEERRMER

Since the Group is principally engaged in the provision of funeral
services, and trading of raw marble used for the construction of
buildings and gravestones. None of its customers accounted for
more than 1% of its total turnover during the year. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 30.3% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier

included therein amounted to 11.6%.
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None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any material beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

Segment Reporting

Details of segment reporting are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to owners comprising share premium account less
accumulated losses, amounted to approximately RMB123.5
million.

Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately RMB63,000 (2012: approximately
RMB41,000).
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Directors ¥

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report FRANEZEAREHEHNES A

were:

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai BREI A&

Mr. Kim Eun Back CEEEE

Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh TR RS

Independent non-executive Directors BYHHTES

Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B—-RiE

Mr. Chai Chung Wai EEELEE

Mr. Lee Koon Hung Tk A

According to the requirements of Article 16.18 of the articles of
association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Kim Eun Back and
Mr. Chai Chung Wai will retire by rotation in accordance with
Article 16.18 of the Article of Association, and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors and Senior Management

Biographical information of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 35 of this annual report.

Directors’ Service Agreement

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, Mr.
Kim Eun Back, and Mr. Ting Yung-Chieh has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 9 September 2009, 9 September 2009 and
30 September 2012 respectively, which continues thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months'’
notice in writing to the other party.
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Two of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ching Clement Yat-biu and Mr. Chai Chung Wai, have re-entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years from 9 September 2012 to 8 September 2015, which can be
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice
in writing to the other party.

One independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee
Koon Hung has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years from 30 September 2012 to 29
September 2015, which can be terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

None of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without the payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

Remuneration of Directors and Five
Individuals With Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the directors and five individuals

with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company or any Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2013, the relevant interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares (the
“Shares”), underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO")),
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO
(including interests or short positions which they have taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of SFO) or required
pursuant to section 352 of SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or required, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

Aggregate long positions in the Shares

EERFLFIRNEMAHEBEEZ
ﬂgg RO RAHEZERR

WZZE—=F+=-fA=+—1" %%&f—"%ﬁ
BABRARRSKHEAGE AR (F & R FE:
&Hﬁ 5 ([EHREED]) (85718)

EXVEL) 2 m (B ]) - BRI REE

BREEIRIEE SR BAE GG FEXVEBETRS
DEBAAE AN B KB R T 2 B B pE s A
B (BREREES MNPEKRMNEEIEHSE
WEERERARE ZERIAR) AR
B 75 5 K HR &) S535216 51 A Z A6 Bl i 5
2ERMZERERS AR R AREA%E
R ETH R BIE5.461525.6715 8 BE ST
BERGZRTANG RN R MBI
KRB IMT

R 2 iF R AR

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held the Company

LELH

ERTEREH

EsElR EaMH Fr¥sR& 7 8 B L Eol=R2 4

Liu Tien-Tsai Personal 308,184,000 41.51%
21781 A
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions in the shares and underlying shares

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
section 336 of Part XV of SFO showed that as at 31 December
2013, the Company was notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company. These interests were in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the Directors and chief executive:

FEREREREKGRAMAEGZE
DRRE

RIEEH MG IERAIEXVEE336(GAFE
ZIBRRERMBAR R_T—=F+=
A=Z+—H ARrEMNE N IHEBARF
EEITRAS%HIA LS FERR %%
BaED EXAREEREERERTTRAR
ZRERIAIN 2 e

Aggregate long positions in the Shares R 2 tF B #BER
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Number of capital of
Name of shareholders Nature of interest shares held the Company
GFELTF
ERITERED
R BEaHH FrisBR BB @#rhaEskt
Yang Yong Sheng (note 1) Personal 36,632,000 4.93%
oA () fEA
Family interest 5,152,000 0.69%
ENIY T Fa
Yu Wen Ping (note 1) Personal 5,152,000 0.69%
T5F (KiEE) EA
Family interest 36,632,000 4.93%
N3
Note: Bt

1. Yu Wen Ping, the spouse of Yang Yong Sheng, was deemed to be
interested in all the interest of Yang Yong Sheng and vice versa.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no Director had a material interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares Or
Debentures

Apart from the details as disclosed under the heading “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures of the Company or any Associated Corporations”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised
by them; or was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
Trademark Licence Agreement

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered into the Trademark
Licence Agreement (the “Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu
Tien-Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark Agreement,
Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the Group on an exclusive basis,
a licence to use a number of trademarks and service marks
in connection with the Group’s funeral services business at a
consideration of HK$1,000 per year.

Signing of Deed of Trust

On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao Song Deed”) was
entered into between Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd
(BLEmREERRM AR AR (“Bau Shan”) , a subsidiary of the
Company and Ms. Li Pi Hsia (“Ms. Li”) (288 ) , spouse of Mr.
Liu, in relation to the land property situated in Taiwan at No. 943
in Section Linnei, Niao Song Township, Kaohsiung County (/=%
S RINEBIINER94315% ) (the “Niao Song Property”). Under the
Niao Song Deed, Bau Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property,
which is owned by Bau Shan, shall be registered under the name
of and held on trust by Ms. Li for Bau Shan for a term of ten
years commencing on 14 March 2003. Ms. Li has agreed that she
shall act in the interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao Song
Property during the term of the Niao Song Deed. On 15 March
2013, a renewal of Niao Song Deed was entered into for a term of
ten years commencing on 15 March 2013.
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The Group entered into a trust arrangement instead of transferring
the Niao Song Property to the Group because, as advised by the
Taiwan legal adviser to the Group, the Niao Song Property is a
piece of agricultural land and the Law of Agriculture Development
of Taiwan does not allow Bau Shan being a private corporate
body, to be registered as an owner of a piece of agricultural land.
Therefore, the Niao Song Property is held on trust by Ms. Li for
Bau Shan. The Taiwan legal adviser to the Group has advised that
the Niao Song Deed complies with the Trust Act and other relevant
laws and regulations in Taiwan.

Licensing of the use of a property in the PRC to Chongqing
Xibao by Mr. Liu

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing the licensee,
Chongqging Xibao, a subsidiary of the Company, to lawfully
use the property situated at Unit 1404 on Level 14, Zhongxing
Garden, No. 1 Heping Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the
“Licensed Property”) as the registered office without the payment
of rent or licence fee. The signed confirmation from Mr. Liu
authorizing Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property as its
registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s personal use, rental and
mortgage of the Licensed Property. There was no revenue or profit
contributed by the Licensed Property during the year as there had
been no occupancy of the Licenced Property during the year.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu will last until 30
January 2052.

All the transactions fall within Rule 20.33(3) of the GEM Listing
Rules and each constitutes a de minimis continuing connected
transaction exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the related party transactions are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. All the related
party transactions did not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the Shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.
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Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Interest in a Competing Business

During the year, the Directors were not aware of any business or
interest of the Directors or any substantial shareholder (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company and their respective
associates that had competed or might compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interests which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

Bank Borrowings

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2013 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Retirement Schemes

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent
parties. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors
and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct from the date of listing of the Company’s
Shares on the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2013.
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Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of the
Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The major terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarised as follows:

(a

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group as
incentive or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the
Group holds an equity interest, including any executive
directors and any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company,
any of such subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; and (ii) any
consultants, advisers, agents, partners or joint-venture
partners of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share Option
Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange as shown in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date of the particular option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
shown in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date of that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of
a share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the day on which trading of the Company’s shares
commenced on the GEM Board (“General Scheme Limit”).

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing 10% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the year end date.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

FRBx RS

BEARRBHA-_ZZAFNA-F+TA
MR EERZRE O RIRWE R T
2 ([MERRAERTE]) - ARSI EEER
BT

(@) BRER Sz BNEBEARRRHAE
B EHAAIRELERMNAERSHE
ERDBERE (FREFHAKEEY
EGEIES

b) AERBEEBENARRL/REME
(AT P 8 2 B Sk AN SR B4 A B A i s O T
MER((REERDNEMNEESE
TRE BEARXE HERMBLQAE
HAEMIRE BROEINITES MEM
FRTER (BRBUFFNTES)
R ()RR R N,/ S EAERH B A R E
IABAA B RIE aBAHEER
o

(0 FBREUERSIE MERENTEESTS
PRTIIGEEE (N EBRENE
HWBEH(BAREER)RMDVERFT
FRMER LBRREBPIH W HE
(NEZ X E R E4) B HA0 A (&
LEARDRBRAEERER LBR
B TE © R GiBtn 70 e BB AR
EXAHNEE-

(d) RIBBEERTE R EBRERERTE
TR ARB AR TER AT REE
TR DB A KN FHBEAR R RN
FIGRBIEREEE HE BHITRMA
10% ([—fRFHBIFRER] -

RIREEIRHERT 2 0] T RITHR D B8 A
74,250,0000% - HE R ARG RFE4EH
EETRMAI10% °



Directors’ Report
EERRE

=

]

Jlinl

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any participants in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at
the date of the grant of the options.

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in writing
and shall remain open for acceptance by the eligible
participants concerned for a period of 30 days from the
date upon which it is made provided that no such offer
shall be open for acceptance after the 10th anniversary
of the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or the
termination of the scheme. An offer shall be deemed to
have been accepted by the eligible participant concerned in
respect of all shares which are offered to such participant
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
offer duly signed by the eligible participant, together with
a non-refundable remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$10 by way of consideration for the grant thereof
is received by the Company, within such time as may be
specified in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the share
option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event should not
exceed 5 years from the date of grant of the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in the
circumstances by giving notice in writing to the Company
stating that the option is thereby exercised and the number
of shares in respect of which it is so exercised. Each
such notice must be accompanied by a non-refundable
remittance for the full amount of the subscription price for
shares in respect of which the notice is given.
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Details of the share options granted and remaining outstanding as

RZEBE-—=F+A=+—HABEHERK

at 31 December 2013 are as follows: Tl 2 BRI IR T
Number of share options
WEEKE
At At
Name/category Exercise price 1 January 31 December
of participants Date of grant per share Exercisable period 2013 Lapsed 2013
R-B-= RZ-B-=
SRERE HR BHAM BRTER TR —-A-H B%% +-A=+-H
Directors of the Company
FNFES
Mr. Kim Eun Back 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
15 January 2017
SEEEE ZZ-ZF-R1+RH 06077 ZE2-ZE-ATrHE
—Z—+tF-RBTIHAE
Directors of subsidiaries
HEARESR
Ms. Pan Hsiu-Ying 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
RERRL ZZ-ZF-R17RH 0.60/87T “E-=Z5-At+KxAZ
—Z—+tF-RBTIHAE
Mr. Wang Shun Lang 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
15 January 2017
TIREB %A ZR-—E-BTRH 0608%T  —E-ZF-A+rBE
I e R il=!
Mr. Chung Yuan-Yuan 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
15 January 2017
BRAEE ZE-ZF-R+RAH 0.60%7T ZE-Zf-AtKEE
“T-tF-A+EA
Ms. Chang Hui-Lan 16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
15 January 2017
RERLL Z2-ZF-A+RA 0.60/7T “Z-=£-A+RAZE
“Z-t¥-AtEHA
Continuous contract 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 10,172,000 - 10,172,000
employees 11 February 2020
EHENER ZZ-TF-R+-H 11887 “Z-2F/\A+-A%
ZZ-ZF_RT+-H
16 January 2012 HK$0.60 16 January 2013 to 7,960,000 (1,480,000) 6,480,000
15 January 2017
“Z--§-AtrA 060ET  ZE-ZF-At+RAE
R il=!
Consultants 11 February 2010 HK$1.18 11 August 2010 to 41,900,000 - 41,900,000
11 February 2020
iR “Z-F5-RA+-H 11887 “Z-ZE)\AT-AZE
2T _RA+-H
66,032,000 (3,480,000) 62,552,000
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The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten years
from the date of grant. As at 31 December 2013, 2,572,000 of
52,072,000 options (2012: 2,572,000 of 52,072,000 options)
were exercisable in the same year of the date of grant with 50%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and at
the end of the year from the date of grant and 49,500,000 of
52,072,000 options (2012: 49,500,000 of 52,072,000 options)
are exercisable over five years from the date of grant, with 20%
each of the options granted exercisable at six months and first
calendar date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire five years from the
date of grant and will be exercisable after one year from the date
of grant. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none
of the Directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates have been granted share
options under the Share Option Scheme.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

Corporate Governance

Save and except the deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1 as
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
had, during the year, complied with the Code Provision.

The Group’s compliance with the code provisions is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 18 to 29 of this annual
report.
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Auditors

Since CCIF CPA Limited tendered its resignation on 27 December
2013 as auditors of the Company, the Board has appointed Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited shall retire in the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for reappointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe
Horwath (HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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Independent Auditor's Report
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Crowe Horwath..

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINO-LIFE GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sino-
Life Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 208, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

BEEEE (&) SMEHMERAR

Member Crowe Horwath International

ERINEERIBET7TIEET LR
9/F, Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

Sze Chor Chun, Yvonne

Practising Certificate Number P05049
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
AEBEmAkEMEENE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—B—-=F —E-CF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TRT AREF T
Turnover o 1] 4(a) 63,106 61,767
Cost of sales &R (15,975) (15,479)
Gross profit ER 47,131 46,288
Other revenue H s 5 1,628 1,540
Other net (loss)/gain Hi)F (F518) e 5 (1,856) 5,502
Selling expenses HERX (24,402) (25,116)
Administrative expenses T (37,074) (44,103)
Other operating expenses HEMgEs (1,047) (12,439)
Loss from operations BEESEE (15,620) (28,328)
Finance costs BE KA 6(a) (346) (237)
Loss before taxation FRIRBIES IR 6 (15,966) (28,565)
Income tax FTiS 7 (848) (1,224)
Loss for the year FEKS (16,814) (29,789)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FEHRM2E (BR) 7
income for the year (after tax) & (B&IR%E) 10
ltem that will not be reclassified to T2 EFHHEE
profit or loss: BEMIER
Surplus on revaluation of FIEERTHR
land and buildings held BFzEHEARK
for own use 416 580
ltem that may be reclassified Hizngesmois
subsequently to profit or loss: HBEMIER ¢
Exchange differences on BmERE AR
translation of financial BONERS ([FEF
statements of operations ¥1%]) 2 BmERE 2
outside the People’s Republic of [EHZR
China (“non-PRC operations”)
— Exchange differences arising —FRNEAZERZEZHE
during the year (6,623) (309)
— Reclassification adjustments —-EBEFALHEZ
relating to non-PRC FEREER
operations disposed of B EAE
during the year - (76)
(6,623) (385)
Other comprehensive (loss)/ EEHM2E (HR)
income for the year, net of tax It (MEKRIE) (6,207) 195
Total comprehensive loss FEZEGIRESTE
for the year, net of tax (fRRIRIAF) (23,021) (29,594)

TELEBEERRLAT —E-ZFFR



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

54

2013 2012
—E2—=F —T=F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTT AREEFTTT
Loss attributable to: BTFTALEEESRE:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZ PN 11 (16,175) (29,487)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR b 2 (639) (302)
(16,814) (29,789)
Total comprehensive loss BTFALREWE
attributable to: 2HEEESE:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ PN (22,256) (29,170)
Non-controlling interests FEFEIR S (765) (424)
(23,021) (29,594)
Loss per share BRIBGR 12
Basic and diluted HAR#5E RMB(2.18) cents RMB(3.97) cents
AR#%(2.18)% AE®(B.97)7

The notes on pages 62 to 208 form part of these financial 562H 22088 2 Wit AZEUBKHRE 248
statements. RE 7 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sre MR

As at 31 December 2013 R -_ZE—=%+-F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—-=f —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®TT AREEF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREFE
Property, plant and equipment E R NG 15 57,978 55,866
Prepaid lease payments AR EE K 16 3,753 3,835
Intangible assets mAE 17 2 2
Deposits for hire of funeral THRBEESERBEEREP
parlours and funeral DZIE®
services centres 21 3,700 3,700
65,433 63,403
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Financial assets designated as EERIE AT ER ABR
at fair value through ZUBEE
profit or loss 18 40,558 42,603
Development and formation costs B % K ik 37 ik 7% 19 6,525 5,164
Inventories BE 20 637 996
Tax recoverable A Y B 7 18 28(a) 40 440
Trade and other receivables B 5 & Eo b UK 21 66,293 55,709
Prepaid lease payments FEMEERNR 16 82 82
Pledged bank deposits EHEIPERITIFER 22 - 17,869
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 23 122,820 159,729
236,955 282,592
CURRENT LIABILITIES nERAR
Trade and other payables 2 5 REMERK 24 9,143 9,597
Receipts in advance FE U FRIE 25 95,820 104,686
Current portion of bank RITIEE 2SS
borrowings 26 602 10,699
Current portion of other loan EERZ B8 E S 27 106 213
Current taxation BIEATL I8 28(a) 1,788 946
(107,459) (126,141)
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENRERHE 129,496 156,451
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEAERRDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 194,929 219,854
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBDAEAR
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 8,309 9,448
Other loan HEMER 27 - 112
(8,309) (9,560)
NET ASSETS HERE 186,620 210,294
FEEDEEERAT T -=ZFFRK
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As at 31 December 2013 R -_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

56

2013 2012
ot 2 —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M FE AR®TX AREF T
EQUITY #a
Equity attributable to owners of Z2FHBAREEES
the Company
Share capital fi& A 29 69,218 69,218
Reserves ] 115,118 136,917
184,336 206,135
Non-controlling interests JERERRIER 2,284 4,159
TOTAL EQUITY gEREE 186,620 210,294

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on HEREHR -_ZT—WF=A=-+—BHER

21 March 2014. R -
Liu Tien-Tsai Ting Yung-Chieh
Chairman Executive Director
FiE] THE
E HITEF

The notes on pages 62 to 208 form part of these financial S62E £208H Wi A% EEHmE 24

statements. a5
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Statement of Financial Position

BT AR LR

As at 31 December 2013 R -_ZE—=%+_-F=+—H

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥TT ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB M 15 2,549 3,262
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZRE 39 90,985 19,450
Intangible assets mIEAE 17 2 2
93,536 22,714
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Other receivables A E U BR SR 21 74,699 128,949
Pledged bank deposits ERMERITFR 22 - 17,869
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEEY 23 30,102 45,549
104,801 192,367
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAR
Other payables H A fE T BR SR 24 28,454 9,529
Financial guarantee obligations IS ERET 38 1,951 -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 - 10,073
(30,405) (19,602)
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEESRE 74,396 172,765
NET ASSETS HERE 167,932 195,479
EQUITY B
Share capital &N 29 69,218 69,218
Reserves B 30(a) 98,714 126,261
TOTAL EQUITY RadE 167,932 195,479

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

HEFEN _Z-—HF=A-+—HHER

21 March 2014.

Liu Tien-Tsai
Chairman
SN
*E

The notes on pages 62 to 208 form part of these financial
statements.
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Executive Director
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Gonsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FARREBHE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L3 EIN 1]
Foreign
Statutory  Properties currency  Share-based Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory surplus  revaluation  translation compensation ~ Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
PLTE)
-1 4

Bx  RGBR  ABER  RGE GRERER WREMEE ARERGE  RREE  hER 0 HIRNE  REeR
RMBOOO  AMBUDO  AMBOOO  RMBUDO  AMBUM0  RMBOOD  RMBYRO  RMBUNO  RMBOOD  RMBUDD  AMBUI0  AMBOOD
T ARETL  ARETT  ARETZ ARETR ARETE  ARETT  ARETR ARETZ ARETT  ARETZ

At 1 January 2012 RZ8-Z%-8-8 69218 220,633 (16,261) 25 1,550 487 (1,775 6,339 (36577) 233839 3053 236,892
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (29487) (29487) (302) 29789)
Surplus on revaluation of land and buldings ~ #EE R LI REF 2

eld for own use E - - - - - 580 - - - 580 - 580
Exchange diferences on BEFREREL

transation of financial tatements of HlRER ENEE

non-PRC operations - - - - - - (263) - - (263) (122) (385)
Other comprehensive income Ep2EkE - - - - - 580 (263) - - 317 (122) 195

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Equity-settled share-based transactions NEREEZRNBERL
25 - - - - - - - 1,466 - 1,466 - 1,466
Lapse of share options granted ERIBRERN - - - - - - - 85) 85 - - -
Capital contributions received by non-wholy ~ 2 AHEBLRE
owned subsidiaries from non-controlling FARERURZ LA
interests - - - - - - - - - - 1532 1,532

Decrease in non-controlling interests arising on ~ 5¢ 4168 i 3k

2ENBLT

acquisiion of additional interestsinanon- 2 ESMERAEEZ
wholly owned subsidiary (note 39(c) FERERRD
(390 - - - - - - - - - - [l Q)
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z&+ZR=+-R 69218 220,633 (16,261) 205 1,550 1,067 (12,038) 7720 (65,979) 206,135 4159 210,294
At 1 January 2013 R-%-Z%-8-R 69,218 220633 (16,261) 05 1,550 1,067 (12,038) 7120 (65,979) 206,135 4159 210,294
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - (16,175) (16,175) (639) (16,814)
Surplus on revaluation of land and FfEaR 1 REFL
buidings held for own use EL ] - - - - - 46 - - - 416 - 416
Exchange differences on translaton of finandal B REE T2
statements of non-PRC operations BB S - - - - - - (6.497) - - (6,497) (126) (6623)
Other comprehensie loss EH2EER - - - - - 416 (6:497) - - (6.081) (126) (6.207)
Total comprehensive loss for the year TEE2EER - - - - - 416 (6497) - (16,175) (22,256) (765) (3021
Equity-settled share-based transactions NEREEZRABERZ
25 - - - - - - - 402 - 402 - 40
Lapse of share options granted BRHERELN - - - - - - - (118) 118 - - -
Capital contributons received by FREMELAR
anon-wholly owned subsidiary fomnon- ~ FFERERKI LA
controling interests - - - - - - - - - - 300 300
Decrease in non-controlling interests arsng on 515 i3 2 AN B AR
disposal of nterests inanon-wholly owned 2 ERMEEZ
subsidiary (note 33) FHERERRD
(M333) - - - - - - - - - - (263) (263)
Disposal of revalued property HEERNE - - - - - (295) - - 295 - - -
Acquisiion of additional interests WE-RF2EMED
in a non-wholly owned subsidiary FoMER (Mt
(note 39(c)) - - - - - - - - 55 55 (1,147) (1,09)
At 31 December 2013 Z8-ZF+2A+-R 69,218 220633 (16,261) 25 1,550 1,188 (18,535) 8,004 (81,686) 184,336 2,284 186,620

The notes on pages 62 to 208 form part of these financial 25628 22088 Wik AZEMBmEx 24
statements. BE
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

=AN A Zzs B
MEReRER
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
2013 2012
—E—=%f —T—=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®TT AREF T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXRG
Loss before taxation bR AT E 1R (15,966) (28,565)
Adjustments for: EE
Amortisation of prepaid TERTHE & N R 3
lease payments 6(c) 82 14
Impairment loss on H b fE ORI (B B 18
other receivables 6(c) 486 760
Reversal of impairment loss P [0 H b JE W 3RIE
on other receivables B 5 (407) -
Finance costs A& A 6(a) 346 237
Surplus on revaluation of BEBRZ LMK
land and buildings held EFEHAH
for own use 5 (476) (117)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment B2 EE 5 5,426 106
Gain on disposal of HEME QR 2l
subsidiaries 5 (604) (734)
Depreciation e 6(c) 5,937 4,425
Loss on derecognition of BUBMEREE ZE1E
assets 6(c) - 11,275
Interest income B YA 5 (1,405) (619)
Net realised and unrealised 1B AEATFERA
gain on financial BaRoBEE
assets designated as at BRI N AREIR
fair value through W 25 58
profit or loss 5 (2,386) (1,629)
Net (gain)/loss on foreign SNERERA A (U 2s)
exchange forward JERFE
contracts 5 (1,002) 87
Net exchange loss/(gain) SNEESIE, (Mas)
FEE 5 1,460 (2,657)
Equity-settled share-based NEEREE RN R
payment expenses ER 2R AX 6(b)&(c) 402 1,466
7,859 12,614
(8,107) (15,951)
CHANGES IN WORKING EEAED
CAPITAL
Decrease/(increase) in FERLD, (3Em)
inventories 359 (418)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 N H R
other receivables (1#m) (11,363) 8,229
Decrease/(increase) in financial BT AEBEAFETA
assets designated as at fair Bz WBEE
value through profit or loss w3 ) 2,001 (704)
Increase in development and F B Ko ko 37 Ak AN 28 0
formation costs (4,002) (5,164)
(Decrease)/increase in trade B 5 REMERRK
and other payables CRA) /18 hn (438) 1,090
Decrease in receipts in advance TE U SR IE R (3,007) (7,273)
(16,450) (4,240)
FEEDEEERAT T -=ZFFRK
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
2013 2012
—E—Z=fF —E -
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTTT AREF T
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS BERARSE (24,557) (20,191)
Income taxes refunded/(paid) BiRB (B EHR
Taiwan ag 383 (33)
The People’s Republic of FREE AR A
China ("PRC") ([HE]) (6) (1,424)
377 (1,457)
NET CASH USED IN BREXGRABRSSEEHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (24,180) (21,648)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Payment for the purchase HUEEDZE - HE K&
of property, plant and B TIRS
equipment (14,846) (14,153)
Proceeds from disposal HEWE - BER&E2
of property, plant and FRi§ I8
equipment 3,048 37
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEMNE AR - 0k
net of cash disposed of FrtEzEe 33 1,025 3,919
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BEFRITER
bank deposits S () 17,869 (17,869)
Interest received B U F 8 1,405 619
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ & FEFfFE  (FA)
(USED IN) INVESTING Reasg
ACTIVITIES 8,501 (27,447)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il & E B
Capital element of ENBERERSZEAR
finance lease rentals paid 2B - 9)
Interest element of finance EN@ERERE 2FE
lease rentals paid EilSa) = (M
Proceeds from new bank FriERITIE R Z TS FUIE
borrowings 34,563 16,477
Repayment of bank borrowings EBERITER (45,073) (6,925)
Interest on bank borrowings SRITIE R F B (330) (206)
Repayment of other loans EBEEMER (206) (198)
Interest on other loans HEEZRHE (16) (30)
Payment for acquisition of WHE—FRIEE BN B
additional interests in a NAE)ZREIMER
non-wholly owned subsidiary PANE: 39(c) (1,092) ()
Capital contributions received FrEMBEARE
by a non-wholly owned FE2E PR A2 2 WACER
subsidiary from ZHE
non-controlling interests 300 1,532

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

=IAN AN gl —1 il%
/Zw Y= fﬁi /L B2
For the year ended 31 December 2013 HEZE-T—=F+-_A=+—HIEFE
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E——F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥TT ARETF T
NET CASH (USED IN)/ RMEEH (FRA) R
GENERATED FROM BeRaE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (11,854) 10,638
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HeRBeSEEMRDBHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (27,533) (38,457)
CASH AND CASH W—B—BZzR&R
EQUIVALENTS AT BeEED
1 JANUARY 159,729 194,171
EFFECT OF FOREIGN IEFEHowE
EXCHANGE RATES CHANGES (9,376) 4,015
CASH AND CASH »+=B=+—HZ
EQUIVALENTS AT HeRBAEEED
31 DECEMBER 122,820 159,729
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES HeRBEEEEYD
OF CASH AND CASH TeRo
EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFEES 23 122,820 159,729

The notes on pages 62 to 208 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

62

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino-Life Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
on 24 February 2005 in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law. Its shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 9 September 2009.
Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
The subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the provision of
funeral services, sale of graves, provision of cemetery
maintenance services and trading of raw marble. The
Company and its subsidiaries are herein collectively referred
to as the “Group”. The address of the Company’s registered
office and principal place of business are The Grand Pavilion
Commercial Centre, Oleander Way, 802 West Bay Road,
P.O. Box 32052, Grand Cayman KY1-1208, Cayman Islands
and Shops 1-4, G/F Lok Ka House, 240-242 Chatham
Road North, 1A-1C Baker Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong
respectively.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

2. FESHEEK

(@)

B
ZEMHHRRORBE B
R ([BEETHRE])EAZ
PrAEME BT B mEER (1F
BMBHREER]) SHBEM
BERZ B8R &R MRS %
A-ZAGER([FEGTE
Al k2B FELARSRR
R BB R ARG 2 BB R E iR
B ZEUHHRRMETELME
RBMBRARBIERES LT
MR (TRIZR EMmARRA]) Z &M
BEG - AKEMRAZ IS
AABCRBEEH AT

BEGMASCEME THAT
REERT BB EREER (RA
SERARRZAEHEER
EME AP EM) o M 3R M
BRER UL FH ] RGIERT 2R
ZATER @B ERE
ZER R ZEH R T Rk
BTk est imarEEg
ERR-
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) mHEMBEHRER2ELE

64

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company and
its subsidiaries.

Items included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The functional currency of its subsidiaries
are Renminbi ("RMB"), New Taiwan dollars (“NTD"),
US$, Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and Vietnamese
dong (“"VND") respectively. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, rounded to the
nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated,
which is different from the functional currency of the
Company as majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at
their fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below:

- freehold land and buildings (see note 2(d));
- financial assets designated as at fair value
through profit or loss (see note 2(f)); and

- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(f)).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FESHH %K (1)
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) wmHEBBEHRTR2ELE (F)

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 41.

RAETABBMBRELER 28
BR BSRE R EAIEL FIE - 5
it MR R FHIE - EE R RR
SRERRERAANAEHRZE
E AE WARRAXESE- LT
EEt RRRABRRDENBEL R
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BHEEMAR  MAASERIIAE
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B BRERIB RN FEE-

At R ERR IR EEER
B e FTE R BIERT AT 2 8
- QIS @ atfhat ZERT TIIMER]
Bt 2 AR - MiHEFI &R
Al MR R EARE - B @ MERT BoR 2K
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(0

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and
the owners of the Company. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:H K (#8)
(Continued)

()

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(k)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Property, plant and equipment

The freehold land and buildings held for own use are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting
period.

The other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated in the statement of
financial position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see note 2k).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the properties revaluation
reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be

charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the properties
revaluation reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be

credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2013 &

B R A

ZE+ZAS+—ALLER

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

freehold land is not depreciated,;

buildings situated on freehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful life,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of
completion;

Leasehold 3 to 10 years or over

improvements the remaining term
of the lease, if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 2 to 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (d) M*x -BERZE (E)

70

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
proceeds on disposal and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus
is transferred from the properties revaluation reserve
to accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit
or loss.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(e)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as an
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease; and

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group,
or taken over from the previous lessee.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(e) Leased assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the
leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged as expenses in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lumpsum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease
is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets “at fair value
through profit or loss” (“FVTPL"), "held-to-maturity”
investments, “available-for-sale” (“AFS") financial
assets and “loans and receivables”. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial assets is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in the “other net gain/(loss)” line item in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 18.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other
than: (i) those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or loss; (ii)
those that the entity designates as available for sale;
and (i) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment (see
note 2k).

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments, or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the
carrying amount of AFS financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under equity. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit
or loss (see note 2k).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

AFS financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see note 2k).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment, except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’'s own
equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial liability is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

o it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeaurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the
“other net gain/(loss)” line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 31.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, bank borrowings and other loan are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of
the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts
and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognises an associated liability. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated
to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum
of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE®:H %K (1)
(Continued)

()

(9)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are trademark license that are
acquired separately and with finite useful lives
ranging from five to ten years and are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (see note 2(k)). Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Development and formation costs

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site which
will be completed for sale and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

The development costs comprise specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages
and other direct expenses, an appropriate proportion
of overheads and borrowing costs capitalised (see note
2(r)). Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in selling the cemetery.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(i)

0

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost of merchandises for resale is calculated using
the weighted average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Cost of graves developed for sale is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs (see
note 2 (h)) attributable to completed but unsold units.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense
in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months
of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flows statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(1)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

- For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.
(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)
() Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables and other receivables
and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

86

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued) (k) EERME (&)
(i)  Impairment of investments in equity () RAEAZBFREREMEK K
securities and other receivables (Continued) M2 HtE (&
—  For available-for-sale equity securities —  BEAFEIEZH
which are stated at fair value, when HBEEREXESHM
a decline in the fair value has been = HAFEEREDER
recognised in other comprehensive Hih 2K AR

income and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income shall be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment even
though the financial asset has not
been derecognised. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables (Continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
receivables and other receivables included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade receivables and other receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments;

- intangible assets;

- deposits; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

88

flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)
- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the GEM Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial report
in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim Financial
Reporting, every three months. At the end of
the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

()  Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

()  Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

(m) Share-based payments

(1)

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in the share-
based compensation reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial Option Pricing model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year under
review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly
to accumulated losses).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

n EERFN &)

(ii)

AULEF
RILEABRNNAEEEE
BREZEE R E RS
RS LR A 2 RS
B (AT ERE) R -

(m) BAitp BER 2K

(i)

RFESZHERE
RTEE ZEREEAFE
WRBERENA  MEmTP
Z AR TS mERE S
M h e A ETIRE T
B I HARE e B SR 5
B WEEBRERTIER
MG -WIEBBEFE BB
&I H e BAR M = B R
R REBRESEEB
Z AR - (B SRR AR AE
Zﬁﬂr N EBTERREH
DR

rEEEXNBEEHAEME
B BREHE - g
BB RUEFERRZ
R AFEZEMNAES
REHNFEZRRT X
SEANBRIERRZEESX
ﬁﬁ ﬁ%ﬁﬁFZFW

SHURND XN HERE
%ﬁﬁﬁzﬂ% EHRR
Xz BFEE N B R EL
A M&%WEE%%%
ZEBERHE (R YARND
SN HEREELEREZH
B BReERNEEHFAHE
RARIRG B2 £
ERIF 7 &R UL - R 2 8RR
EﬁkkﬁxfﬁiiTTﬁﬁt\hﬁﬁ%qﬂﬁﬁ

REEBREETE(E
L)\Hﬂ’\_f ARAF) S BB IR
REEE (B EEBARGE
1B )RR LE-



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(m) Share-based payments (Continued)

(n)

(i) Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for services
are measured at the fair values of the services
received, unless that fair value cannot be
reliably measured, in which case the services
received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair
values of the services received are recognised
as expenses, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based compensation reserve),
when the counterparties render services, unless
the services qualify for recognition as assets.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided that those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that
is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBE® (1)
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

(n)

(o)

FRi&% (48)

- EEMEEESEAE HEF
BEERAEMARR KB
HeRARLIA T B — IR U
Prsiiam:

- FE-ERHER: %

- TRANERNERE- UL
EERABEREE
BB A RNBERELED
HRABEREEFEAAXN
BIE FE R IR & B Al A
WeEE) EATR A - %R
EEGHANYHRIAE
EMGEENENIER
B KARERZEE

ENMEEZFAE

BERIREE
HBEFREHAKERARA]
EAELEERRERME METH
AR LA KERNZ - Bat
Al S tEfA AT - RIBLES R s R
BEZABEEREE - HEE 2
BEBEA  ABRES LRSS
BEMBERX 2 RETIK-

i BB A B M 25 2 AT BE T
R RERF] SR 2 R
FROFEABMNEENZD 2 H e
W BRIAEEESEREAEE
FTUBE - ERMEERRED LR
—HINLEFHEIAIEEZHE
FAR(T - BROFABR B 2 4
SEM BRIMKEESLAR

f&e



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i)  Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of cremation
services, cemetery services, funeral arrangement
services and funeral services in funeral parlours
and funeral service centres under the Group’s
management is recognised when the services are
rendered.

(i)  Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers which is taken to be the point
in time when the customer has accepted the
goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of graves is recognised
when the right to use the grave has passed,
which is upon signing of the sales contract with
the customer.

(iii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(p)

(a)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(v) Commission income
Commission income represents the income
received or receivable from referring of cubicles
and spaces for urn storage in columbarium and
referring of cemetery for customers.

Commission income is recognised when the final
customers accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership.

(vi) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established. Dividend income
from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to hedge
a net investment in a foreign operation which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was measured.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(a)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)
The results of operations outside PRC (“non-PRC
operations”) are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a non-PRC operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a non-PRC operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a non-PRC operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
includes a non-PRC operation that does not result
in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use
or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(Continued)

(s) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v} The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FES:HBEK (1)

(Continued)

(t) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Company’s Executive directors (the
chief operating decision maker) for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA:

° Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

o Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

. Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

° Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS
12, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities: Transition Guidance

100 Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

() 2EEHE
MBEBERAME ZRED TR E
DHER 2RI B RN EER
FTAEE AN ERG K& KLY
[EEASE LI S AP YT
AARBIATES (EBEERK
BIRBZHHER DR -

G ET = - EREREED
Mg A6 D EEABULE
FHNEERERGEE - EET
FIEE - FPEEASER  AED
HE MR 2 TEARE
ERFEEE T mARCRIERSN -
I FEEBERZ L LD R E
AEED UL FER - QIR FE 2D 8
AIREgWA -

FERMAIRIEEBITERME
BEER

RAFE AREEEATIAELES
FHEN A EBMEFTR] REIERT BB

e

s BRMBREEREITAN BE
R EEN —_TTNFE-T
—— TR FEYUE

o BEGHEAFIREFTA £/
A4 E UAEE

o  EAEMBHMESENRTRE A
RE-BHEVNFEERTHEE

e BEBEUMBMEENFI0N BB
MR ELRNFE 1R R BERB
BEERNFN2RETR F54
BH#E RALHRREMEREE
a2 W ARG



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

° HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

° HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

° HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

° HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011), Employee Benefits

° HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011), Separate Financial

Statements

° HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011), /nvestments in

Associates and Joint Ventures

° HK(IFRIC) — Int 20, Stripping costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

The Group has not applied any new HKFRS that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Except as described below, the application of other new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group's financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains amendments
to five standards with consequential amendments to other
HKFRS. Among them, HKAS 1 has been amended to clarify
that an opening statement of financial position is required
only when a retrospective application of an accounting
policy, a retrospective restatement or a reclassification
has a material effect on the information presented in the
opening statement of financial position. The amendments
also remove the requirement to present related notes to
the opening statement of financial position when such
statement is presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would be
reclassified to profit or loss in the future if certain conditions
are met from those that would never be reclassified to
profit or loss. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in these financial statements
has been modified accordingly. In addition, the Group has
chosen to use the new title “statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income” as introduced by the
amendments in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments introduce new disclosures in respect of
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. Those
new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with HKAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation and those that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or
similar agreement that covers similar financial instruments
and transactions, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set off in accordance with HKAS 32.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

The adoption of the amendments does not have an impact
on these financial statements because the Group has not
offset financial instruments, nor has it entered into master
netting arrangement or similar agreement which is subject
to the disclosures of HKFRS 7 during the periods presented.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It
introduces a single control model to determine whether an
investee should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
the ability to use its power to affect the amount of those
returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has
changed its accounting policy with respect to determining
whether it has control over an investee. The adoption does
not change any of the control conclusions reached by the
Group in respect of its involvement with other entities as at
1 January 2013.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11, which replaces HKAS 31, Interests in Joint
Ventures, divides joint arrangements into joint operations
and joint ventures. Entities are required to determine the
type of an arrangement by considering the structure, legal
form, contractual terms and other facts and circumstances
relevant to their rights and obligations under the
arrangement. Joint arrangements which are classified as
joint operations under HKFRS 11 are recognised on a line-
by-line basis to the extent of the joint operator’s interest
in the joint operation. All other joint arrangements are
classified as joint ventures under HKFRS 11 and are required
to be accounted for using the equity method in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed as an accounting policy
choice.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity's interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures required
by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than those
previously required by the respective standards. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the
Group has provided those disclosures in note 39.

HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs
with a single source of fair value measurement guidance.
HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure requirements
about fair value measurements for both financial
instruments and non-financial instruments. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group, the
Group has provided those disclosures in note 15 and 31. The
adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any material impact
on the fair value measurements of the Group's assets and
liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. ERA#MIIREENEFEME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING WMEHER ()
STANDARDS (Continued)
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011), Employee benefits BERAETEREINE (R=2F——
FEERT)  EBERF
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) introduces a number of ARG ERE 199 (RZT——FK
amendments to the accounting for defined benefit plans. BE ) HRAERMGE 2 €A EL %
Among them, revised HKAS 19 eliminates the “corridor BEFT - B KIET2EEGER
method” under which the recognition of actuarial gains and F1ORGIRREE] & IEEE]B
losses relating to defined benefit schemes could be deferred FFRERAE B BE W R RBER
and recognised in profit or loss over the expected average 1B B 2 TEEIER T T AR 7% 68 BRIR TN 70
remaining service lives of employees. Under the revised Bah R - RIBCBEI 2 2R FrE
standard, all actuarial gains and losses are required to be BE W R EEARE M2 W
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. iR - RIEFI BB G ERIFE195%
Revised HKAS 19 also changed the basis for determining MERETEEEEFRSZHFEWAZ
income from plan assets from expected return to interest A I HRI SRR B ERM IR ERET
income calculated at the liability discount rate, and requires HZHBWA - EmBFEES  JRAY
immediate recognition of past service cost, whether vested BN R AL B 2 AR T RS o
or not.
The application of this revised standard had no impact on JE A S AT R I S S AR SR (B 2 B 7%
the financial position and the financial results of the Group RS R S R AEER IR BAR
because the Group has no defined benefit plans. S = EAER AR E RN E
TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BEX#ERSBEH
(@) Turnover (a) ==
Turnover represents the net amounts received and EEHEERAMTPIEE|RS KA
receivable for the services rendered to customers ERPHEEmMmE YN RER R
and goods sold to customers. The amount of each EFE RNENEETRERZE
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover FTEWFRISEOT
during the year is as follows:
2013 2012
—B—-=F%¥ —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTF T
Funeral services provided in REBERE  BEER
funeral parlours and BEREH DR
funeral service centres under 2 BERS
the Group’s management 42,491 42,721
Cremation services NALBR % 12,093 11,332
Funeral arrangement services BiEL R 4,904 5,220
Cemetery services ZER® 3,618 2,483
Trading of raw marble BEEREARR - 11
63,106 61,767
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information

The Group manages its business by divisions, which
are organised by a mixture of business lines (products
and services) and geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Company’s executive directors (the
"Executive Directors”), the chief operating decision
maker, for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has presented
the following five reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)  Funeral services — Taiwan
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
both funeral services deed holders and non-
funeral services deed holders in Taiwan.

(i) Funeral services — Hong Kong
Provision of funeral arrangement services to
both funeral services deed holders and non-
funeral services deed holders in Hong Kong.

(iii)  Funeral services — the PRC

Provision of funeral, cremation and cemetery
services in funeral parlours and funeral
service centres in the PRC under the Group's
management, pursuant to respective
management agreements entered into with the
owners of funeral parlours and funeral service
centres, and provision of consultation services
to other funeral parlours and funeral service
centres.
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBX#HRSBEIHE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEER (&)

(iv) Funeral services — Vietnam
Sale of graves and provision of cemetery
maintenance services in Vietnam.

(v) Trading of raw marble
Trading of raw marble in Taiwan and the PRC.

Reporting of operating segment units have been
revised to conform to the latest business model of
the Group which newly includes the Funeral services
— Vietnam segment for the year ended 31 December
2013. This classification is reported on the same basis
as is used by management to analyse its business
performance.

The comparative information of the above has been
restated to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Executive Directors monitor the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include trade and other
payables, receipts in advance and current tax liabilities
attributable to the activities of the individual segments
and borrowings managed directly by the segments.

(iv) ZEERE A
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(b) Segment information (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Segment results represent the profit/(loss) earned/
(suffered) by each segment without allocation of
other revenue and other net (loss)/gain, central
administration costs, finance costs and income tax.
This is the measure reported to the Executive Directors
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment results, the Executive Directors
are provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income and expense from cash
balances and borrowings managed directly by
the segments, depreciation and amortisation, loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
impairment losses, reversal of impairment loss, gain
on disposal of subsidiaries, income tax expenses, loss
on derecognition of assets and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)
(Continued)
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBX#HRSBEIHE ()
(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Executive Directors for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 is set out below:

DEE R ()
ElREE T =K _Z
——®+-A=+—RHULEFEZ
BRI &GS B RIBARIT
EEREZARESBZERSH
FIGNR

(b)

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z-=ET-A=T-HLEE

Trading of
Funeral services raw marble Total
EE
RERE XERRH it
Taiwan Hong Kong PRC Vietnam
L Ei# HE ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTT AR®TRT AE®TR AEBTT AERRTR  AERTR
Reportable segment revenue REHH
~ Revenue from external customers *KE?\‘?%}EWX% 3,391 1,513 58,202 - - 63,106
Reportable segment loss RENHEE (2,947) (1,068) (897) (1,358) 2 (6,272)
Interest income LIELUN 4 - 161 4 - 169
Iterest expenses MERAX 24 - - - - 24
Depreciation and amortisation rEENEREH
for the year 220 316 4437 58 - 5,031
Loss on disposal of property, HENE BER
plant and equipment RECER 1,338 - 4,088 - - 5426
Impairment loss on BEEbRKEAERE
other receivables - - 486 - - 486
Reversal of impairment loss on EtERER 2 AEEE
other receivables - - 407 - - 407
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLA 2 WA - - 604 - - 604
Income tax expenses FEHAX - - 848 - - 848
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 176,355 954 53,991 31,965 3,714 266,979
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ RERREFFBH DEE
during the year 20 - 8,827 5933 - 14,780
Reportable segment liabilites TRESHEE 103,633 681 6,798 1,478 - 112,590
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)y DEHER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-F--F+-A-T-HLIEE

Trading of
Funeral services raw marble Total
BE
BERE REARK &t
Taiwan Hong Kong PRC Vietnam
aE Ek # #E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT  AR¥TR  AR%T:x
Reportable segment revenue ORED PhE
— Revenue from external customers -RENREFNRE 3451 1769 56,536 - 1 61,767
Reportable segment loss AREHHEE 2,518) (1,843) (11,827) (680) (682) (17,550)
Interest income FIEMA 3 - 108 2 - 113
Interest expenses FIERR 26 1 - - - 217
Depreciation and amortisation AEEREREH
for the year 215 342 3429 - 35 4,021
Loss on disposal of property, HENS BERREHE
plant and equipment - - 31 - - 31
Impairment loss on other receivables EtERET 2 HEER - - 760 - - 760
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARNE - - - - 734 734
Income tax expenses FERAY - - 1,224 - - 1,224
Loss on derecognition of assets MERABEZBE - - 11,275 - - 11,275
Reportable segment assets URENPEE 202,406 1,289 46919 8,130 4,398 263,142
Additions to non-current segment assets ~ RERFEF RN BEE
during the year 769 29 5,658 - 28 6,484
Reportable segment liabilities RENBEE 115,356 484 7,649 81 116 123,686

There are no inter-segment sales during the year

(2012: Nil).

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

FoEE)

REFFESBREBEE (ZF—=



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBX#HRSBEIHE ()
(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)y DHER (E&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, W& T e e B EE B
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items EREMER 4R
2013 2012
—B—-=F%¥ —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TR ARBEF T
Revenue I &
Total reportable segment revenue  AI ¥R & 75 2 U s A8 5B &
and consolidated turnover e 63,106 61,767
Profit or loss "
Total reportable segment loss REBIINTEEFEEZ
derived from Group’s external Al o EE IR A
customers (6,272) (17,550)
Other revenue H s 1,628 1,540
Other net (loss)/gain HbF (B518) W (1,856) 5,502
Finance costs A& KA (346) (237)
Unallocated head office and ROBBHRAFHAEZ
corporate expenses
— Depreciation and — T E R
amortisation (988) (418)
— Auditors’ remuneration —IZ BN 2 (1,094) (1,120)
— Legal and professional fee —EEREXER (1,018) (2,080)
— Staff cost (including —BIKA(BE
directors’ remuneration) EEWe) (4,476) (8,587)
— Operating lease charges: —EHE
minimum lease payments SRBEENREE (377) (436)
— Equity-settled share-based —LARR A B AR 10
payment expenses S A NE N ba (287) (761)
— Others —Efh (880) (4,418)
Consolidated loss before taxation 4R & K Fi A& 18 (15,966) (28,565)
Assets "E
Total reportable segment assets ~ AJ ¥R D EBE E B HE 266,979 263,142
Unallocated head office and ROBBERAREE
corporate assets
— Pledged bank deposits —BHEARITER - 17,869
- Cash and cash equivalents -RekReFED 30,836 55,838
— Prepayments —TEfT5RIE 731 783
— Property, plant and —E BEKEE
equipment 3,355 7,645
— Others —EAih 487 718
Consolidated total assets IREBERRE 302,388 345,995
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

4. ERVRIBEH ()

DEBER (&

H#RESE W Em EE B

profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items EREMELSZ$ M (&)
(Continued)
2013 2012
—=_=g —=——f&
RMB’000 RMB'000
IN:1 &5 ARBFT
Liabilities =L
Total reportable segment AmEs A ERS
liabilities 112,590 123,686
Unallocated head office and KoRBEIRAFEE
corporate liabilities
— Bank borrowings —HRITEE - 10,073
— Others —HAth 3,178 1,942
Consolidated total liabilities IREBEEE 115,768 135,701

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue,

A#RE DB Wz 1Bz HE B

profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items EREMER 4K
2013 2012
—E—Z=%f —ET -5
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ABR®TRT ARETT
Other items HttIgE
Interest income FEHA
Reportable segment total ARED R 169 113
Unallocated head office and R Be4a 3l &
corporate total NGIFRE 1,236 506
Consolidated total RE 1R 1,405 619
Interest expenses FEMZ
Reportable segment total BE R FE 234 227
Unallocated head office and ﬂi A i 42 5B &
corporate total NSIFEEE] 112 10
Consolidated total AR 346 237
Depreciation and amortisation e R
Reportable segment total BIE R F 5,031 4,021
Unallocated head office and RAOMBHB R
corporate total UNSIFCEE] 988 418
Consolidated total AR 6,019 4,439

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

4. EXBRIBEH (M)

The following is an analysis of geographical location
of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments, intangible assets and deposits
for hire of funeral parlours and funeral services
centres. The geographical location of customers refers
to the location at which the services were provided
or the goods delivered. The geographical locations
of property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease
payments and deposits for hire of funeral parlours
and funeral services centres are based on the physical
location of the assets under consideration. In the
case of intangible assets, it is based on the location
of the operation to which these intangible assets are
allocated.

(b) Segment information (Continued) (b)y DHER (E&)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, H#HESD Wz 1B HE B
profit or loss, assets, liabilities and other items EREMEE %5 (&)
(Continued)
2013 2012
ot 2 —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEF T
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BER
plant and equipment RiEEE
Reportable segment total BE R F 5,426 31
Unallocated head office and RoBBE R
corporate total NCIFER - 75
Consolidated total RE KRR 5,426 106
Additions to non-current RERNREZ
segment assets during the EmE D HEE
year
Reportable segment total AIRE D B4R 14,780 6,484
Unallocated head office and RoBI R
corporate total NAERE 66 7,669
Consolidated total e L 14,846 14,153
Geographical information HEEH

TERDBEBOARBERBIRE
Pz RiVAKEZYE  BE
KE&tm ANHEERR BEEE
MERBEEENRBEEREBHLLZ
BEME 2 BRI - TP 2P
xR R R AR E
FriEst - MR B S ik s~ B
MENKEHBEESE LB ER
B b2 & 2 Pt = DA A B
BEMREMRMESEE : HRE
WEE  AIAZERIEENALZ
EBE RELE-
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4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EBXHRSBEIHE (1)

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)
Geographical information (Continued)

(b)

Revenue from
external customers
RENRERKS
2013

DEBER ()
HEELH (E)

Non-current assets

FRDEE

2012 2013 2012

—g2-=5 —T-CF —g2-=5 —T-_F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREFT ARBTR AEETT

The PRC (place of domicile) B (Fr7Ei) 58,202 56,547 30,763 32,877
Taiwan =) 3,391 3,451 25,515 29,129
Hong Kong B 1,513 1,769 563 1,049
Vietnam HE - - 8,592 348
4,904 5,220 34,670 30,526
63,106 61,767 65,433 63,403
Revenue from major product and services TEERRRBE WKz
2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Funeral services provided in REBEER  BRERR
funeral parlours and BERBH OIS
funeral service centres under BERTE
the Group’s management 42,491 42,721
Cremation services NAERR 7% 12,093 11,332
Funeral arrangement services BELHRT 4,904 5,220
Cemetery services ZERBE 3,618 2,483
Trading of raw marble BEAREARERM - 11
63,106 61,767
Information about major customers FEEFEH

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
revenue from any single external customer does not
amount to 10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 5. Rtk R HMB (&5R)
(LOSS)/GAIN
2013 2012
—E—=%F -
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREF T
Other revenue Hfthlr 2
Interest income on bank deposits RITHF R HE
WA 1,405 609
Interest income on coupon bonds M EEHFB
WA - 10
Total interest income on financial I IR AN FEA
assets not at BaRsMBEEZ
fair value through profit or loss FEW AR 1,405 619
Sundry income HEIFULA 212 909
Rental income G ON 11 12
1,628 1,540
Other net (loss)/gain Hg (58) e
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S B A 7 E
(note 33) (B3E33) 604 734
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE &
and equipment ZEEE (5.426) (106)
Surplus on revaluation of land and BIEERAZ R
buildings held for own use BFEHAHR 476 117
Net exchange (loss)/gain PE N (E518) e
HER (1,460) 2,657
Net gain/(loss) on foreign exchange SNERHA W
forward contracts (B#E)F8E 1,002 (87)
Net gain on terminated and lapsed ERIERKRR 2
funeral services deeds B EIR TG LY
R E 155 558
Net realised and unrealised gain on EEREATE
financial assets designated as at ARG
fair value through profit or loss BEZBERK
REIR W HER 2,386 1,629
Reversal of impairment loss on 1 [0 H b JE W 3R IB
other receivables 2 REEE 407 -
(1,856) 5,502
(228) 7,042
FEEDEEERAT —T-=ZFF§



Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2—ZF—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRIRAEGIR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) BRELBTES B &R, (5FA) T8
the followings: Big&EETE:
2013 2012
—B—-=%F —g—-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETF T
(a) Finance costs (a) MERF
Interests on bank borrowings RITIEEREM
and other loan BERZAE
— wholly repayable —BRAFNA
within 5 years BHEE 167 40
— not wholly repayable —BERAEFRN
within 5 years BHERE 179 196
Finance charges on obligation BEMEEAEZ
under finance lease BmEEH - 1
Total interest expenses on NIZESYNSSEE N
financial liabilities not at B WBaRE
fair value through profit or VPN D
loss 346 237
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank STETRITEE (BRERTE
borrowings, including bank loans which contain a FOZRMEKAKN HPBEESREE
repayment on demand clause, in accordance with the X Vhh i P 19 E 5T &I (B R B BRI
agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in the loan BERERZGH -BE_ZT—=F
agreements. For the years ended 31 December 2013 MZZTE——F+ZH=+—H1
and 2012, the interest on bank borrowings which FE  BEREREEGR R
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to BEZFED R H AR #25,000
RMB25,000 and RMB 10,000 respectively. TR ARH10,0007T °
2013 2012
—2—-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARKETF T
(b) Staff costs (including (b) EIRFE (8
directors’ remuneration) EFHE)
Salaries, wages and other He IER
benefits H 48 F 17,899 20,276
Equity-settled share-based VAR R 45 IR A7
payment expenses REME 2 K
< 115 705
Contributions to defined TR HRURIK
contribution retirement plans ETEIH R 1,894 1,856
19,908 22,837
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6. BRIRRIESIN (#8)

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

2013 2012
—E—-=f g
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREF T
() Other items (¢ EHMIFH
Amortisation of prepaid lease SCENREN RN € c)
payments 82 14
Auditors' remuneration ZEE & 1,094 1,120
Cost of inventories FERA 9,572 8,692
Depreciation e
— assets held for own use —EHMERE
under finance leases FEB A
ZEE - 4
— other assets —HEiEE 5,937 4,421
5,937 4,425
Operating lease charges: MERET - &K
minimum lease payments MEN KR
— rented premises N/ ES 902 1,294
Less: sub-leasing rental B EiEE
income PN (11) (12)
891 1,282
— hire of plant and equipment —HAmE &
B 180 336
— hire of funeral parlours and —HAREER
funeral service centres BERE
20N 6,700 6,125
Operating lease charges: KEREER A
contingent rents Me
— hire of funeral parlours and —MHRABEEER
funeral service centres B
== 7.734 7,500
Impairment loss on Hit fEER K 2
other receivables REEE 486 760
Loss on derecognition of assets BUBHREEZ
(note (i) BE (MEE)) - 11,275
Equity-settled share-based R EEE R D B
payment expenses BRI AZ 287 761
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6.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Note:

(0

This comprise of (i) compensation loss; and (ii) loss arising
from the derecognition of property, plant and equipment and
prepayments for repair and maintenance and consumables
upon the termination of operation of An Fu Tang Funeral
Service Centre (Z@E/AEH L) (“An Fu Tang”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

On 3 February 2010, a management agreement was entered
into between Chongging Xibao Funeral Technology Company
Limited (“Chongging Xibao") and Chongging An Fu Funeral
Services Limited (the “An Fu Owner”) and supplemental
management agreement was entered into between
Chongging Xibao and the An Fu Owner on 28 February
2011 concerning the management of An Fu Tang (collectively
“An Fu Tang Management Agreements”). Pursuant to the
An Fu Tang Management Agreements, the duration for the
management of An Fu Tang is five years from 1 March 2010
to 28 February 2015. During the tenure of the An Fu Tang
Management Agreements, Chongging Xibao is entitled to all
profits generated from the provision of funeral services and
is responsible for all the losses and expenses incurred for the
provision of such services and is required to pay a deposit and
annual management fee to the An Fu Owner.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the directors of
the Group reassessed the performance of the An Fu Tang
and considered that due to the continuing loss-making of
An Fu Tang, it is of the Group's best interest to terminate the
management of An Fu Tang and accordingly the Group can
allocate its financial and operational resources with improved
efficiency to other operating units within the Group.
Furthermore, the directors of the Group considered that the
freed up resources enable the Group to seek other profitable
business opportunities to further enhance the operations,
financial condition and results of the Group.

Accordingly, on 15 June 2012, a rescission agreement and
a settlement were entered into between Chongging Xibao
and the An Fu Owner, pursuant to which the An Fu Tang
Management Agreements were terminated with effect from
31 May 2012. As a result, Chongging Xibao has ceased
the management of the operations of An Fu Tang. After
the further discussion and negotiations among the An Fu
Owner and Chongging Xibao, a supplemental settlement was
agreed between Chongging Xibao and the An Fu Owner on
31 December 2012 as the final and conclusive settlement,
pursuant to which the prepaid deposit, unutilised prepaid
annual management fee and the receivable due by the An Fu
Owner to Chongging Xibao was waived by Chongging Xibao
as a compensation to the An Fu Owner due to the early
termination of the An Fu Tang Management Agreements. The
total loss on derecognition of assets of RMB11,275,000 was
included in “other operating expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. FelEaREMMEZAEKEE

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND RZ R
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2013 2012
—E—=Ff —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEF T
Provision of current tax for the year NFERVEATE TR B
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — BRI
(note (c)) (B &E)) 848 1,087
848 1,087
Under-provision of current tax in B ERNEAT IR
prior years T
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FR BRI ERET - 137
- 137
848 1,224
Notes: Bt 3 -
(@)  No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the (@ HBHRFAEEREE_ZT—=F1+=A

Group has no assessable profits in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMBNIil).

(b)  The Group is not subject to any taxation under the (b)
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands, Samoa and the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI"”) for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: RMBNIil).

() The subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to enterprise (@
income tax rate at 25% (2012: 25%) in accordance with the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprises Income
Tax (REAR LTI B RS HE) except that Chongging
Xizhou Funeral Service Company Limited (“Chongqing
Xizhou"), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for the
enterprise income tax in accordance with FAE[ AR & (2
FTSFi{E =, which is retrospectively applied to Chongging
Xizhou from January 2011 and, provided that the conditions
precedent to entitlement of preferential tax rate are fulfilled
by Chongging Xizhou in each of subsequent years, the
preferential tax rate can be applied to Chongging Xizhou up
to December 2020. For the year ended 31 December 2013,
Chongging Xizhou is subject to enterprise income tax rate at
15% (2012: 15%).

E+—H¢¢FIME§/ EEE
JERDEM (—F— 4 }\EV#’ET
TT) - OB B BRI B

FEERBE_ZT—=F+_H
=St-RALFERRAGMNFESES
BECHENABRIHES ([KEE
LEE]) AERR ZEMNHEA(ZF
——FARETT) -

NP 2B RARBIRPEAR
HMBCEMBREZ CEAERE
5%(_:—_¢ 25% ) #AFL - HEAR
AAZHEEEENBAREER AR
ZERBERAT ([EEHA]) ATRE
S ARRABECEMESHRERIRCER
SHEEHRIS%HTE MABES
REE -_ZT——F—ARYEEHE
BYEB EEESEIRNERSE
ERITZEHERBE 2 5RIEMH A
BERRINEBEE_T-_TF+= ﬁ
DERREESGE- E/\@i— =
F+ZA=+—RHULEFE" E%%ﬂ
BRIS%TEMSHRE(ZE—=
fF115% ) T o
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7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. S EBaRHEt2ZHKESE

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND NZEhRi (&)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued) MisE: (&)

(d)  Bau Shan Life Science Technology Co., Ltd. (“Bau Shan"”), a (d) ARBEENBATEILAGRER

direct subsidiary of the Company, and Bao De Life Enterprise
Co., Ltd. ("Bao De"), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
are subject to Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax at 17% on
taxable profits determined in accordance with the Income
Tax Act and other relevant laws in Taiwan. No provision for
Taiwan Enterprise Income Tax has been made as Bau Shan
and Bao De sustained losses for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: RMBNIl).

(e)  Bao Son Life Company Limited (“Bao Son Life”) and Hoan (e)
Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation (“HLV Duc Hoa"), indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are subject
to Vietnam Corporate Income Tax at 25% and 20%,
respectively, on taxable profits determined in accordance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Vietnam. No provision for
Vietnam Corporate Income Tax has been made as Bao Son
Life and HLV Duc Hoa have no assessable profits for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMBNil).

(f) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss at (f)
applicable tax rates:

MAERRB (EW]) RARBME
MBAREEESEERNER QT
([Ef])ARBAEMETUEREAM
ABDER R ERTURE N E17 %8N
EEMEH-BRBEILREEREE
T =F+ZA=+—HILFER
B EE SEREELNEMA
BEERBSHREE(ZT—ZF A
RBZT) -

RRRZ HEREEMBLRRIE L
S EEARAA ([BAdw]) R
Hoan Loc Viet Duc Hoa Corporation
(THLV Duc Hoa |) ZE Rt AR #2 #5 F 48 B
FERMOERETE 2 ERTE 9D Al
1225% N 20%7 R S i LR 1 E PR AS
Tt o BB AN B I A& & X HLV Duc Hoai
HEZZ—=F+-A=+—HLF
JE 30 4% JE SR s A - Lt B
ERHECEMAEHER(Z2—=
FrAREZRL) -

BERBREFEZ R RGBS
Bz 8k

2013 2012

—E—=F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TTT ARBFIT

Loss before taxation BRELATEE (15,966) (28,565)
Notional tax on loss before taxation,  1ZBBIE+ERE R AR ES
calculated at the rates applicable to Bz EANEGTER

loss in the tax jurisdictions concerned it A& 18 2 & & Hi 18 (3,653) (6,710)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A 400 2 B S 2 IS 2 2 4,231 7,218

Tax effect of non-taxable income BAZRBBAZ BB E (777) (609)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERREARBEIRZ

recognised MR 2 1,080 1,294

Under-provision in prior years MEFERET R - 137

Others B (33) (106)

Actual tax expense ERBIERY 848 1,224
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

8. EEHM

Director's remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of REEBLEENE161EATHE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: EEHMOT
2013
—2-=f
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and Discretionary scheme based
Name of directors 3.2 Fees allowances bonuses contributions  Sub-total payment Total
BRT WK
it FERAW  BEEL  HBHR bt BERMR #it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTRT AE®TR AE®TR AEWTR ARWTR ARWTR ARKTR
Executive directors HITEE
M. Liu Tien-Tsai Ny 951 241 64 - 1,256 - 1,256
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBRLE 190 627 - - 817 3 820
M. Ting Yung-Chieh TRERE 285 1,046 - 7 1,338 - 1,338
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai BRBEE 56 - - - 56 - 56
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-REE 56 - - - 56 - 56
Mr. Lee Koon Hung FEAEE 56 - - - 56 - 56
1,594 1914 64 1 3,579 3 3,582
2012
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-
and  Discretionary scheme based
Name of directors 524 Fees  allowances bonuses ~ contributions Sub-total payment Total
RAER SARR {3
#e FEREH  BREL  EMX it BRERER e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR ARETT AREBTT ARETT AREFT ARETR
Executive directors HITEE
M. Liu Tien-Tsai el 976 2,632 32 - 3,640 - 3,640
Mr. Kim Eun Back SEBRA 195 116 - - 311 68 379
M. Ting Yung-Chieh (appointed on TRExE (RZF-ZF
30 September 2012) NAZTREZE) 73 335 - 6 414 - 414
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Niu Tse-Cheng (resigned on BAGEEE (R=F—2F
30 September 2012) NA=+AREE) 45 - - - 45 - 45
Mr. Zheng Yimin (resigned on -Rifk (R-F-ZF
30 September 2012) NAZ+REF) 61 35 - - 9% - 96
Independent non-executive directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Chai Chung Wai EREEE 57 - - - 57 - 57
Mr. Ching Clement Yat-biu B-REE 57 - - - 57 - 57
Mr. Lam Ying Hung Andy (resigned on ~ MES%4 (R=5—=%F
30 September 2012) NAZ+REF) 73 - - - 73 - 73
Mr. Lee Koon Hung (appointed on FEAKE (RZF-ZF
30 September 2012) NA=+REZME) 14 - - - 14 - 14
Mr. Luo Xuegang (resigned on BEBRE(RIT-ZF
30 September 2012) NA=Z+AREE) 43 - - - 43 - 43
1,594 3,118 32 6 4,750 68 4818
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8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8.

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any
of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

As at 31 December 2013, the director held share options
under the Company’s share option scheme. The details of
the share options are disclosed in note 40.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 0.
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2012: two) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2012: three) individuals are as follows:

EEHM ()

HE_Z—=FfR-_FT——F+—-A
=+ AIEFE AREBMEEENE
EEFH NEBETMEREANESS
ek B HBAE B INA S I AR E
B 22E) - SEABEEREE(E -

W-E-=F+-A=1—0 %EF
R A 2 R A T 8178 T A0 R -
AR 2 3 15 14 M KR40 -

EETWAL

AR REERRHFALEE=S (=%
—ZF WB)ESE  HFN M TS
B oHHMB (ZE——F:Z8)&.
FALZHBmT

2013 2012
—E—Z=fF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETFIT
Salaries, allowances and e R R EMER
other benefits 985 1,228
Discretionary bonuses 15 TE4L 50 35
Equity-settled share-based payment &% # 4% & LA IR 1H A AR
2R 24 150
Contributions to RRE GBI
retirement benefit scheme 12 14
1,071 1,427
The emoluments of the two (2012: three) individuals with WME(ZE——F  ZR)&ReHFALZ
the highest emoluments are within the following band: RN T T EE
2013 2012
—g—-= —E-CF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AB N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,0008 7T (#E R
(equivalent to RMB793,000 A R#793,0007T
(2012: RMB813,000) (ZE—=—4%:
AR #813,0007T) ) 2 3
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10.

1.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9.
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the two (2012: three) highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

EEFAL ()

HEZ—=FF=-_FT—=-F+=H
—T+—BHIEFERN AEEBERER
MEH(ZE——F R )&EaFALTX
RN ESINE=T TSy IPNEAIl
AREE R 2 25 ERBREEE -

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME 10. i 2 (E5#8) WA

Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive (loss)/income are as follows:

2013
—g5-=K
Tax
Before-tax (expense)/
amount benefit
it

BRomeE (A%)/BR
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AERTR

BEREM2E (BER),WAE DA
BBREWT

2012
—E-CF
Tax
Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount amount benefit amount
i3

BR%eE  BRIeE (B)/EE BhkeE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTE  ARMTL  ARETR  ARETR

Surplus on revaluation of RBEERZ I

land and buildings held for REFIER

own use B% 416 - 416 580 - 580
Exchange differences on BEFPREHK

translation of financial statements 2B H %

of non-PRC operations JERES (6,623) - (6,623) (385) - (385)
Other comprehensive (loss)income ~ EA 2 (F8) /A (6,207) - (6,207) 195 - 195
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 11. ZAFBEB AELEE

COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of RMB22,289,000 (2012:
RMB53,052,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

RARHAARLGAEBEREER
AARZHBHREPARZEEAR
22,289,000 (ZE——_F: AR
53,052,0007T ) ©
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12. LOSS PER SHARE

(@)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB16,175,000 (2012: RMB29,487,000) and the
weighted average of 742,500,000 ordinary shares
(2012: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue during
the year.

Diluted loss per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options had anti-dilutive
effect on the basic loss per share amounts presented.
Therefore, the calculation of the diluted loss per share
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the
Company of RMB16,175,000 (2012: RMB29,487,000)
and the weighted average of 742,500,000 ordinary
shares (2012: 742,500,000 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

13. DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMBNIil).
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14. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group’s PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries are
required to participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme administrated and operated by the local
municipal government. The Group’s PRC and Vietnam
subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
scheme based on certain percentage of the relevant portion
of the payroll of all qualifying employees in accordance with
the relevant regulations in the PRC and Vietnam respectively
and are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

The Group is also required to participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes administered and
operated by Bureau of Labour Insurance of Taiwan for
employees employed in Taiwan. Under the scheme, the
employers are required to make contributions to the scheme
at 6% of the employees’ relevant income. Contributions to
the schemes vest immediately.

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme")
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan managed by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earning as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from each of the
employer and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,250
per month (HK$1,000 prior to June 2012) and thereafter
contributions are voluntary. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

14. Rk iEFIsHE

AEERELBEHBARRREASZE
M7 BT & IR R R 2 ERR TR
PRABHIGT &I o AN SR E 2 o B K% 4 R f /8
REVZED RIREF B N AR R -
wEMaBREEFHIMER N TR
MZETHEDLHEEL MK ¥R
EERtFA B MEMEEREERA
OBk -

AEBETERRGERBZEESHE
ABLTRBRBERERES 2 M
BRREFETE - RIFFT 8- BRERZE
BB A 2 6% At EIFHH5K - 518

HRENES BB o

B

7

REBCIRBEBEBIED Z AARER
BEEBEEIMEAR TGO LR
FrEAZEAREEMAGRIMATESET
gl ([wEestal]) B EAE
HETERARE BB ETEAETRE-
BERESE M AEEHEIE
WREAEE (BRE)MEEESAZA
B AREBIRA Z5%M At EI1EH #
HoEBEREES A HFIA,2508 T
(R=F—=F/XAHI1,00087T) 5t
PR SAIEB MK 5T IR ENR
E °
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14. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(Continued)

Law of the PRC on Employment Contracts (the
“Employment Contract Law") was adopted by the Standing
Committee of the National People’s Congress of the PRC in
2007 and became effective on 1 January 2008. Compliance
with the requirements under the Employment Contract
Law, in particular, the requirement of severance payment
and non-fixed term employment contracts, will increase the
Group's labour costs.

Pursuant to the Employment Contract Law, the PRC
subsidiaries are required to enter into non-fixed term
employment contract with employees who has worked for
the employer for more than 10 years or for whom a fixed
term employment has been concluded for 2 consecutive
terms. The employer is required to make severance payment
to the employee when the term of the employment contract
expires unless the employee voluntarily terminate the
contract or voluntarily reject the offer to renew the contract
in which the terms are no worse off than the terms of other
employment contracts available to him/her. The severance
payment will be equal to the monthly wages times the
number of full years that the employee has been working
for the employer. The minimum wages requirement has also
been imposed. Fines will be imposed for any breach of the
Employment Contract Law.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment
of retirement benefits associated with the retirement benefit
schemes beyond the contribution described above.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. M -BERRE

(@) The Group (@) AE&EHE
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value ~ improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#HkEER
ERAFEE
4 R RER
THREF HERE  BOZRG RE ERIE i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT  AR¥ETR  ARETT  ARETRT  ARET:
Cost or valuation BFHMHE
At 1 January 2012 R-Z--%5-F-H 26,737 9,353 4,360 4229 6,057 50,736
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEREEZ T E

differences 889 8 (16) 0] 3 867
Additions NE 2,300 863 4,591 576 - 8330
Construction expenditure capitalised TiER% - - - - 8,123 8,123
Transfers B - 2,035 - - (2,035) -
Disposals HeE - (57) (28) (156) (166) (407)
Derecognised on disposal of HEHBARBIUERS

subsidiaries (note 33) (Fi5E33) - - (755) (294) - (1,049)
Derecognised on termination of FILEERRERRAER

operation of An Fu Tang (P3E6(0)))

(note 6(c)(i) - (156) (161) - - (317)
Surplus on revaluation ERRY 697 - - - - 697
Less: Elimination of accumulated W RHTESH

depreciation (182) - - - - (182)

At 31 December 2012 WZE-ZF+ZA=+-H 30,441 12,030 7,991 4,354 11,982 66,798

Representing: Bp:

Cost A - 12,030 7,991 4,354 11,982 36,357

Valuation - 2012 - CEfE 30,441 - - - - 30,441

30,441 12,030 7,991 4,354 11,982 66,798

At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F—-F-H 30,441 12,030 7,991 4,354 11,982 66,798
Effect of foreign currency exchange SNEEREEHE

differences (1,577) (53) (157) (46) (105) (1,938)
Additions "E - 175 551 1,875 - 2,601
Construction expenditure capitalised TEM% - - - - 12,245 12,245
Reclassification from development BERRRUMAENHE

and formation costs (note 19) (Fi5E19) 2,641 - - - - 2,641
Transfers E L - 9,350 4,080 - (13,430) -
Disposals e (2,768) (1,760) - (356) (5,540) (10424)
Surplus on revaluation BB 892 - - - - 892
Less: Elimination of accumulated W R TEHS

depreciation (220 - - - - (220)

At 31 December 2013 RZ-=%+-A=1+-8 29,409 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 72,595
Representing: B

Cost A - 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 43,186

Valuation - 2013 “Z-CERE 29,409 - - - - 29,409

29,409 19,742 12,465 5827 5,152 72,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2—ZF—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥¥ -BERRMW (1)

(Continued)
(@) The Group (Continued) (a) &EE (&)
Land and
buildings
held for Furniture,
own use fixtures and
carried at Leasehold office Motor  Construction
fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
#HEER
LRAFE
il +4 R’i-RER
THEET BERE WAERGE RE ERIE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Accumulated depreciation and RHFERFEESR
impairment loss

At 1 January 2012 R-Z2-—%-f-H - 4191 1532 1,303 166 7,192
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEREBI Y E

differences 1 3) 30 3 - 31
Charge for the year FRZM 181 2,623 842 779 - 4,425
Elimination on disposals of assets HERERNHE - (57) (22) (19) (166) (264)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries &K B2 BB &4

(note 33) (Hi#33) - - (@) (56) - (97)
Derecognised on termination of FIHBERRERIUERER

operation of An Fu Tang (BizE6(0)))

(note 6(c)(i) - (84) (89) - - (173)
Elimination on revaluation BRRHH (182) - - - - (182)
At 31 Decerber 2012 R-Z-—£+-f=1-8 - 6670 2252 2010 - 10932
At 1 January 2013 WZE-=4-f-H - 6,670 2,252 2,010 - 10,932
Effect of foreign currency exchange NEEREREZE

differences @) (24) (49) (5 - (82)
Charge for the year ERT M 24 2,726 2,021 966 - 5,937
Elimination on disposals of assets HERENHE - (1,760) - (190) - (1,950)
Elimination on revaluation Edrgiaage] (220) - - - - (220)
At 31 December 2013 WZE-Z5+-A=1+-8 - 7612 4224 2,781 - 14,617

Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2013 RIE-ZE+-A=1-H 29,409 12,130 8,241 3,046 5,152 57,978
At 31 December 2012 WZE-—%+-A=1+-8 30,441 5,360 5,739 2,344 11,982 55,866
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% BB R (#8)

(Continued)
(b) The Company (b)y A&AF
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold office Motor
improvements equipment vehicles Total
il RER
HERE N RE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T ARETF T ARETF T ARETF T
Cost %3
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—F—H 10 73 132 215
Effect of foreign currency INEEH =52 T2
exchange differences - (31 - (31
Additions NE - 3,465 - 3,465
Disposals & (10) (73) (132) (215)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F
+-A=+—H - 3,434 - 3,434
At 1 January 2013 W-Z—=%—A—H - 3,434 - 3,434
Effect of foreign currency INEEH =52 T2
exchange differences - (105) - (105)
Additions NE - 60 - 60
At 31 December 2013  R=-ZE—Z=%F+=A
=+—H = 3,389 - 3,389
Accumulated RIREREGR
depreciation and
impairment loss
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——%—A—H 5 29 12 46
Effect of foreign currency SNEEH =52 T2
exchange differences - ) - )
Charge for the year FRZH - 173 6 179
Elimination on disposals & & ZEE 4 8
of assets (5) (29) (18) (52)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——F
+-A=+—H - 172 - 172
At 1 January 2013 R-ZFE—=%—A—H - 172 - 172
Effect of foreign currency INEEH =82 F 2
exchange differences - (15) - (15)
Charge for the year FRZH - 683 - 633
At 31 December 2013 R-ZT—=F
+-A=+—H - 840 - 840
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2013 HRZT—=F
+-A=+-"H - 2,549 - 2,549
At 31 December 2012  RZZE——F
+-A=+—H - 3,262 - 3,262

TELEBEERRLE —E-ZFFR

129



Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2—ZF—=F+-_A=+—HILFE

130

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

() Had the revalued properties held for own use been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the

15. Mk -BE R (&)

() MHFIFERZEER[METIAK
AR R EHITE DI AR - B E K 40

carrying amounts would have been: Ik
The Group
F5KE
2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARET T
Land and buildings T RETF 25,057 28,382

(d) Fair value measurement of properties

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties

(Continued)

15. Y% BB R (#8)

(d) MEZAVEFE (&)

2013, there were no transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

All of the Group’s freehold land and
buildings held for own use were revalued
as at 31 December 2013. The valuations
were carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being
valued. The Group's financial controller
has discussion with the surveyors on the
valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at
each interim and annual reporting date.

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RFEER (B
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured . F-EHE:FAT
using significant unobservable inputs AEBERBIEEEEH
NEUFTEZ ATE
Fair value at
31 December
2013 Fair value measurements as at
RZE-= 31 December 2013 categorised into
+=R Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
=+-H R-B-Z§+ZAZ+-He
FANE | AFEHERER
R F-R |
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
AERTR AER%TR ARMTR  ARWTR
The Group 350
Recurring fair value BERLTENE
measurement
Freehold land and KAZETH
buildings - Taiwan REF-RE 24,564 - - 24,564
Freehold land - Vietnam kA ERE T —HE 2,601 - - 2,601
Buildings - The PRC BF-+ 2,244 - - 2,244
29,409 - - 29,409
During the year ended 31 December REzEz—_Z—=

+=ZA=+—AHLtF
B B EHE_EZ
R s R I
ZEBEANE L o RE
B 2R ANEEE
BZRERRERD
FEBREH-

RZE—=F+=A
=+t—H FAEALAE
EEBEER KA
XEIHEEFEE
& o (HEBREIFTA
SMZESEBFGHE
MRAEETT  HE bl
HEMERELRY
XERAOBHEER
BoAESRAHEF
ElEEBHHETHE
B AEEBEED
BB R A A ER
BREEER-
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties

(Continued)

(ii) Information about Level 3 fair value

15. Mk -BE R (&)

(d) ¥Mx=zDVEE (&)

(i) BHEE=FLFHEIEZE

measurements #

Valuation Unobservable
techniques input Range
{5 {E B FUBRCHE #®E
Freehold land and buildings — Taiwan ~ Direct comparison Property-specific 5% to
approach adjusting rate 50%
KAXETHRET-RE BELBE MERTRER 5%%E
50%
Freehold land - Vietnam Direct comparison Property-specific 5% to
approach adjusting rate 40%
KAERE L - BELBE MERTRER S5%%E
40%
Buildings — The PRC Direct comparison Property-specific 5% to
approach adjusting rate 20%
BT -TH BELBE WRETEHER S%ZE
20%

The fair value of properties held for own use
located in Taiwan, Vietnam and the PRC is
determined using direct comparison approach
by reference to the market price of comparable
properties and adjusted for building quality and
timing of the reference transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)
The movements during the period in
the balances of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

15. Y% BB R (#8)

(d)

M2 NPHERE (&)

(i) BHE=FAFEFEZH
# ()
B LS EATES
BEBEDMT

Freehold
land and Freehold
buildings land Buildings
- Taiwan - Vietnam - The PRC Total
kAKE kARE
THREF it #¥
-/ - —-f it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT ARBFT AREFT
At 1 January 2013 R-F-=f-A-H 28,149 - 2,292 30,441
Depreciation charge for the year ~ AFEHTERH T (176) - (48) (224)
Redlassification from development {1 B33 Jo ik S Ak A
and formation costs EX b - 2,641 - 2,641
Effect of foreign currency INBERZENTE
exchange differences (1,533) (40) - (1,573)
Disposals HESE (2,768) - - (2,768)
Surplus on revaluation EfHBH
~ recognised in other -REMREKRER
comprehensive income 416 - - 416
— recognised in profit or loss ~REEER 476 - - 476
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+ZA=1+—H 24,564 2,601 2,244 29,409
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(d) Fair value measurement of properties
(Continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The revaluation surplus of RMB416,000 (2012:
RMB580,000) and surplus of RMB476,000
(2012: RMB117,000) have been recognised
in other comprehensive (loss)/income and
accumulated in properties revaluation reserve
and loss for the year, which is included in
the line item “other net (loss)/gain” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, respectively.

Effect of foreign currency exchange differences
of properties held for own use are recognised in
other comprehensive (loss)/income in “foreign
currency translation reserve”.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the
year arise from the properties held at the end of
the reporting period.

(e) The analysis of carrying amounts of freehold land and

15. Mk -BE R (&)

(d) ¥Mx=zDVEE (&)

(1)

BEE=FBAFHETEZE
B (E)
EHAHKAREAL16,000
T(ZE—ZF AR
580,0007T) K & #4 AR
476,000T (ZE——F : A
R#117,0007T) 2 BIA H A
2| (B18) KR
Ry EEHRERFRESR
2FTATAGZRE B REM
PERERZ [EMmF (&
B) WS —#e

RAFBRZMEZINEE
RERZZEN [ERLRE]
TzHEazE(ER) K

R o

FrARFAIEm R 2 Wt
BRABRERRFTBEZY
%O

(e) BEIXKAXRELHMEE FBEY

buildings thereon is as follows: BFEREmEI TN :
The Group
KM=
2013 2012
—E—Z=fF —ET—CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARKETF T
In Taiwan and Vietnam =V P E ]

Land and Buildings T RETF 27,165 28,149
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% BB R (#8)

(Continued)
(f)  The analysis of carrying amounts of prepaid lease (f) BENEENREMEEEFREE
payments and buildings thereon is as follows: SHAT
The Group
x5KH
2013 2012
—E—=%f T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARETF T
In the PRC R
Leasehold land (note 16) FHE L (FIFE16) 3,835 3,917
Buildings BF 2,244 2,292
6,079 6,209
(g) The carrying amount of freehold land and buildings (99 R=2—=F+=—RAR=+—8"
pledged as security for the Group's bank borrowings EERFEAEAEBRITEER
and other loans were RMB20,482,000 (2012: HMmERBE®RR 2 KAEREL
RMB17,525,000) (note 26) and RMB3,724,000 (2012: MEEFREESNAARKE
RMB3,648,000) (note 27), respectively, as at 31 20,482,0007T (ZZE——F: AR
December 2013. #17,525,0007T) (Ff7526) R A
K #53,724,0007T (=& — — 4
AR#3,648,0007T) (HizE27) »
(h) During the year, one of the Group's freehold land was (h) RAEE KNEEZ —TEXKAFEE

held under trust arrangements. As at 31 December
2013, the carrying amount of the freehold land held
under the trust arrangement was RMB3,724,000
(2012: RMB3,648,000).

T ERLHEFEE - RF
—=ZF+-A=1+—8 REE
AL/ B 2 KAERLI MR
m{E A AR#3,724,000L (=&
——F: AR#3,648,0007T) °
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. AFIHEB N

136

The Group
*KE
2013 2012
—E—Z=f —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER®TR AREETTT
The Group's prepaid lease AEB s BANHEENRBE:
payments comprise:
Land in PRC: R B i
Medium-term lease FRERFA 49 3,835 3,917
Analysed for reporting purposes as: St 2R B DT A
Current assets MBNEE 82 82
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,753 3,835
3,835 3,917
2013 2012
—E—Z=F T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREFT
At 1 January n—H—H 3,917 -
Additions NE - 3,931
Amortisation charge for the year NEFHHE A (82) (14)
At 31 December (note 15(f)) R+=ZA=+—8 (HF15)) 3,835 3,917

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

17.

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. |MEEE
The Group The Company
350 . X/N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-Z=£ —E-CF —2-=5 S 2
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETTR AREFTT ARETT AREF T
Trademark licence [k STk
Cost: B

At 1 January R—HA—H 19 19 5 5

Additions Y - - - -

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 19 19 5 5
Accumulated amortisation: 2588

At 1 January R—A—A 17 17 3 3

Charge for the year AEEZH - - - -

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 17 17 3 3
Carrying amounts: IRE(E:

At 31 December R+-A=+—H 2 2 2 2
FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT 18. #EESRAFEHHABREZ
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS MEEE

The Group
x5H
2013 2012
—ET—=f —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
Mutual funds/unit trusts, BEEHES BEE2
at fair value NFE
Established outside Hong Kong BB IRINK 3L 40,558 42,603
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AS AT

FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

The trust monies have been invested, in mutual funds and
unit trusts in Taiwan, by those financial institutions in Taiwan
at the discretion of the Group. The mutual funds and unit
trusts comprise a basket of financial assets including local
and foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds and equity
securities listed in Taiwan and other foreign stock markets.

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (7&
ZEEIRIEM) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on
17 July 2002 and further amended on 1 July 2003 and
4 July 2007, the Group has to deposit 75% of the gross
receipt of each funeral services deed entered into after 31
July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan as trust monies.

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL are presented within
“operating activities” as part of changes in working capital
in the consolidated cash flow statement. The Group has
obtained an investment gain of cash flow RMB2,386,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB1,629,000).
Changes in fair values of the above financial assets are
recorded in “other net (loss)/gain” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The financial assets above offer the Group the opportunity
for return through fair value gain. They have no fixed
maturity and coupon rate.

The fair value of the above financial assets is based on their
current bid prices in an active market.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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EREERAREREAZFAETR
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Ko AN RE 55 =

BER-—EE-_FLA+-HEXEM
WRZZEE=F+A—ARZZTLF
T ANBE—FEFIRBREEEIRE
B REEERAESBEBFHEN
—ET-F+H A=+ BHEI U BEE
R ABEE 2 75%EREESE -

BEARATETABR 2 WIEEER
BARSREBR [KEERINEY) 1
ABEBESEY Wy HE_ZT—=
F+-_AZ+—HIFE AEEES
AR #2,386,0007T 2 B W IR0
(ZZ——%F: AR#¥1,629,0007T) » +
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19.

20.

DEVELOPMENT AND FORMATION COSTS 19. AR BRI E
The Group
*T5KE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBTT
Development and formation costs B8 3% M Ak 32 Ak A
— graves under development —AHEE 2t 2ER

for sale 6,525 5,164

The development and formation costs represent
development costs incurred for a cemetery site which will be
completed for sale and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying value of a freehold land
held in Vietnam included in development and formation
costs is RMB2,388,000 (2012: RMB5,164,000).

PSRRI ATE R ERFHEZE
MWELZFRENA WIRRANEEH
FEMEP 2BEEIR-

R-ZEBE—=F+-_A=+—H —#
REEFEE 2 KA XL ZEmME
B ABRBEEAIRE 2EAAR
2,388,000t (ZE——F: AR
5,164,0007T ) °

INVENTORIES 20. &8
The Group
&M
2013 2012
—ZE—= —E-CZF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBEF T
Merchandises for resale BEEN 637 996

The carrying amount of inventories sold and recognised as
an expense and included in “cost of sales” amounted to
RMB9,572,000 in 2013 (2012: RMB8,692,000).

BRABAZYEEEHEXNEI N
CEGEEEER -_Z—=FAAR
#9,572,000c (=& —Z—F: AR
8,692,0007T ) ©
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. B 5 B H il FE U AR =X

The Group The Company
5@ b /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
~2-ZF —E-_F —2-Z=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AE%TR ARBT AE%TR ARBTT
Trade receivables [EYE 5 85R %

(note (c) and (g)) (Bt EQ R (g)) 20 70 = -
Other receivables (note (d)) i U IA (M EE(d)) 6,552 3,337 - -
Less: allowance for AR EBERE

impairment loss GEQ)
(note (g)) (1,009) (930) - -
5,543 2,407 - -
Amounts due from O ENEIE S
subsidiaries (note (h)) (BEE(h)) - - 111,983 157,313
Less: allowance for W REBERE
impairment loss (FEEEG))
(note (i) - - (37,979) (29,189)
- - 74,004 128,124
Loans and receivables ER R EWIR 5,563 2,477 74,004 128,124
Deposits and prepayments & & R IBM HE
(note (f)) (BEE()) 64,430 56,932 695 825
69,993 59,409 74,699 128,949
Representing: ¥
Current B &R 66,293 55,709 74,699 128,949
Non-current JEENER 3,700 3,700 = -
69,993 59,409 74,699 128,949
Note: B 5
(@)  All of the loans and receivables are expected to be recovered (@) FTBERREWRIBEHEN —FAK
within one year and prepayments are expected to be O MIEMFIBEERER —FAER A
recognised as expense within one year. Deposits expected A -BEHRBR—FRKEZIES
to be recovered after more than one year is RMB3,700,000 A AR¥3,700,000T (ZF—Z%F:
(2012: RMB3,700,000). AR #3,700,0007T) °
(b) The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables (b) EBZEREMEWKEAERENTE
approximate to their fair values. iEEER
(¢)  Trade receivables are net of allowance for doubtful debts of () HMBREBEBEZEVESEIARE

RMBNil (2012: RMBNIil) with the following analysis by age
presented based on the date of sales of goods or service
rendered as at the end of the reporting period:
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESREMEWIES (&)
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

()

(d)

BifeE: (48D

(Continued) (o (&)
2013 2012
—E—=% —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TTT ARBEFTT
0 to 180 days 02180H 20 70
The average credit period on sales granted to customers of MEBERES B2 ELREZHEF
funeral services segments is 45 days. HIEE I R458 -
The average credit period on sales granted to customers of MEEREARMAIzELPELZ
trading of raw marble segment is 180 days. FHEERA180H -
Management believes that no impairment allowance BN EERDBAR BT m - g
is necessary as the balances are still considered fully B ER A BARZE &R EDL E R
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over BREE AEETERZSERTE
these balances. ER IRz TR
Included in the balance are amounts receivable from a funeral (d) AR A 2 FRIAD Bl A U —

service sub-contractor and a non-controlling shareholder of a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of RMBNil (2012: RMB814,000)
which represents the receipts from the customers for the
funeral services by the sub-contractor on behalf of the Group
and RMB3,526,000 (2012: RMBNIil), respectively. The other
receivables are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of debtors for whom there was no
recent history of default. Management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of the non-
impaired balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

(28

LRERE AR —HEZEN
BRRZIEEBRBREARBEZ L (=
T——F: AR¥814,0000T) %%
RERZDEARTEE D BIHE
BERBEPKIM 2 HIE  ARARE
3,526,000 (ZZE—=—F: ARKEZ
TL) o B EUWER R AEER 28K
BREHEREEE-

0 8 38 B sl (A 2 H R R BR SR

R E RS EZEBAEH -

ERERRBERZST RBELRIE

HBERE REARAEEERITES

@2@%‘%%%%%%&@%ﬂ%§k
[B] o
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B RHEMMEYIES (1)
(Continued)

Note : (Continued)

(e)

U]

Impairment of other receivables

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against other receivables
directly.

B ()
(e) i fiigl {H 2z K fih FE U AR 2R

Hofth 8 W BR R 2 R (B IS 9B T 150 P B 4
BRACHR - IE AN E MR 2 A K
BIERRHERIBRSN - RUEIER T - BUERE
18 B B S B Lt PR MR R

Movements in the allowance for impairment loss RMEBEREEZY
The Group

*5RE
2013 2012
—E—=%F —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 930 170
Impairment loss recognised EERREEE 486 760
Reversal of impairment loss B ORERE (407) -
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—H 1,009 930

As at 31 December 2013, other receivables of the Group
amounting to RMB1,009,000 (2012: RMB930,0000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The individually
impaired receivables were due from debtors with financial
difficulties. Accordingly, an impairment loss of RMB486,000
(2012: RMB760,000) were recognised during the year.

Included in deposits and prepayments are deposits paid for
funeral parlours and funeral services centres, prepaid hire
charge of funeral parlours and funeral services centres and
prepaid agency commission for funeral services deeds of
RMB3,700,000 (2012: RMB3,700,000), RMB10,185,000
(2012: RMB12,798,000) and RMB29,664,000 (2012:
RMB32,954,000) respectively.
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N-T—=F+=-A=+—H K&
B 2 H b U AR 31 A R #51,009,0007T
(== ——4%: AR¥930,0007T) &7
EEERE - FEUE S A Z BB EE
WWFRIEFEN ISR o FH it - F R
SREETE A RK486,000C (—ZFE——
F: ARM760,0007T) ©

AR E REMNREAS BB EE
DREERBR LI N ZIRE BERE
DRERER O ZEMNEBAZ AR
EARERERH ZAMRERSA
R#3,700,000L (ZE—ZF AR
#3,700,0007t) + A R %10,185,000
T(ZZE—=—F: AR¥12,798,000
7T) B AR#29,664,0007T (—ZFE——
&£ AR#32,954,0007T) °
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21.

(Continued)

Note : (Continued)

(9)

(h)

0]

HARAEMEBUER (&)

BifeE: (48D

Trade receivables that are not impaired (90 EWHREZFEWRZHER
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither A A Bl sk 2k [R48 A 2R E 2 FE W
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as SERZRBR DTN
follows:
The Group
KA
2013 2012
—2—-=% —T-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEFTT
Neither past due nor impaired P #5580 B SORUE - 4
Past due but not impaired B HE R RE
Less than 1 month past due wmAEL RN —EA 20 18
1 to 3 months past due wmE—EAE=A - 12
Over 3 months past due AR =8 A - -
20 30
20 70
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to 7 4% 580 B ok R 1B 2 FE MR SR IR BT R 5T
various customers for whom there was no recent history of R E s ZEEFBE-
default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to B BB KR E 2 R IE B N
independent customers that have a good track record with PEM ZEEPHEASERRITH
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes TR - REBBAELER BEERR
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these DA LS ERIELRERE RHE
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit BEEEXRVESAEE MIZE4HE
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. RN PR EUE c NEE W W EE
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. ERFBAEEER -
The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (hy ZEE&EHA/EER 2ERAKREX
demand. Eeg
Impairment of amounts due from subsidiaries () FEWMELTRIERE
Movements in the allowance for impairment loss WEBEREED
The Company
. 3/ 0|
2013 2012
—2—=F —E—CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®TTR ARBETTT
At 1 January n—H—H 29,189 -
Impairment loss recognised B HERREEE 9,817 29,448
Effect of foreign currency exchange INEZRZHE
differences (1,027) (259)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 37,979 29,189

During the year ended 31 December 2013, several
subsidiaries had incurred operating losses. After reviewing
the financial performance and financial position of these
subsidiaries and taking into account the current market
environment, the directors consider that impairment loss of
RMB9,817,000 (2012: RMB29,448,000) on the amounts due
from these subsidiaries should be made. The impairment loss
were recognised in the profit or loss of the Company.

HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLF
B ATHBRAREALEESE W
ZEMB QAR B RIB R BRI
MEEZRMRE EERBEE
Wz EH B AR FIEE LR EBEA
R#9,817,000t (—Z——F: AR
#%29,448,0007T) < BEBEE R AR
AE TS HER -

TELEBEERRLAT —E-ZFFR

143



Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR P ot

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE =T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 22. EEHRITER
Pledged bank deposits represented deposits pledged to a EHEFIRITFERIEE AR RIERMR
bank to secure banking facilities granted to the Company TRE (2B E26) BB TFRITZE
(see note 26). The pledged bank deposits were released RoREBE_ET—=F+=-_A=+—H
upon the settlement of relevant bank borrowings during IEFE -EEER@ERITENRE BEK
the year ended 31 December 2013. The pledged bank FIRITERCERR -BE_T——F
deposits carried fixed interest rate at 0.28% per annum at TZA=T—HIEFE BERRITE
31 December 2012. BRI E F F%K0.28%5 B °
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. e RBA&FRED
The Group
*xEE
2013 2012
—E—=%§ —E-CF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREETTT
Cash at bank and on hand SRITRFHEES 122,820 159,729
Cash and cash equivalents in RE R BARRARRERE
the consolidated statement RemerNBE Rk
of financial position and the ReEEY
consolidated cash flow statement 122,820 159,729
The Company
. A
2013 2012
—E—=%f —E-CF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TR AREETTT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHEES 30,102 45,549
Cash and cash equivalents in the FBRARARE &
statement of financial position ReEEY 30,102 45,549

The interest rates on the cash at bank ranged from 0.01%
10 0.88% (2012: 0.01% to 2%) per annum.

At 31 December 2013, cash at bank and on hand of the
Group of RMB10,274,000 (2012: RMB3,531,000) were
denominated in RMB and placed with banks in the PRC.
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23. REeRBIEEEYM (@)

24,

(Continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company's REERARARZRITRFERE 2K
cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following EENA T E®¥EHE -
currencies:
The Group The Company
*5H ¥ /NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
8-z -—T--_F TB-ZF¥ "—T——F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT AR®TR AREFT
us$ e 3,141 15,308 869 286
HK$ BT 760 801 a1 66
RMB AR 39,422 48,876 29,147 45,197
NTD ek 79,260 94,330 45 -
EUR BT 7 8 - -
VND BEE 230 406 - -
122,820 159,729 30,102 45,549

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. B 5 REMERFIER

The Group The Company
X%E 3|

2013 2012 2013 2012

—E-=F —T-——F —E-=F —T——F

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREFT AR®TT ARBEFT

Trade payables (note (c)) JETE Z R () 1,717 1,660 = -

Accruals and other payables  fE&TFX78 I E fth JE < 20 7,426 7,850 3,140 1,601
Amounts due to subsidiaries  JE{ B A B3 IE

(note (d)) (P 5E(d)) - - 25,314 7,841
Financial liabilities measured 12 s A=t 28

at amortised cost IBaRE 9,143 9,510 28,454 9,442

Derivative financial liabilities  $T4 4R EE - 87 = 87

9,143 9,597 28,454 9,529
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24, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)

Note:

(@  All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

(b)  The carrying amounts of trade and other payables
approximate to their fair values.

(¢ The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables, based
on the date of receipt of goods or services rendered, at the
end of the reporting period:

24. BB RAEMMEFIRR ()

GEE
@ FAESRAMEN RERR —F R

B ER AN EREEE -

(b) EFRHEMEMFEEEEZEATE
iEE=R

@ UTABZENEFRNHRSHARIZK
MERARHRRT A ZBRE DT

The Group
FKE

2013 2012
—E—=% 2 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR¥ETT
0 to 30 days 0£30H 679 998
31 days to 90 days 31H£=90H 375 203
Over 90 days 90R A £ 663 459
1,717 1,660

(d)  The balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

d) ZEEBRR/EER 2ERARRED

demand. TREFEE
25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE 25. I RRIE
The Group
x%EH

2013 2012
—B—-=F —g—-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#®TR ARETF T

Advance payments from customers for:  ZEFH T EEZ

TEfT IR

— funeral service deeds (note) —BERBREL
(PH&E) 94,480 104,686
— graves under development —BRPEM 1,340 -
95,820 104,686
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25. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (Continued)

Note:

Bau Shan and Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited (“Sino-Life (HK)"),
subsidiaries of the Company, sold funeral services deeds to
customers (“Deed Holders"). The funeral services deeds are prepaid
funeral services packages which mainly comprise particular types
of funeral services to be arranged. The Deed Holders can elect
to make payment on a lump sum basis or settle the outstanding
amount of the funeral services deeds by up to a maximum of 120
monthly instalments. The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin to the estimated cost of
delivering funerals, after having taken into account of major factors
including instruction of the Deed Holders. Amounts received from
funeral services deeds sold are recorded as receipts in advance.
When the Deed Holders have defaulted payment for two months
and do not pay back the defaulted amounts after the Group’s not
less than 30-day’s demand notice, the funeral services deeds would
be regarded as lapsed and a minimum of 20% of the total sum
of the funeral services deeds or the instalments paid, whichever is
lower, will be forfeited as income. The Deed Holders can request
for funeral services or terminate the funeral services deeds at any
time after the funeral services deeds are sold. Accordingly, receipts
in advance is classified as current liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

According to the Mortuary Service Administration Act (& ZEE &
&3] ) in Taiwan, which was first promulgated on 17 July 2002 and
further amended on 1 July 2003 and 4 July 2007, the Group has
to deposit 75% of the gross receipt of each funeral services deed
entered into after 31 July 2003 in financial institutions in Taiwan as
trust monies. As at 31 December 2013, the Group has deposited
RMB37,760,000 (2012: RMB41,466,000) in three financial
institutions in Taiwan.

The Group recognised a net gain on termination/lapse of funeral
services deeds of RMB155,000 (2012: RMB558,000) in “other net
(loss)/gain” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013.

25. TRMGRRIR (#])

BiEE -

$ AlZMBAREILRTEES (BE)E
RE) ([HhEERR (%/%)J)WRJE'(DQZ’J
h*ﬁ/\J)Hﬁ‘EE%EW%*ﬁi’J BERERA
RIANBERBAS TEBELFSERE
B2 BEERE - ZNFEATRE-FBX
NI R RS 1208 A 9 B R EN 2
BRERBROTIA - AEBEREBEERNR
(BREZNFAEAZER)E BEERTR
18 2 (B ET R AN _EIE BRI - i S e A 1%
ARIE 24 2 B - EUARE KA BRI R4
Z FRIFATRMGRIR A SR » 224055 H AE
RASHR{EA - HEAZK‘%I?‘Hj$JEG3OE
05 OB AN & 12 R RE BRI 4G R R - BB AR
HE%%%@%’UH%%&?ET’E%?& AR IR R 448
BMACDHA D BN (A BREERE)
B i D 20% IR WAE R UR A » 2EH5 A A
AREHBEEREROREMER ZRE
%Hﬁkiﬁtﬁg%ﬂfﬁ%@%&t*?ﬁﬁu&%ﬁ
BESAMBRAKRTIBRRD AR

BEVNIR_ZZ_F+A+LHER I
RIEZE=F+A—HE-_ZETLFLAN
HiE—ERT 2 B EBEERIKN AEE
BREECHEBETHRSANR-_ZT=F
tAZ+— AR ZBERBEROWAL
B2I5%ERETE RZE—=F+=A
B ALECRZE-MEES K
B A R #37,760,0007T (— & — 4
AR #41,466,0007T) °

ZIS%J‘%%&_?—:EWL ﬂ*+ A1k
FEZHRABERREMEAKRGERS [Hit
F(EB1E) WE RBRERB R K
RFE % W 2% A R#155,000T (ZE——
& AR¥558,0007T) °
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26. BANK BORROWINGS 26. MITEE
The Group The Company
F5E 3N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-ZfF —E—F —E-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBTT AR®TT ARBTT
Bank borrowings, secured 1T E - D
Current liabilities mEaE
— Portion of term loan *EA FRIHEED
from bank due for RITEHBFRB M
repayment within
1 year 602 626 - -
—Term loan from bank due ~ —H AR EREBER
for repayment within BR—FNEIH
1 year which contain E?ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂﬁ
a repayment on EHER
demand clause - 10,073 - 10,073
602 10,699 - 10,073
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
— Portion of term loan “R—FRIPEEN
from bank due for RITE BT M
repayment after 1 year 8,309 9,448 - -
Total Bt 8,911 20,147 - 10,073

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. SRITEEE (#8)
At 31 December 2013, bank borrowings were due for R-ZE—=F+_-_A=+—8 17
repayment, which are based on the scheduled repayment SEARTIBME(ENREEER D
dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements, as EANFTRTEAMIEEMEE A E)E
follows: B
The Group The Company
.30 3|
2013 2012 2013 2012
=% -T--Ff C"B-Z§ —T—=fF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFT  AR%BTR AREFT
Within 1 year —%R" 602 10,699 = 10,073
After 1 year but within R—FRERMFR
2 years 613 638 - -
After 2 years but within RMEEERRFR
5 years 1,910 1,988 - -
After 5 years REF#% 5,786 6,822 = -
8,309 9,448 - -
8,911 20,147 - 10,073

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants. If the Group were in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s and the Company’s bank
loan agreements contain clauses which give the lender the
right at its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the Group and the
Company has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of the term loans and does not consider it probable that
the bank will exercise its discretion to demand repayment
so long as the Group and the Company continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s and the
Company’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note
31(b). As at 31 December 2013, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2012:
nil).

FTBRITEERIBITEHERR 8
REFERRE CHANEEBEN
%iﬁ%%&ﬁh$ﬁgﬁ$ Gl
ETHRITERBZESNIERDED
BT EREF - AIpEE Bk BNEE
(BERAEBERARRRBTETRER
BITTEEMNEERT) -

E$%l&$ —irigL*??%%ﬁﬁ
BV1E S T ERT T?:Tﬁ TEEREEE
KEE -AEBRAQRERRDESD
[\ Bz 0 HE — B B M EE31(0) A
?*:$+*ﬂ:+*5 NS B
EREMBBEERENRHE (ZT—Z
FoE) e
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

All of the bank borrowings, including amounts repayable on
demand, are carried at amortised cost.

None of the bank borrowings due for repayment after one
year contain a repayment on demand clause and hence
these balances are not expected to be settled within one
year and are classified as a non-current liability.

At 31 December 2013, the banking facilities of the Group
are secured by bank deposits amounting to RMBNil
(2012: RMB17,869,000) (see note 22) and a personal
guarantee to the extent of RMB30,318,000 (equivalent
to US$5,000,000) (2012: Nil) from Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, the
director of the Company. Such banking facilities amounting
to RMB46,510,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000 and
NTD80,000,000, respectively) (2012: RMB62,537,000
(equivalent to US$10,000,000)) were utilised to the extent of
RMBNil at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB10,073,000).

At 31 December 2013, the banking facilities of the
Company are secured by bank deposits amounting to
RMBNil (2012: RMB17,869,000) (see note 22) and a
personal guarantee to the extent of RMB30,318,000 (2012:
Nil) from Mr. Liu Tien-Tsai, the director of the Company.
Such banking facilities amounting to RMB30,318,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2012: RMB62,537,000
(equivalent to US$10,000,000)) were utilised to the extent of
RMBNil at 31 December 2013 (2012: RMB10,073,000).
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26. SRITMHE (1)

FrASRITER (BRBREREENIA)
HEIHK A E -

R—FRIPEENRTEEMERE
REREEGT Bt X5 EHEH
R—FARRES ADBERIFRBA

f&e

RZEBE—=F+=-A=+—H 4A£H
ZERITRE 2 IR R ARITERARE
T (= —=F: AR®17,869,000
L) (AM#22) RAREESZR
SR FBR A AR30,318,0007T
ZEAER(ZZE——4F &) (HE
785,000,000%70) - ZFRITHME 2 &
%A AER#46,510,0007T (D BIAEE R
5,000,000% 7t & ¥ & #80,000,0007T )
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E#10,000,000%70) ) RZZE—=4F
+ZA=+—HE®RAREZ T (=
ZT—_—44: AR¥10,073,0007T) °
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ZHBITRE 2 IR R ARITERARE
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SeERM L PR A ARE30,318,0007T
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group and the Company has the
following undrawn bank borrowing facilities:

26. SRITHEE ()

R-E—=F+-A=+—B KEH
EARRNBBUTRIRERETEEEE

B
The Group The Company
F5H F27
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=f —E--F —E-=§ —E--F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREF T AR®TT AREF T
Variable-rate FENFE 46,510 - 30,318 -
Fixed-rate & E i = = 52,464 = 52,464

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
bank borrowings are denominated in the following

AEERARRZRITIEE ZREEA
THIEREEHE:

currencies:
The Group The Company
350 . /N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E2-=£ —E-CF —2-=5 S 2
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREF T ARBTTR ARET T
Uss$ ET = 10,073 = 10,073
NTD mak 8,911 10,074 = -
8,911 20,147 = 10,073

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the effective interest

RZE—=FRk=_F——-F+=A1

rates of the bank borrowings were as follows: =t+—HB RITEECEBRMNENT:
The Group The Company
£ 3. | e 3N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=§ —E--F —E-Z=§ —E--F
Variable-rate F B F 1.90% 1.90% - -
Fixed-rate [ElE 1| - 0.96% - 0.96%

Bank borrowings of RMB8,911,000 (2012: RMB10,074,000)
were secured by the freehold land and buildings of
the Group amounting to RMB20,482,000 (2012:
RMB17,525,000) (note 15(g)).

Bank borrowings of RMBNil (2012: RMB10,073,000) were
secured by the pledged bank deposit of the Company
amounting to RMBNIl (2012: RMB17,869,000) (note 22).

RITEBEARKS, 911,000 (ZT——
#F: AR #10,074,00070) A AR EH >~
KAFEREL M EF AR20,482,000
T (ZZE——%: AR#¥17,525,0007T)
YRR (FFEE15(g)) °

FITIEBEARBZ L (ZT—ZF: A
R #10,073,0007T ) Ty AR A Bl ) 2 4K
HRTERABARBZ L (Z2—=
F: AR¥17,869,0007T) (Mf7E22) 1
=R
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27. OTHER LOAN 27. HthE®R
The Group
&R
2013 2012
—ZT—Z=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AE®TxX ARETFIT
Other loan HiEx

— secured —HEA 106 325
At 31 December 2013, the Group's other loan was E’\\_==—:¢+_ﬂ:‘|’—l§| REE

repayable as follows:

Z HME IR AT B E R

2013 2012
—E—=%f —ZT——F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARBFT
Within 1 year —FR 106 213
After 1 year but within 2 years R—FBERMEA - 112
106 325

Less: Amount due within one year & : BB E AT~
shown under current liabilities BIHR 2 KT E (106) (213)
- 112

The other loan is carried at amortised cost, denominated in
NTD and does not contain a repayment on demand clause.

The other loan was granted from EfRBEIR, who is an
independent third party. The other loan is repayable by
monthly instalments.

As at 31 December 2013, the other loan of RMB106,000
(2012: RMB325,000) was secured by the freehold land of
the Group of RMB3,724,000 (2012: RMB3,648,000) (note
15(g)), with interest charged at a rate of 6.96% for year
2012 and 2013 and with maturity date of 21 June 2014.
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28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28. MBI AEAZRER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) e BMRREFRNZBIETIE
financial position represents: =k
The Group
*T5HE
2013 2012
—E—-=%F —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AREF T
At 1 January n—H—H 506 753
Provision for the year FEEE
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ —H B MEFEH 848 1,224
Income tax paid during FRNETEH
the year (6) (1,457)
Income tax refunded during ~ FAEREBFTSH
the year 383 -
Exchange adjustments ME 5 S B 17 (14)
At 31 December Rt+—-—A=+—H 1,748 506
Representing: f&:
Tax recoverable Al e IR (40) (440)
Tax payable FEI A1 1,788 946
1,748 506
(b) Deferred tax (b) EZERLIA

Under the Enterprise Income Tax Law of PRC with
effect from 1 January 2008 onwards, non-resident
enterprises without an establishment or place of
business in the PRC or which have an establishment
or place of business but the relevant income is not
effectively connected with the establishment or a place
of business in the PRC, will be subject to withholding
income tax at the rate up to 10% on various types of
passive income such as dividends derived from sources
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong,
a preferential rate of 5% is applied. On 22 February
2008, the State Administration of Taxation approved
Caishui (2008) No. 1, pursuant to which dividend
distributions out of retained earnings of foreign
investment enterprises prior to 31 December 2007 will
be exempted from withholding income tax.

—ZEEN\F-A—HE REH
Bl RFSBUE - M IFE P BRI
KRB EF MR T BRI
RELERWHERRWRALIE
BREZFEP BRI RE L HE MR
ERZHEEREE ARTHERK
WA (PIEEFBEZEE )
BRE10% 2 B RGN TEIMN -
AR EBTEMAL 2 KEE AR
A2 BENERS% - ERHBE
BRZZZENF_AZ-+ZH#t
B BE(2008) 155 @ Utk - INE
CER-_TTLF+_A=1—
BRI REEFIEHBRE DK
I E o S TR PSR

TELEBEERRLAT —E-ZFFR
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28. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax (Continued)

As all of the Group's foreign-invested enterprises are
directly and wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated
subsidiaries, a rate of 5% is applicable to the
calculation of this withholding tax. Deferred taxation
of RMB766,000 (2012: RMB523,000) has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of the tax that would be payable on the
distribution of the retained profits of RMB15,326,000
(2012: RMB10,451,000) as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB2,806,000 (2012: RMB2,040,000)
available for offset against future profits that may be
carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

No provision for deferred taxation has been made as
the effect of all temporary differences is immaterial.
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IRIERLIE ()
ARASEEFBIINERESDBHR
EREMRIZHBRAREE
2ERE BMS5%AETEHEEN
MzBERAHRE - REERIBARE
766,000 (2 ——F: AR
523,00070) I R A AR & B IS 3R =
MO IRIRBEFIEFA T2/
18 A FR#15,326,0007T (ZE—=
&£ AR #10,451,0007T ) 1F )
- RARANANEHZEHEB R
Bl Z B BRI B TR S5 R
RRATBER AT BRI DR

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H"
REBz ABAREREEARE
2,806,000 (ZZFE——F: AR
#52,040,0007T ) 7] A3 LA 3K 85 7] 4%
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. &
No. of shares Amount
B #AE &8
RMB'000
AREFT
Authorised: EE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREE AT EBR
At 1 January 2012, 31 December ~HRZZT—=—F—H—H-
2012 and 31 December 2013 —E-—F+-A
—t—HRZZE—=F
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 881,541
Ordinary shares, issued and ERTRBEEER:
fully paid:
At 1 January 2012, 31 December RZTE—Z—F—H—81-
2012 and 31 December 2013 —ET——F+-A
=t+—HEkZZ—=F
+=-—A=+—H 742,500,000 69,218

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company'’s residual
assets.

REERARRIRRAE L BRI
FRETRR-FIBEEBRERARRZ
BIEEMSHZERSEN-

LRRER ABENRREIEIRZ AR
S|
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30. RESERVES

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and

closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated

30. f&fm

(a)

AEEGARE SN FHE
FREHHEINGAERE
B -ARBRESEY 2 FIE

statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes FERZEHFFHINNOT
in the Company'’s individual components of reserves
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
The Company b 3/ |
Foreign
currency  Share-based
Share translation compensation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
Uk E
SERE -1 ¥4
BipRE 10 15 £ O RitER ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2012 R-Z——F—H—H 220,633 (25,964) 6,339 (22,012) 178,996
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (53,052) (53,052)
Exchange differences HERBRREEL
on translation of ERER
financial statements - (1,149) - - (1,149)
Total comprehensive loss AEEL2ABELE
for the year - (1,149) - (53,052) (54,201)
Equity-settled share-based UREEERR B
transactions ERR5 - - 1,466 - 1,466
Lapse of share BRI BRI LN
options granted - - (85) 85 -
At 31 December 2012 RZT—ZF
+-A=+—-H 220,633 (27,113) 7,720 (74,979) 126,261
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=F—HF—H 220,633 (27,113) 7,720 (74,979) 126,261
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - (22,289) (22,289)
Exchange differences BWEMBRREEL
on translation of EiER
financial statements - (5,660) - - (5,660)
Total comprehensive loss AEELHBELE
for the year - (5,660) - (22,289) (27,949)
Equity-settled share-based MRS R A
transactions AR5 - - 402 - 402
Lapse of share BRI ERERN
options granted - - (118) 118 -
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=F
+-A=+-H 220,633 (32,773) 8,004 (97,150) 98,714
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal amount of share capital
and amounts received on issue of shares.

Under the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share
premium of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve arose from the business
combination under common control in relation
to the acquisition of Bau Shan during the group
reorganisation in 2007. The merger reserve of
the Group represents the difference between
aggregate net asset value of Bau Shan acquired
and the consideration paid for the acquisition of
Bau Shan pursuant to the group reorganisation.

30. | (#8)

(b) REHERMAE

(i)

(ii)

BR1GwE
DR BRI AT E KT
BB U k8 2 =58 -

REREFESRREA(ZF
TEBFTAR) ARAZ
BEEESADIKTAR
FIRR - M B R N AR
B RHEARRAFREIRN
BERAEHARXGERETE
X MHEEER

B EE

BHEBIN _ZETLFE
TEESEBRREEEL
BRAMHKRZEFIE T2 X5
BHMES - AEENA
FEEEMEE B EE
FEARRBESESMARM
WEELENREZEZRE-
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) ~ Statutory reserve

(iv)

According to the applicable laws and regulations
in Taiwan, the Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of their net profits
after taxation, as determined under the relevant
accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to companies established in Taiwan,
to a non-distributable reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches the registered capital of
the respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of a dividend to owners but after offset the
previous years' losses, if any. During the year, no
profits after taxation has been transferred to this
reserve as the Group’s Taiwan subsidiaries have
no profit available for transfer after offset their
previous years' losses.

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate at least 10% of their profit after tax,
as determined under the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable
to companies established in the PRC, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until such reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective enterprises. The transfer to this
reserve must be made before the distribution
of dividends to owners. The non-distributable
reserve fund can be used to offset the previous
years' losses, if any, expand the existing
operations or convert into additional capital of
the subsidiaries, provided that the balance after
such issue is not less than 25% of its registered
capital. The non-distributable reserve fund is
non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
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30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(9

(v)

(vi)

Properties revaluation reserve

The properties revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for freehold land
and buildings held for own use in note 2(d) and
is not distributable.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of non-PRC operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 2(q).

(vii) Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve
comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to eligible participants of the Group
recognised in accordance with accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(m).

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to owners
of the Company was RMB123,483,000 (2012:
RMB145,654,000).

30. fEf§ (#8)
(b) HEEHER AR (E)

(0

) YWFEELFE
RRRERILYEE R
8 AR B M FE2(d) P B
MAKAERT I RIFIEE R
BFRAZGTHEREERS
A ©

(i) [EZ#E
&S AR EAERREIE
FREBSMISHREMELE Y
P 5 2 58 o X R T AR IR BT
2T EY 2 SRR R
I8 o

(vii) KRt BEEZFH I #
VAR AR 20 2 3 BN e
AR 5 2(m) g LA B A7 BB
MR 2 & 5T BER PTHER
ZRTASBEEERSEE
Z BRReERTRITEE R E
2B AP EMERK-

A Ik
RZE—=%+=Z—A=+—8"
AR T ARAEEE A2 FHE
wagE A A R#123,483,0000T (=
T ——4F: AR®145,654,000
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TEEBEERRLE —E-ZFFR

159



Notes to the Financial Statements

B SR P o

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE2 T —=ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

160

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Capital Management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for owners and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
owners, return capital to owners, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio
which is total liabilities divided by total assets.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 were as follows:

30. i (48)

(d)

EXER

AEBMEEEARZ BRERERAE
SERLIFEKE KM AERA
wREHRE A EMERR S ES
A - WA FFIRARE AN LR

REFBLRBENGERE  AREE
HEMREBAINZBEESHE
RIEERTHERAAN  BITHBMO K
HEEENRDERE-

MEMFRR 5 AEBAEER
BUHERREREANEL-BE
BELRRBEAERNEEER
B-AREBEHEREERRALL RS
FREEKF R-_T—=FKk_
E—_HF+-A=+—HZEE
BELERMT:

2013 2012

—E—Z=f —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AER®TR AREET T

Total liabilities weE 115,768 135,701
Total assets BEE 302,388 345,995
Gearing ratio BEEAMRGLE 38.28% 39.22%

There were no changes in the Group's approach to
capital management compared with previous years.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial
assets as at FVTPL, bank borrowings, other loan, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s
major financial instruments include amounts due from
subsidiaries, amounts due to subsidiaries, pledged bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, bank borrowings,
financial guarantee obligations and other payables. Details
of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments include
credit risk, liquidity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk
and other price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(@) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate,
as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults.

() In respect of trade receivables from funeral
services, the credit risk is relatively low as the
receivable for each individual customer of
funeral services segments is immaterial and the
Group generally offer credit period of 45 days
to customers of funeral services segments. The
Group does not obtain collateral in respect of its
financial assets.

31.

MERBEERMEIAZ
AFE

REEZ T 2B T EBERA AR
ABHRZWBEE RITEX Hi0E
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W RITRE R M ERAE R AR
NRIE-MBTEAZHBRERNBREMN
doBZEMBTIAGEZRAREBRERE
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R Fe B EL A B AR LR © T SXE S ana] Rl
BEZFEBcBR - EEBEEIER
%5 AR - AR N B & B ROt EREUE
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() EERMR
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HMERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

In respect of trade receivables of trading of raw
marble segment, in order to minimize risk, the
management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major customer
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. The Group does
not require collateral in respect of its financial
assets. Debts are usually due within 180 days
from the date of billing.

In respect of other receivables, the Group's
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as for
64% (2012: Nil) and Nil (2012: 33%) of the
total loans and receivables are due from a non-
controlling shareholder of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary and a funeral services sub-contractor
respectively.

In order to minimize risk, the management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations of its debtors’ financial
position and condition are performed on each
and every major debtor periodically. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the debtor as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the debtor
operates. The Group does not require collateral
in respect of its financial assets.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The Company'’s exposure to credit risk is mainly
from the amounts due from the subsidiaries.
About 35%, 32% and 13% (2012: 37%, 45%
and 2%) of the loans and receivables of the
Company at the end of the reporting period are
due from subsidiaries engaged in investment
holding in Hong Kong, providing funeral services
in Taiwan and providing funeral services in
Vietnam respectively.

The Company reviews the recoverable amounts
of individual debts at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The majority of the Group’s investments are
financial assets designated as at FVTPL which
include mutual funds and unit trusts established
in Taiwan. Given their high credit standing,
management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with good
reputations.

Except for the financial guarantees given by
the Company as set out in note 38, the Group
or the Company does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 38.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 21.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HERBEERMEIAZ
DFE(HE)

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to parent company's board approval. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains
sufficient amount of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. The Group relies on its liquid funds as a
significant source of liquidity.

The following tables set out the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be exercised
at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, i.e. if the lenders were
to invoke their unconditional rights to call borrowings
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for other
bank borrowings and other loan is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HERBEERMEIAZ

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

LFHE (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBESREMR (&)
The Group &
2013
8-z
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
ga-% BARE ELoEd T
REX R-F@/ BIRAE BYREE ERIE HeREAR IREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR AERTR AE®TR AE®TR AERTR AE®TR AERTR
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ 3E%7 £ 8115 & &
Trade payables BAEAER - 1,717 - - - 1,717 1,717
Accruals and other payables A ERE MR 7,426 - - - - 7,426 7,426
Bank borrowings BIEE - 765 765 2,29 6,249 10,075 8911
Other loan HEH - 108 - - - 108 106
7,426 2,59 765 2,296 6,249 19,326 18,160
2012
—T-——F
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BR-F R RNRER
REX R—ER BoRmE BIRTE BRLEF RERELE RAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARBFT AR¥TT ARBTT ARBFT AR¥TT
Non-derivative financial liabiliies ~ FE{T4 5% & &
Trade payables ZHRNER - 1,660 - - - 1,660 1,660
Accruals and other payables et RER AR 7,850 - - - - 7,850 7,850
Bank borrowings BITRE 10,073 811 811 2,434 7,438 21,567 20,147
Other loan &R - 29 115 - - 344 3)5
17,923 2,700 926 2434 7438 31,421 29,982
Derivative financial TEnBeE
liabilities
- gross settlement
Foreign exchange
forward contracts
- inflow A - (22,914) - - - (22,914) (22914)
- outflow s - 23,001 - - - 23,001 23,001
- 87 - - - 87 87
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31.

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

MERBEERMEIAZ
AFE ()

Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBESREM (E)
The Company . /N
2013
g-=
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
Ba-F EaARE ELEY T
REX R=FR  BIREE  BIRIE BALFE HEREST REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AB%TR AE®TRT AERTT  AR%TR AR®TT  AEWTI ARBTT
Non-derivative financial FITEIBEE
liabilities
Accruals and other payables AR EMERR 3,140 - - - - 3,140 3,140
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHBARE 25314 - - - - 25,314 25,314
Financial quarantee issued: BELIHER:
Maximum amount RAERE
quaranteed (note 38) (Fi5E38) - - - - - - 1,951
2012
—2-CF
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
On Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
BB—F RBRF ARRER
REX R=ER  EBIREE BIREF BRLE FenE8E RaEfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFrT AREBTT ARBTT ARETRH
Non-derivative financial FITEHBAE
liabilities
Accruals and other payables  JERFFRB R EAER T 1,601 - - - - 1,601 1,601
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FERHBAFTFE 7,841 - - - - 7,841 7,841
Bank borrowing REE 10,073 - - - - 10,073 10,073
19,515 - - - - 19,515 19,515
Derivative financial liabllities ~ fT4£HEEE
- gross settlement -BERE
Foreign exchange forward SNEEHEH
contracts
- inflow mA - (22,914 - - - (22,914) (22914)
- outflow =i - 23,001 - - - 23,001 23,001
- 87 - - - 87 87
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Company
could be forced to settle under the arrangement if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the
guarantee. Based on expectations as at 31 December
2013, the Group considered that it is more likely
than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank borrowing with a repayment
on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts
are greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on
demand” time band in the above maturity analysis
for bank borrowing. Taking into account of the
Group’s and the Company’s financial position, the
directors of the Company do not consider that its is
probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such bank loans will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

31. MERREERMBIRZ
SFHE (&)

(b)

nBESEkE (F)
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

LFHE ()

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESEP (F)
Maturity analysis — Term loan subject to ZE A DA —RBFAENEREZE
a repayment on demand clause based on BREREEFRREENTEH
scheduled repayments B
The Group and the Company XEAREFELT
More than More than Total
1 year but 2 years but contractual
Within less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
B BamE RNARER
REX R=FR  BIRRE  EIREF BRLF RERELE EE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARMTR
31 December 2013 Z-=F
ZA=t-H - - - - - - -
31 December 2012 —F--F
tZA=t+-R - 10,077 - - - 10,077 10073
Interest rate risk (o FIEER

(9

The Group and the Company are exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk in relation to borrowings issued at variable rates
and fixed rates respectively. The Group and the
Company did not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its debt obligations. It is the Group’s and
the Company's policy to maximise its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group’s and the Company’s cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk is arising
from the fluctuation of lending rate for the Group's
borrowings and the fixed lending rate for the Group’s
borrowings, respectively.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s

MERAREERMBIAZ
LFHE (&)
(0 F=Epk (&)

() TERIFFAEERARAR
BERRNEEFETNBE

borrowings at the end of the reporting period. e
The Group
*5ME
2013 2012
—g2—= —E——F
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note RMB'000 rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%)
ERFE YRS
iz AR®TR (%) AR®EFT (%)
Fixed rate ELHEHE
borrowings
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 - - 10,073 0.96%
Variable rate FREE
borrowings
Bank borrowings RITEE 26 8,911 1.90% 10,074 1.90%
Other loan HER 27 106 6.96% 325 6.96%
9,017 10,399
Total borrowings mEenE 9,017 20,472
Fixed rate EREHE
borrowings as HEEEn
a percentage of BAk
total borrowings - 49%
The Company
b /N
2013 2012
—Z2—=F —T—CF
Effective Effective
interest interest
Note RMB'000 rate (%) RMB'000 rate (%)
HRFE ERRA &
iz AR®TT (%) ARBFIT (%)
Fixed rate EEEHE
borrowings
Bank borrowings ~ #RTEE 26 = = 10,073 0.96%
Fixed rate EREEI
borrowings as EHBEN
a percentage of BAk
total borrowings - 100%
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HMERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates for variable rate bank borrowings,
with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group's loss after tax and
increase/decrease the accumulated losses by
approximately RMB75,000 (2012: RMB86,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would
not change in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analyses above have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 100 basis points (2012: 100 basis
points) increase or decrease in interest rates is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2012.

(d) Currency risk
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors the Group's foreign currency exposures and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposures should the need arises.

(1)

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through bank deposit denominated in foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily RMB.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

LFHE ()

(0

(d)

FREb (&)

(ii)

BB E D
\—_E—=F+_fA=+—
B fhaHaZ 8 BTEEZ
MEEEE EFH T #H1001E
o mre EthE g
N AR B BRBEEER
g, R R BT E B
0, F A # AR 75,000
T(ZE—ZF AR
86,0007T) R G m 2 H
M ERD AT B R REERE -
$ T IRAmEE -

LA EERRRE T TH IR IR A )
EHRFERRET - 247
EERRESHREEZS
BMTEREFEREREEM
B -ANATBEBEEAER
00T 3R 1) =R [ o B 55 R ) =R
HORI100EER (ZE—=
F 100 EZ) IR E
%ﬂ@%ﬂ%é@ﬁ%ﬁ@
Zﬁﬁ'“ﬁﬁﬁ

F 2 ARAEERETT

E¥ER
SR E B A0S SN R BOR

A BIRE

ERAKEZINER,

- WHNAFERFEBHEADN
SN [\ B A/E HE T

(1)

FrE# 2 & B8 2
AEBRSZHEERREE
RERINEFHERRITE
K (ENEBBEBS R
BEEE NN E ) - 5| 5
HERRNEEEEAAR
eggo



Notes to the Financial Statements

BTSSR P vt

For the year ended 31 December 2013 HE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s and the
Company'’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB,
translated using the spot rate at the year end
date.

The Group

31. MERREERMBIRZ
SFHE (&)

d) E%ERE (&)

() FrEZHZEEmEE (E
TRFAJAEERARFR
BEHRAARBERI)EE
ERUINZ EEFHEZ B
REESREMELZER
R -2®RME Ake
BIAARESIR K52
REH A ZBNHRE RGBS

FHRE

Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)

FEHZERR (AARRIT)

RMB  HKS B WD Us§ NTD R RMB HKS
ABR BT R ERE X He% En ARM #R%
00 000 00 00 00 00 000 00 000
 f T8 TE fr T fr Tr  Tx

Pledged bank deposits - - - - - 164 - - - - 5327 113
Cash and cash equivalents 17 1,49 5 7 9148 Y] - 406 9,689 - 8§ 45198 150
Trade and other receivables 1 - - - - - - 3 - - - - -
Trade and other payables (1) - (90) - - (1468) - (80) (15) - - - (1549
Net exposure arising from recognised
assets and liabilties 17 1,49 (45) 7 29148 (14220 12164 357 9674 - 8§ 50525 (1,286)
The Company . /N
2013 2012
g8-=5 —2-C
NTD RMB HKS GBP NTD RMB HKS
wak AE% BT S HaK N BT
‘000 '000 ‘000 ‘000 '000 ‘000 '000
T Fr T T i i i
Amounts due from subsidiaries &Yt fit B A 7 5B - 5,261 37,597 - 70,026 4,209 46,030
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER - - - 12,164 - 5327 113
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRLEEN 45 29,148 M - - 45,197 66
Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEFF B AIFUA (21,347) (668) - - (2,596) (2,283) -
Other payables Hi (R (90) = (1,464) - - - (1,549)
Net exposure arising BREERBRE
from recognised FELZRREFR
assets and liabilities (21,392) 33,741 36,174 12,164 67,430 52,450 44,660
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after taxation
(and accumulated losses) that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming
all other risk variables remained constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged
rate between the HK$ and the US$ would

LFHE ()

A4

d B
(ii)

b ()

TRIMAEREHARE RS
BBEEAFEZEXNZA
HIHBR Bl EREME
Hitm B2 gin T2 25
AT RNEBEZBRRER
(RRAER) BEELZA
HEFH -FUME ERK
B TC SR TT RV B B IE KR
SRXTHEMERE 2

be materially unaffected by any changes in BEEHMIINEATE-
movement in value of the US$ against other
currencies.
The Group 3L |
2013 2012
—2-cf “T-CF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/
in foreign decrease in decrease in in foreign decrease in decrease in
exchange loss after  accumulated exchange loss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation osses
Exls/ RREER RHESR B LF/ BB EE ZiER
(FH) (80)/®D (8BW) /&Y (T,)  (Bm)/mp  (Em)/wd
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARWTR ARBTT  AR¥TR
us§ e 3.0% 34 34 0.6% 44 44
(3.0%) (34) (34) (0.6%) (44) (44)
RVB ARHE 3.0% 740 740 0.6% 324 324
(3.0%) (740) (740) (0.6%) (324) (324)
GBP X3 1.1% - - 3.8% 463 463
(1.1%) - - (3.8%) (463) (463)
NTD Hak 5.7% @ @ 33% - -
(5.7%) 2 2 (3.3%) - -
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. H¥ERBEERMEIAZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL DFE(E)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit/loss after tax and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated
into RMB at the exchange rate ruling at the
end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange
rates had been applied to re-measure these
financial instruments held by the Group and
the Company which expose the Group and the
Company to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2012.

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ErmRMK (E)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) SEEZH (&)
The Company - 3/ |
2013 2012
—2-=F BCF
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (decrease) (Increase)/ (Increase)/
in foreign decrease in decrease in in foreign decrease in decrease in
exchange loss after  accumulated exchange loss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation losses
Eft#/ RREER AHER Ex L7/ BEEE ZHER
(T®%) (@m)/&S (8W)/ &Y (Tg)  (B)/®d  (8m) /7D
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARRTR ARETT  ARETR
RMB AE% 3.0% 857 857 0.6% 335 335
(3.0%) (857) (857) (0.6%) (335) (335)
GBP 3 11% - - 3.8% 463 463
(1.1%) - - (3.8%) (463) (463)
NTD mak% 5.7% (1,015) (1,015) 33% 2,240 2,240
(5.7%) 1,015 1,015 (33%) (2,240) (2,240)
Results of the analysis as presented in the EREVZ DN 4ERI5IRAR

EEEERYEERTE
(RBEMRBITZEERL
BAARE)SEEEREN
®BmA R R 2 BN
RAEFE EHEVRR-

EETHRESINE BRR
SNEEF R BB w E R E
et 2 AR RAEEFE
ZHEUBIAR M&EH
HLEFEART RAERR
WEBREEINE R - 5%
DTRBE T ——FHAEZ
FER E AT o
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 31. HMERBEHERMEIAEZ
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Equity price risk
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

The Group’s mutual funds and unit trusts are
established in Taiwan, which consist of local and
foreign currencies bank deposits, bonds and equity
securities listed in Taiwan and other foreign stock
markets.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had
been 10.00% (2012: 10.74%) lower/higher, loss for
the year and accumulated losses would increase by
RMB1,726,000 (2012: RMB4,067,000) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

Fair value measurements

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

31. MERREERMBIRZ
SFHE (&)

(H AFEHE
HBEER AR A TVENE

NFERER
TREJNHEPRZEE LR
EGFENAKEMBTANRAF
B BEATEMBKRELELSE
13 AFEFEEEN=RQF
BEER - A HEFERENERE
SEM[ERMHERNE BN
AERMEREREETNT

. B AE BB A
BHEATFE DEAHA
AR R R B AR
R DEC LT

s FE_EMHE:UFE_E@A
BEzRAFE BIHEBA
BZABRELARINE—E
BWAE BEEEHAEL
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

Fair value measurements (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Group has a team headed by the financial
controller performing valuations for the financial
instruments. The team reports directly to the directors
and the audit committee. A valuation report with
analysis of changes in fair value measurement is
prepared by the team at each interim and annual
reporting date, and is reviewed and approved by the
directors. Discussion of the valuation process and
results with the directors and the audit committee is
held twice a year, to coincide with the reporting dates.

31. MEAREERMEIALZ
LFHE ()

()

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into
RIS-ZE+ZAZ+-BMATFEHERRE

NP ETE (B)
HWHEEERBEZLFETE
(%)

NFERBR (&)
AEEA B RV HAEHREN
B HeRmIAETHE-Z
EREENEEREZZEEW
FoREGRETHNFEERSE R
HiRELEERS  ERAFEE
BB zoM BREFEN R
E-BEMR HEFRELEZE
SR EERFRER  KELE
ABWREEH-

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2012 categorised into
RZE-ZE+-A=+-ANATEHENEAR

Fair value at Fair value at
31 December 31 December
2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZ2-Z% i
+=8 TR
=+-A =t+-A
HATE %-RE S-R #ZE HATE £-E £ %-F
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERTE ARRTT AEMTRT ARRTE ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
The Group *50
Recurring fair value measurements ERENTEE
Assets: AE:
Financial assets designated EEREATEIA
as at FVTPL BR/MBEE 40,558 40,558 - - 42,603 42,603 - -
Liabilties: af:
Derivative financial liability BB aE - - - - 87) - (87) -
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31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

()

(9

Fair value measurements (Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair
value measurements

The fair value of forward exchange contracts in
Level 2 is determined by discounting the contractual
forward price and deducting the current spot rate.
The discount rate used is derived from the relevant
government yield curve as at the end of the reporting
period plus an adequate constant credit spread.

Fair value of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company's financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2012 and 2013.

31. MERREERMBIRZ
SFHE (&)

()

(9

ATEHE ()
HERERAMZAFENE
(%)
WHE-ZE——FR-_F—=F
toASt—AILEE R
E-ErEESSE AEEES
FEASHE  AEEY BE SR
BEWH Y BEBARDATE
[E # e it o

F_EAVEFERBZMEER
1l Ko 8 A BRI

F_EBANEHINEAN 2 AFE
TyiE BRI G #E BB AR
BITENHAE REERE  PrERA 2 B3R
RN BERR 2 BERFES
WaRmErAZEEFERESE

s
== o
Al >+

WHAFEIEZHBEIRZ
~¥E

IREE B I AR A B IR AR 2 S AR
BRI TAZREEREE
RN - T—=F+—
B=Z+—HBZAFETEERS
Bl
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Acquisition of 80% of equity interests of HLV Duc Hoa
As the Group is exploring the funeral related business, on
6 December 2012, Bao Son Life, an indirect 80% owned
subsidiary of the Company, and an independent third party
(the “Vendor"”) signed a contract for the sale and purchase
of shares (the “Contract”), pursuant to which the Vendor
agreed to sell and Bao Son Life agreed to purchase the total
of 4,000,000 shares of HLV Duc Hoa (the “Sale Shares"),
which represents 80% of the authorised capital of HLV
Duc Hoa. Pursuant to the Contract, Bao Son Life agrees
to make a payment of VND40,000,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB12,000,000) to the Vendor by way of
capital contribution in order to enable the Vendor to pay up
for the Sale Shares and the Vendor has undertaken to Bao
Son Life that the Vendor shall transfer all the Sales Shares
owned by the Vendor in HLV Duc Hoa to Bao Son Life six
months after Bao Son Life make the payment. The Vendor
further undertake that except Bao Son Life, the Vendor shall
not transfer any of the Sale Shares or profit or benefits or
rights of HLV Duc Hoa to any third party.

Up to 31 December 2013, an accumulated amount
of approximately VND36,798,440,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB10,967,000) was made by Bao Son Life
to the Vendor as the capital contribution into HLV Duc Hoa.

Pursuant to the Contract, Bao Son Life has the right to
appoint all the directors who are representative of the
Vendor as the members of the board of directors of HLV
Duc Hoa and the key management staff and all managerial
personnels for directing HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most
significantly affect the returns.
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32. YR E 2

BE-Z—_—F+=-A=t+—HL
FE

WEEHLYV Duc HoaHy80 % /R 7 1 25
AARAEBERRBEMBBEER BN
—E-—HF+-ANH AR REEE
BE80% MM BARE I EmE—F
BYE=F([BFET—HERHE
EAR ([ZER]) Bt BARAEH
ERE L AamRERE 4 4,000,000
AEHLV Duc Hoaltfn (&R MK]) &
HEFAHLY Duc Hoalk E R R HI80% °
BIEZER BlLEGREARSNTE
7R M E A = #E E40,000,000,000
7T (HHE# ARM12,000,0005T) @ F5
FEUBRHEERD mMBEAHAERAE L
EmAHEE I ESIMERNRENE
B #& 5 HLY DucHoalE B K
HERMNEERE LED -BEHE—F
AFE-BRELEDIN BB T EE
HLV Duc HoaJfE{r] $4& % 19 3k i 1) 3%
PSRN FERE=F -

HE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—8"
ELAEDEMERFEEIND
36,798,440,000iF & (HERLHAR
#10,967,0007T ) ' tEAMEHLY Duc Hoa
ZIEB -

RZARRE BlUAEmEEZRAE
EE(HEABEHMHREK)AHLY Duc
HoaZEE @ EREBEEAB LA
EEBAR FEYHRRERATEZ
HLV Duc HoaZ: 7% /& & -
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued)

Acquisition of 80% of equity interests of HLV Duc Hoa
(Continued)

HLV Duc Hoa is a company with limited liability established
in Vietnam on 22 June 2012 with the authorised capital
of VND50,000,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB14,900,000) divided into 5,000,000 shares of
VND10,000 each. HLV Duc Hoa has obtained the land
use right in a land located in Long An Province, Vietnam,
which is formally designated for use as cemetery by the
Vietnamese government, at a cost of VND17,200,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB5,100,000) through an
auction held on 3 December 2012. HLV Duc Hoa made use
of the contribution from the Vendor which was sourced
from Bao Son Life to acquire the land and obtained the land
use rights certificate on 11 January 2013.

The directors of the Group consider the acquisition date is
7 December 2012 after Bao Son Life paid an accumulated
amount of approximately US$981,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB6,158,000 or VND20,429,250,000) to
HLV Duc Hoa through the Vendor as capital of HLV Duc Hoa.

Prior to the acquisition date of 7 December 2012, HLV Duc
Hoa has not yet commenced any business and did not have
any assets or liabilities. For the period from 7 December
2012 to 31 December 2012, HLV Duc Hoa contributed
revenue and loss of approximately RMBNil and RMB678,000
respectively to the revenue and loss of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

32. B AT ()

BE_Z——F+=ZA=+—HL
FE(H)

WEEHLYV Duc Hoahy80% % 7k 1 2%
(#)

HLV Duc Hoa®— R =T —=F <A
T+t oHEMBERZHMBRAR AT
A% 7K & 8% B J&'50,000,000,0007T (8 %
%49 A R #14,900,0007T) (#£5,000,000
B SR ABEE10,0007T) ° HLV
Duc HoaBE BB R B mELE —
T M A B2 BB BT
EXETABEER ERAABE
J&17,200,000,0007C (FBEH AR
5,100,00070) ' YA —E——F+_— A
—HiBEBAEEA - HWV Duc Hoalb F
BEHEBE L EmIEHERREZLE
IR —E—=F—F+—HEE L
ERAEES-

REBILEDBEIBE HAHLY Duc Hoa
TN EF £ FEA981,000% 5T (A
ZH ANRE6,158,000T K M EE
20,429,250,0007T ) YE AHLV Duc HoaZ
BERE AEEEERARBRSAC
Z-—_F+-A+tH-

R-ZE——FE+-_F+tHMNKEBH
AT - HLV Duc Hoaid A i & F {1 5 7%
B EBEEANEEXBE R
——H+-_At+tHRE-_ZT——F+=-A
=+—B 18 HLV Duc HoalA A&
BHE—ZT——-—F+-_A=+—HI1F
EHRAREEF ISR ARBES
R A ARBEZITIAN AREE78,000
TTo
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2013

Disposal of 70% equity interests in Beijing Xizhou
Hangyu Property Management Company Limited
(“Xizhou Hangyu™)

On 2 April 2013, Beijing Xizhou Baushan Technology
Company Limited (“Beijing Xizhou Baushan”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, established
Xizhou Hangyu in the PRC with an independent third party
non-controlling shareholder. Of the registered capital of
RMB1,000,000 of Xizhou Hangyu, the Group held 70%
of the equity interests and the non-controlling shareholder
held 30% of the equity interests. Xizhou Hangyu was
principally engaged in the provision of supporting services to
a cemetery located in Beijing, including the overall planning,
design and construction of the cemetery.

On 18 December 2013, Beijing Xizhou Baushan
disposed all its 70% equity interests in Xizhou Hangyu
to an independent third party at a consideration of
RMB1,216,000.

33. HEMRB LT

BE-Z—=F+-A=t+—HL
FE

HEIRBEAMFYFEEBRA A
([B/EAMF ) 270%K F #a

R-ZZE—=FNAZH ARRZMEE
2EMBARLERHEAELUMKAR
AE (TERBEE W) EH— 2K
BRE(RBILE=77)NPEKLHE
T -HEMTIEMERARARE
1,000,0007T » H AR AN B ] 5% 4 SR 12X
IR D BIFFH70% K% 30% 2 IR AR 25 -
5 AMT R E B R BRI R — B
HEREERY REENEEM
g At hER-

R-ZZE—=F+ZR+N\B itRHAE
BIIHEERBAMT 2 28E70% AR
BET-BBYUE=T RER/ARE
1,216,0007T °

Consideration received 2 WRE
2013
—Ee—=
RMB’'000
AR®FT
Total consideration received BWRE MRS EEBEYWRERE
in cash and cash equivalents 1,216
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 33. HEMB AT (##)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control REEFEZEERBEBEIN
was lost
2013
=%
RMB’000
AR®TR
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables o E W R IR 700
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFEEFEY 191
891
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H B 5RIE (16)
(16)

Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 875
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEME 2Rk
Consideration received ERRE 1,216
Net assets disposed of BEHNEEEFE (875)
Non-controlling interests E g 263
Gain on disposal (note 5) & W (FiFEs) 604
The gain on disposal is included in “other net (loss)/gain” HERGEFT ARG B REMEE NS
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and =P THALF (B518) Wz BE -

other comprehensive income.

2013
—E—=%
RMB’'000
AR®TR
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARZHESRA R
Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of EHERS MRS EEMEHR (191)
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents IR & RIS HEBEMHE N2
EHRE 1,216
1,025
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Disposal of 100% equity interests in Full Famous

Development Limited (“Full Famous”)

On 31 March 2012, Jing Run Limited, a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, disposed its 100% equity
interests in Full Famous to an independent third party,
Forever Famous Holdings Limited, at a consideration of
US$645,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,061,000).
Full Famous and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Chongqging
Full Famous Stone Material Co., Ltd., were mainly engaged
in the trading of raw marble used for the construction of

building and gravestone.

33. HEMB2T ()

BE-Z—_—F+=-A=t+—HL
FE

HEREEBEZRERLAA ([EE])z
100% R #&
R-E——F=ZA=+—8 ' KAQ7A
ZIHEEEWBRARTRBERRAT
K {E645,000% L (HHERHARE
4,061,0007T ) # H 70 2 £ 2 100% % #2
H & F — & Y87 55 = J Forever Famous
Holdings Limited - @ E R H 2 & B A
REFYEAMEREAAREERS
BEEEFEEREAFRAMNARKELR
e

2012
—E——fF
RMB'000
ARBFT
Consideration received B E
Total consideration received in cash and BUWIRE K
cash equivalents ReEBYREMLE 4,061
Analysis of assets and liabilities over BERERHECEERARZAN
which control was lost
Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment (note 15(a)) W S MR (9 EE15)) 952
952
Current assets mEEE
Inventories BE 8,494
Other receivables H e R IR 228
Cash and cash equivalents RERBESEFEY 142
8,864
Current liabilities mEARE
Trade and other payables B 5 M E b BT BRR (6,413)
(6,413)
Net assets disposed of Frit & 2 BEFAE 3,403
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBLARZKE
Consideration received 2R E 4,061
Net assets disposed of FritE s EEFE (3,403)
Cumulative exchange gain in respect of the net et )= /N v 2
assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from equity BnENOEEEE 2B AT
to profit or loss on loss of control of subsidiaries BEFE RFTER K& 76
Gain on disposal (note 5) & s (MFEES) 734

The gain on disposal is included in “other net (loss)/gain”
line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income.
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33.

34,

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

33. HEMB2F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (Continued) BE_Z——F+=ZA=+—HL
FE (&)

2012

RI\/lB 000

ARBTT

Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBABRZRERARE

Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed of FEEZRERASEEY (142)
Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEWIRE RIREEEWNRE 4,061
3,919

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 HEEAZEERH

TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material related
party transactions:

(@) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as

AEEDETUTHERFZEERS:

() TEEEAEME

AEEXTZEERAEMEBREX
NFARARESE (K EFTH
BIRETHESFHEES (B

OFF R ) Z FRIBIA T -

follows:

2013 2012
—E£—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T

Salaries and other short-term HeMEMEHESER
employee benefits 5,279 7,511
Post-employment benefits BERAE R 31 23
Equity compensation benefits IR A E R A 29 286
5,339 7,820

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see
note 6(b)).

Foemat ATEIAAA] (R

#t6(b)) °
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3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 HEEAZITERH (i)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other related parties transactions

(i)

(i)

On 1 January 2012, the Company has entered
into the Trademark Licence Agreement (the
“Trademark Agreement”) with Mr. Liu Tien-
Tsai (“Mr. Liu”). Pursuant to the Trademark
Agreement, Mr. Liu has agreed to grant to the
Group on an exclusive basis a licence to use
a number of trademarks and service marks in
connection with the Group’s funeral services
business at a consideration of Hk$1,000 per
year.

On 14 March 2003, a deed of trust (the “Niao
Song Deed”) was entered into between Bau
Shan and Ms. Li Pi Hsia ("Ms. Li"), spouse of Mr.
Liu, in relation to the land property situated in
Taiwan at No. 943 in Section Linnei, Niao Song
Township, Kaohsiung County (the “Niao Song
Property”). Under the Niao Song Deed, Bau
Shan agreed that the Niao Song Property, which
is owned by Bau Shan, shall be registered under
the name of and held on trust by Ms. Li for Bau
Shan for a term of ten years commencing on 14
March 2003. Ms. Li has agreed that she shall act
in the interest of Bau Shan in relation to the Niao
Song Property during the term of the Niao Song
Deed. On 15 March 2013, a renewal of Niao
Song Deed was entered into for a term of ten
years commencing on 15 March 2013.
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NEIEHERRE (T2
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ERERGEREE2ET
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3. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 34 HEEAZETERXH (i)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other related parties transactions (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Mr. Liu signed a confirmation letter agreeing
the licensee, Chongging Xibao, to lawfully
use the property situated at unit 1404 on
Level 14, Zhongxing Garden, No. 1 Heping
Road, Chongging City, the PRC (the “Licensed
Property”) as the registered office without
the payment of rent or licence fee. The
signed confirmation from Mr. Liu authorising
Chongging Xibao to use the Licensed Property
as its registered office does not limit Mr. Liu’s
personal use, rental and mortgage of the
Licensed Property. There was no revenue or
profit contributed by the Licensed Property
during the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012 as there had been no occupancy of the
Licenced Property during the years.

The property licensing arrangement with Mr. Liu
will last until 30 January 2052.

Guarantee for an amount of RMB30,318,000
(equivalent to US$5,000,000) (2012: Nil) is given
by Mr. Liu to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group and the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

(b) EdH

R

(iii)

(iv)

ﬁﬁ%;ﬁZﬁ%(ﬁ)
BIEAEEFRTERE RAE
ﬁT%ﬂ&AEE%%Té
EFEAMR R EE MM
1 5% A ELIE B 14421404
EME([FTFrmE])E
ABEAMEEE TAINE
MESHTATEBEER
FINERE REEEHE
5 AT Y EAE R
NE MBI ERR DA
ZARIMEEEER HE
MEHRAZ BREES
—=FRZE—-F+=HA
—+—HLFERRERAZ
AW TR I E R E
A A R & O F

BB AL 2 MEFALR
R RE_TR_F—H
=+Hik-

2% £ 5t AR #30,318,000
JLERIE (FHE 7 5,000,000%
) (ZE—ZF E\) 2R
HIER EREE T —=
F+-A=+—BHULFER
FAREENARRRZEITH
kil
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35. OPERATING LEASES

(a)

(b)

(0

The Group as lessee

At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

35. EEHE

(a)

REBEREBEA
R-FB—=F+-A=+—8"
RIFTAIBEEE EHE M AAE
ZARKZEBEE KA 2 2
BT

The Group
*EH

2013 2012
—E—= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Within 1 year —FR 14,135 8,387
After 1 year but within 5 years —FENREFA 42,355 43,048
After 5 years hFE 41,261 48,950
97,751 100,385

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its sales offices and
hire of funeral parlours and funeral service centres.
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 2 to
20 years (2012: 2 to 20 years) and certain leases
include contingent rentals which are based on certain
percentage of sales and the PRC consumer price index
respectively.

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2013, the Group had contracted with
tenants in respect of part of its office and plant and
equipment for the following future minimum lease

(b)

wERETHEAEEREET
HERNERTHAREELREE
BRI LB 2% - T2 T
FHEHBEA_E_TE (=%
——F:ZF=4F) BETH
HEESIBREHEEZBE LR
FEOEBEREYGTE A
3__3;0

AEBEALREA

RZE—=%F+=ZHA=+—8"
REBBEBHRAZUREE
BEMEBAFFTHO 2 R RRIE

payments: MENRELT
The Group
TEHE

2013 2012
—$—= —g——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Within 1 year —F R 8 12

None of the lease includes contingent rentals. WEBABERAEE -

The Company had no significant operating lease
commitments as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

36. BHFKIiE

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2013 not
provided for in the financial statements are as follows:

REBHREARBEINR T —=F
TZA=T—HARARBITZEREER
T

The Group
T5E
2013 2012
—E—-=F —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%®TR AREFT
Capital expenditure contracted EERAERERE CERRAX
but not provided for:

— Property, plant and equipment —WE - WE REE 1,024 8,567
— Investment in a joint venture —R—EEERAZ’E 6,500 6,500

— Grave under development —FBR 2 HIHE RN
for sale 693 -
8,217 15,067

37. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 37. EHRE

As at 31 December 2013, bank borrowings and other
loan of the Group were secured by land and buildings and
pledged bank deposit with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB24,206,000 (2012: RMB21,173,000) and RMBNil (2012:

RMB17,869,000) respectively.

R-TE—=F+-A=+—H A£HE
BITEEREMERHAIWREEFK
EHMETER (REAED B AA
R#24,206,000 (ZZE—=—F: AR
#621,173,000) RARBZ L (=ZF
— 4 AR¥17,869,0007T ) {EIEIE -
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38.

39.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATIONS

During the year ended December 2013, the Company
has given corporate guarantee of RMB16,192,000
(equivalent to NTD80,000,000) (2012: RMBNil) to a bank
to secure the banking facilities granted to Bau Shan. At 31
December 2013, the amount of facilities utilised by Bau
Shan amounted to RMBNil (2012: RMBNil). The fair value
of the financial guarantee contract at the date of grant of
RMB1,951,000 representing a deemed capital contribution
to the subsidiary during the year ended 31 December 2013,
has been adjusted to the carrying amount of investments
in subsidiaries and recognised as a financial guarantee
obligation.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under the guarantee. The maximum liability of
the Company at the end of the reporting period under the
guarantee issued is the facility drawn down by the subsidiary
of RMBNil.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

38. MBEHERE

BER-_ZE—=F+-_ALFE &2
AAZILMRITEERED A —RIIRTT
IR AR16,192,0007T (FHERH
¥75%80,000,000) (ZE—=4%F: AR
BMEL) RZE—=F+=A=+—
B ZBLESENREEAARKES
T(ZE——F: AREZT) -REH
HHFEERANVHNAFTEAARE
1,951,000 (AR E=Z—=F+=
A=1+—HIFERERNBRARNE
E) BRAZRERMNBARZIRENE
A THERBMISEREE-

RBEHR EFRSTAAEERIE
ERAARBIRENRE - RIFS#H
ZHER ARRRBERRZBELR
BB RRIERIBZBEAREST-

39. RIFBATIZIRE

The Company

b /|

2013 2012

—E—Z=fF T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTTT AERETIT

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR AR 34,049 35,117

Unlisted capital contributions JELTEE 1,951 -
Amount due from NGRS

a subsidiary (note (a)) (F5E@)) 70,175 -

106,175 35,117

Less: Impairment losses (note (b)) B R EETE (b)) (15,190) (15,667)

90,985 19,450
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39. INVESTMENTS

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and will not be
demanded for repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the
amount forms part of the investment cost in the subsidiary.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain
subsidiaries had incurred operating losses. After reviewing
the financial performance and financial position of the
subsidiaries and taking into account the current market
environment, the directors consider that impairment
losses on the investment costs in the subsidiaries to their
recoverable amounts should be made. The impairment losses
were charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
further acquired 40% equity interests in Sino-Departures
Limited, increasing its ownership interests to 100%. The
consideration of RMB1,092,000 were paid in cash. An
amount of RMB1,147,000 (being the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net assets of Sino-Departures
Limited) has been transferred from non-controlling interests.
The difference of RMB55,000 between the decrease in the
non-controlling interests and the consideration paid has been
credited to accumulated losses.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group further
acquired 5% equity interests in Sino-Life Eternities Limited,
which is the holding company of Sino-Life Eternities Services
Limited, increasing its ownership interests to 78.75%. The
consideration of RMB2,000 were paid in cash. An amount
of RMB2,000 (being the proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of Sino-Life Eternities Limited and
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited) has been transferred
from non-controlling interests.

IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. W BARZIRE (&)

ZEREAEEN 2R HBARENR
BE-BERAR RLEBEXMELF
BRERAH—ED -

REBE-_Z——F+=-A=+—AH1t
FE ETHBRREESLEHE K
=R B AR BERE RHEHR
MERBEBATMBERERE 25 K
HMB AR 2 ERAEL REERE
SHAIRE S HE  REBEREARA T
BEREME2mEIEER A

REBEE-_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
IHEE - ARa#E—FSWRE PR Z
TEERRDE Z40%M 4 1=
FrEEREREI00% REAARE
1,092,000t AER & - AR
1,147,0007T ( BVZ Bb B jE (5 AR B 3% 77
EHRARFEEZEEEBEIEAE
VERR AR RS B I o SRR RS 2 R B
B EZ Z58 ARS55000Tq A
2:tEBE-

Hz—_Z——F+-_A=+—H1t
FE AEEE—SREFBRTED
BRAR (ATPEFTLEGREERRD
A Z¥ERR A R)) Z5%H%HE - 18 AN E A
BEHERETISTIN% REAARKE
2,0007T ' AR & 15 - AR¥2,0007T
(BMZLLBIE(R R BT £ AR A A
MHEHEGREERARNFEEY
BREME) B B IR -

TELEBEERRLE —E-ZFFR
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39. INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)  The Group does not hold any ownership interests in the
entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based on the terms of the
Contract under which HLV Duc Hoa was established, the
Group receives substantially all of the returns related to HLV
Duc Hoa's operations and net assets and has the current
ability to direct HLV Duc Hoa's activities that most significantly
affect the returns.

(e)  Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, which are private
companies or, if established/incorporated outside Hong Kong,
have substantially the same characteristic as a Hong Kong
private company, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as

Wi

(d

IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. WM BATRZIRE (&)

(&)

N ENF A HLY Duc Hoa 2 £ 1Al Fir
B HERERS o A AR IE A2 HLV Duc Hoa
ZEERZ G AR E AT S
EPRAMHLY Duc Hoa% 7§ 2 B3k N %
BEE LA B ATA B 1 EEZHLY Duc
Hoai B3 B S A2 2 %75 -

RZE—=FR=ZF—ZF+=A
=t+—B ARBRZHEBRAR (ARLA
AEK (MR EBEINK L FE A
Y)EBBEBEARRKBIERZ

follows: FE) 2 FBENT
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of business
B/
G NGE-E BI%E B8 BETRARRAUERRS i:411:3 TERY/EERE
2013 2012 2013 2012
-8-=% “B-Cf Z8-zf 2 °F%
Directly held
EERE
Bau Shan * Taiwan Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services, sale
29 December 1998 NTD70,452,000 NTD165,240,000 of funeral services deeds and
investment holding/Taiwan
B Al A £l RERERE HERERY
“AANETZA MAW0452000T  #57%165,240,0007 RRERR/ 48
~thA
Full Spread (China) Limited ** Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
5 October 2007 HK$1 HK$1
b (B BRAR Bk BE il RERR/EE
“Z2t5+TALA 1ET AT
Allied Smart Development Limited **  Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
1 April 2010 HK$1 HK$1
SEHERERAR Bk BE il RERR/ %
—“Z2-Z5MA-B 1ET AT
Sino-Life (Hong Kong) Limited ** Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Provision of funeral services and
9 August 2010 HK$1 HK$1 sale of funeral services deeds/
Hong Kong
HEED (B)BRAA ik #E i REBERBR
“Z-ZE/\ANE 18T 1AL HEBBRBRY /B8
Dayrise Enterprises Limited ** BVI Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 Uss$1 Us$1
ARERARAE ERRAES A £l REER/ZRERES
“E-ZEAATZE 1RR (B
Jing Run Limited ** BVI Ordinary Ordinary 55% 55% Trading of raw marble/Taiwan
12 February 2010 US$1,000,000 US$1,000,000
RERRAR ERRAES A £l EERBARK/ A%
ZT-TFZFTZH  1,000000%7 1,000,000 T
Skyward Fountain Enterprise Limited **  Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/Hong Kong
19 October 2011 HKS1 HKS$1
REGRFARRAF &t A £l REER/EE
“E—ETATAE 1R 17T
Timeless Surplus (Hong Kong) Limited **  Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Motor vehicle holding/
17 April 2012 HKS1 HKS$1 Hong Kong
&t A £l REEBEE/BE
“E-E@AtTLE @R 1AL

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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39. INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e)

IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. WBARZIRE (&)

BifeE: (48D

(Continued) ©) (&)
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of business
3T
HELERE BIEE AR BETRBERAEEMES {5 TERY/EEHM
2013 2012 2013 2012
8-zf —2-CF 8- —T--F
Indirectly held
MERE
Bao De ** Taiwan Ordinary Ordinary 83.33% 83.33%  Inactive/Taiwan
6 November 2000 NTD108,000,000 NTD108,000,000
g B ¢ ] ! TER/ Q&
ME 108,000,000  #&%108,000,0007
Ban Shan Consulting Limited ** Samoa Ordinary - 100% - Provision of consulting services/
14 November 2013 Us$1 Taiwan
EED ¢ ] - REHARE,/ 28
b 2 1R
T-A+TmA
Chongging Xibao * The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100%  Consultation of funeral services
19 March 2007 US$8,000,000 US$8,000,000 and investment holding/
The PRC
EEHE* HE EfRF HMER BEREHAR
ZETEEZATAE 8,000,000%T 8,000,000% 7 RARR/
Chongging Xizhou ** The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100% Provision of funeral services/The
25 October 2006 RMB300,000 RMB300,000 PRC
ERHA HE HRES AR RUBERE/ P8
ZEE5F A BE:#300,0007T AR #300,0007
+A-+1AH
Sino-Life Eternities Limited ** (note () ~ BVI Ordinary Ordinary 78.75% 78.75%  Investment holding/BVI
15 April 2010 US$10,000 US$10,000
PEHEGERRE (M) EERARS ¢ ] L RERR/ZBELES
“Z-TERATEA 1000057 10,0005 7
Sino-Life Eternities Services Limited **  Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 78.75% 78.75%  Not yet commenced business/
(note (c)) 20 April 2010 HK$1 HK$1 Hong Kong
PEFEGRBERAF 30 i ! HWARE/ B
(Fi3E@) —3-%F & 1T
MA-+A
Jinhao Enterprises Limited ** BVI Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding/BVI
13 September 2010 Us$1 US$1
SREEBRAF ERRAHS L E] ! RERR/EBELES
—3-%F 1% %7
hAT=ZH
Sino-Departures Limited ** (note (¢)) Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 60%  Not yet commenced business/
5 December 2011 HK$5 HK$5 Hong Kong
PEETERRAE (M) 30 i ! HWARE/ B
2K S5ET SET
+ZA%A

TELEBEERRLE —E-ZFFR
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39. INVESTMENTS

IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. WM BARZIRE (&)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued) Moz : (&)
(e)  (Continued) (e) (%)
Place and date of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up share or Attributable Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital equity interest place of business
B/
GANGEE BI%E B8 BETRARRAUERRS i:411:3 TERE/BENY
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-cf I 3 IZ-Z§ —T-CF
Indirectly held (Continued)
MERs (8)
Bao Son Life ** Vietnam Paid up capital Paid up capital 80% 80%  Investment holding/Vietnam
20 June 2012 US$200,000 US$200,000
Bl ik HERF SRR RERR/ BF
“E-ZERAZTHE 200,005 200,000%7C
HLV Duc Hoa ** (note (d)) Vietnam Paid up capital Paid up capital - - Sale of graves and provision
22 June 2012 VND36,798,439,515 VND20,429,250,000 of cemetery maintenance
services/Vietnam
HLV Duc Hoa** (13E(d)) i HERFEEE HRRAEER HEZWRIEH
“T-CER 36,798,439,5157C 20,429,250,0007T ERRERY /M
A-t=H
Beijing Xizhou Baushan * The PRC Registered capital Registered capital 100% 100%  Provision of consultation
8 October 2012 US$1,000,000 US$1,000,000 services/The PRC
EREEZ W HE gEF &R REFARE,/ PE
“E-Z&+ANH 1,000,000% 5% 1,000,000 7T
* A wholly-foreign-owned enterprise * INEEE R
** A limited liability company > BREMERQA

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013
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39. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 39. RiEBATZIRE (&)
(Continued)

BifeE: (48D

TEREBINERANEEZME LR (F
BEAIFEEER) WER - T2
ZHBERBERRETENRRM

Notes: (Continued)

) The following tables list out the information relating )
to each of the Group’s subsidiaries which has material
non-controlling interest (NCI). The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before iR 225
any inter-company elimination.
2013 2012
—2—=5F —E-C—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Jing Run Limited RHEBARLF
NCI percentage EERERE DL 45% 5%
Current assets MEVEE 7,022 7,360
Non-current assets EMENEE - -
Current liabilities MENE & - (116)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE = -
Net assets BEFE 7,022 7,244
Carrying amount of NCI IR ERRE(E 3,160 3,260
Revenue Wz - 11
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE (FE), 5 F) ) 53
Total comprehensive loss T HEEERBZE (222) (53)
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DEEIFERER 2
(B518) i 7l (1) 24

Total comprehensive loss allocated to 93 Bt = JE4E AR A 25 2

NCI B M (100) (24)
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR R R = -
Cash flows from operating activities — #& & EE)IR &7 (3,644) 3,083
Cash flows from investing activities BETHEE N - 3,891
Cash flows from financing activities ~ BE EENIR &7 (346) (4,167)

40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. LIRREEERNEERZES
TRANSACTIONS

REARBDAMRE-_ZTZEAFNA
“HHEMBRREERESR  CHER
R IRt 8 ([FERERTE]) - Bk
AT B T EiRF BT

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 24 August 2009, a share option scheme
("Share Option Scheme”) was approved and adopted. The
major terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

(a) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable (a) BEix#rElzZBrEFEARGM
the Company to grant options to eligible participants HAEECDEHK AT ELE BRI
who have contributed or may contribute to the Group E’J/\éﬁu 2EERTEBERE ER
as incentive or rewards for their contributions to the REHAEEELERVEBIS
Group. i&%ﬂ °
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(9

(d)

(e)

The eligible participants include (i) any employee or
proposed employee of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which
the Group holds an equity interest, including any
executive directors and any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of
the Company, any of such subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; and (ii) any consultants, advisers, agents,
partners or joint-venture partners of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The exercise price of a share option under the Share
Option Scheme will not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date of the particular option,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as shown in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date of
that particular option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the particular option.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue (“General Scheme Limit").

The total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 74,250,000 representing
10% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
year end date.

Unless approved by the Company’s shareholders, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to any participants in
any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue at the date of the grant of the options.

Sino-Life Group Limited Annual Report 2013

5 (#)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

AERSEERENAAR R
EAL(AIPH 8 A RIS AR B R A
AESWEMNER ([REER])
BEFESSEERES BFEAR
A HEAMBA RS ENREE
AT AMITE S RATA AT
S5 (BRELFNTES) R
(VAR R,/ kB AR B A R
MERAEAA R KR A%
ATBERH -

BT SR TRRENTTERE
HrgLR M I&ERE : (REFE
BRENZHERH(BAREER
BB R e R RER LR
TN RZFTHWTE (DB Z
FERBKENED R B AEZ
EARORBRAERARERL
R B UL T B R i) o
FrEBAEZ X B BRE(E -

RIS B T &) R A B A
BN TREN 2 EREREE
TTEERAERTHRNAHAH
THREBBEARNRFDETERMDH
10% ([—fREHEIRER]) -

BIFE T & 7] T EITH D
4880 574,250,0000% - FHE R AR
AIRFHEB B ETIRDAI0% °

BRIFEARDBRRALAE - BRINME
o]+ — & A MR AR TR T E
M2EENBRESETRET
BITHR DR TNMESREaR LB
PEE R BITRODMI% -
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URiEREBROHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

()

(9

(h)

An offer shall be made to eligible participants in
writing and shall remain open for acceptance by the
eligible participants concerned for a period of 30 days
from the date upon which it is made provided that no
such offer shall be open for acceptance after the 10th
anniversary of the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme or the termination of the scheme. An offer
shall be deemed to have been accepted by the eligible
participant concerned in respect of all shares which are
offered to such participant when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
eligible participant, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$10 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof is received
by the Company, within such time as may be specified
in the offer.

For the options granted in 2010, they are exercisable
starting half year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

For the options granted in 2012, they are exercisable
starting one year from the grant date. The exercisable
period should be determined by the board of directors
upon grant of the share option but in any event
should not exceed 5 years from the date of grant of
the share option.

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part in
the circumstances by giving notice in writing to the
Company stating that the option is thereby exercised
and the number of shares in respect of which it is so
exercised. Each such notice must be accompanied by a
non-refundable remittance for the full amount of the
subscription price for shares in respect of which the
notice is given.

% (#&)

()

(9)

(h)

BEHNANEEARGERZHE
Efe YAREHE RE=1H
BRI AN ER2EE
EERM ERRABERETEE
A TRAFRAZAIR LR
SHREHBANHER - EARRTF]
REBHAFIFANEEAZESS
HAEEBR2REEARZENED
BWERIAR  ERNTARE AR
REEFI0BTIERA R BN
BRHERRE MRE2LEZEAER
SEENZHBRONELD RS
ERAMSEERN-

R-ZE—ZTFEREZERER
5 FERET BB TR
A1T{E - A PITE BRI ERZ R E S
IR IEIRE 2 T M ER
RS BRI D B AR A AR
105 -

[ i

MR- —FROZBREM
5 RERE L B — F1RH
AT - Al FIT IR ES
SRR EBREZ SETE - EER
Anfa] NS R A 15t A A HE B AR
FtofF e

ERANARARNARE LA
FEVE R T 2 BBk A2 171 B8 Ak
1 ZBAATRBREERILTT
68 Re 77162 B AR P08 B O B A7)
B - R A BV ARNMTIRE
B SERBELOBATANE R
MEBERMDABE-
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) % (#8)
(i)  The terms and conditions of the options granted are as (i) EREBEREZERIZIEE D
follows: Rk
Contractual
Number of  Exercisable life of
instruments period options
({2 4
fBRESE  {TEHE BHNFEY
Options granted in 2010:
RZZ-ZFEREZBRE:
Options granted to directors:
RTEREBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 6,420,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-TF_A+—H —E-EEN\A+—BZE 106
—Z-TF_At+—H
Options granted to employees:
RTEECBRE:
—on 11 February 2010 11,680,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-TF_A+—H —E-EEN\A+—BZE 106
—Z-TF_At+—H
Options granted to consultants:
RYBEM 2 BRE:
—on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 10 years
-RZZE-TF_A+—H —E-EEN\A+—BZE 106
—Z-TF_At+—H
Total share options 60,000,000
BEREEH
Options granted in 2012:
RZZE-——FRHEBRE:
Options granted to directors:
RTEEHBRE:
—on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
—RZE-Z_F—-H+X<H —Z-=F-AtRBE 5%
“E—t¥—RATHA
Options granted to employees:
RTEECHBRE:
—on 16 January 2012 14,920,000 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 5 years
-RZE--F—-A+XAH —Z-=F-AtRBE 54
“E—t¥—RATHA
Total share options 16,920,000

BRERE

The method of settlement for the options granted are
by equity. The closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before 11 February 2010 and 16 January
2012, the dates on which the options were granted,
were HK$1.16 and HK$0.24 respectively.
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URiEREBROHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(j)  The particulars of outstanding options at the end of

% (#&)

() RBEBRZHRITEBREF

the reporting period as follows: BT
2013 2012
—2-= —E-Cf
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
mEFEy MEF
TR MERENE 728 EIREHE
Outstanding at the FMEARITE
beginning of the year HK$1.06#% T 66,032,000 HK$1.18/% T 52,736,000
Exercised during the year ~ FRE{TE - = - -
Forfeited during the year ~ FRE R 1K - = - -
Granted during the year ~ FRBE RN - - HK$0.60/5 7T 16,920,000
Lapsed during the year FRE LM HK$0.60# 7T (3,480,000) HK$0.717& 7T (3,624,000)
Cancelled during the year ~ SR E 84 - - - -
Outstanding at the end of ~ FERHFKRITEE
the year HK$1.08i#& 7T 62,552,000 HK$1.067 T 66,032,000
Exercisable at the end of & A F17f#
the year HK$1.06i& 7T 52,652,000 HK$1.18B 7T 32,272,000

TELEBEERRLE —E-ZFFR
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

)

(Continued)

5 (#)

)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at

(%)

RS BR 2 5 R E w5 A R TT

the end of the reporting period are as follows: R A BARR 40 T
Number of  Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2013 instruments  period period price
—2-=%+ZA=+-H IRKE BEHY fTEs fTE®
Options granted to employees:
BPEEzERE:
-on 11 February 2010 10,172,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-2F-A+-H “Z-ZF-f+-HZ “2-ZF)\A+-BZ 11887
“Z-ZE)\A+H —Z-EFE-R+-H
Options granted to consultants:
BRYEMzERE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-Z2F-A+-H “T-F5-fR+-HE “Z-ZF)\A+-RBZ 118% 7T
“2-ZF\ATH 2T _Rt-H
Options granted to a director:
ByERzBRE:
-on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
~RZF-ZF-A1iA ZE-ZF-ATRAE ZE-F-ATRBE 0.60787T
“T-=§-A1EA iR
Options granted to employees:
ByEEzERE:
-on 16 January 2012 8,480,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZE-Z5-A1/H ZE-_F-R+REE ZE-ZF-Rt+RHE 0.60%7T
ZZ-=%—-A+HA —Z2—+%-A+hA
Total share options outstanding 62,552,000
RATTRBRE RS
Number of ~ Vesting Exercisable Exercise
31 December 2012 instruments  period period price
“2-"%+ZRA=+-H IABE BEX fTEs fTER
Options granted to employees:
BRTYES 2 HRE:
-on 11 February 2010 10,172,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZE-A+-H “T-T5ZR+-HE Z2-ZF)\A+-BZ 1.18%7T
“Z2-ZE\A+H “Z-ZE-A+-H
Options granted to consultants;
BRYEREzBRE:
-on 11 February 2010 41,900,000 11 February 2010 to 10 August 2010 11 August 2010 to 11 February 2020 HK$1.18
-RZE-ZE-A+-H “T-T5ZR+-HE “Z-ZF)\A+-BZE 118%7T
“E-ZF)/\ATH “Z-ZTE-A+-H
Options granted to a director:
BRYER2BIRE:
-on 16 January 2012 2,000,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK$0.60
-RZE-Z£-A1H ZZ-ZE-ftREZE ZE-=F-Rt+ARBE 0.60%7T
—Z2-=%-A+1H “Z-t¥-At+EHA
Options granted to employees:
BRYEEZBIRE:
-on 16 January 2012 11,960,000 16 January 2012 to 15 January 2013 16 January 2013 to 15 January 2017 HK0.60
-RZZ-—F-A1KE “E-"F-Rt+REE “E-Z5-ATRBEE 0.60E 7
—Z-=f-A+HAH “Z—t5-A+hA
Total share options outstanding 66,032,000

HRITEERESH
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URiEREBROHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

0

(Continued)

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2013
had exercise price ranging from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18
(2012: from HK$0.6 to HK$1.18) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 5.6 years (2012:
6.5 years).

The options granted on 11 February 2010 expire ten
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2013, 2,572,000 of 52,072,000 options (2012:
2,572,000 of 52,072,000 options) were exercisable
in the same year of the date of grant with 50% each
of the options granted exercisable at six months and
at the end of the year from the date of grant and
49,500,000 of 52,072,000 options (2012: 49,500,000
of 52,072,000 options) are exercisable over five years
from the date of grant, with 20% each of the options
granted exercisable at six months and first calendar
date of following four years from the date of grant.

The options granted on 16 January 2012 expire 5
years from the date of grant. As at 31 December
2013, all of the 10,480,000 unexpired and
unexercised share options (2012: nil) granted on 16
January 2012 were exercisable.

% (#&)

)

(%)

RZE—=F+=-_A=+—8M4H
RITEZ BRAE 2 TEBEN T0.6
BILENNSB L (ZE—ZF:
0.6 T 21188 7T) @ Ik F 5
T A ERAS6FE(—E——
F:65%F)

WER-_ZT—FTF_-_A+—H
FHEREERTDBH+TF
BREB - R_ZT—=ZF+_A
=+—H"’52,072,0001) B& B
®Erh 22,572,000 (Z&E——
% 52,072,000 BB e EP 2
2,572,000 ) A R H A HZ
FE17E BFH B RS E
AERFREANZFITFES0%ZE
B BB B - 52,072,00017 B B
REh 249,500,000 (=& ——
& 52,072,000 BB B EP 2
49,500,00017 ) A] AT (1 A HR B 5T
HERTTE - B A B E
AERBEENFEEE B S1T
#20% 2 B H B AE -

RZE——F— A+ BEEHN
EREARLBHEFEERER-
R-F—=F+-_A=+—8"
RZEBE——F—A+BELEHN
10,480,00017 7 i i M 4 R 1T
BREREHAEATITIHE(ZE
——F 1 F)o
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. UERiERERHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions

(i)

Granted to director and employees

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on the Binomial
Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the
share option is used as an input into this model.

5 (#)

(k) BREZLFERRERR

(i)

RFEERES

REB AR L BREMES
ZIRB 2z AT ESERERE
etz NFEAS - ERE
Ptz st 2 FHER — BN
HIEEBRAGE - BhE
ZARMFR/AENZ —I8
BAZH-

2012
—E——F
Fair value of share options Net=2 B HERE 2 A FE HK$0.04
at measurement date 0.04%8 7T
Share price (B HK$0.23
02357t
Exercise price IR E HK$0.60
0.06/87T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted ~— F&HA R 18 (LA — T8 = HA4E
average volatility used in the modelling EERXAKAN
under Binomial Option Pricing Model) DN 1R 08 ) 50.23%
Option life (expressed as weighted average  B& A% 4 G HA (LA — 1B = HAME
life used in the modelling under the EERENXAHKAN 5 years
Binomial Option Pricing Model) ngEF9EER) 5%
Expected dividends TEEARR B -
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange £ [& & FI| &
Fund Notes) (RBINEE S FIR) 0.85%

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on public available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.
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40. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 40. URiEREBROHEERZE
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(k) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

(i)

Granted to consultants

The fair value for share options granted is
measured using the market-based approach,
by reference to the discounted cash flows
to estimate the fair value of the professional
fees that should have been paid. The value
was developed by discounting future cash
flows from the services to be provided by the
consultants, taking into account the uniqueness
of the services provided by the consultants, the
historical monthly payments to similar services
provided by the consultants and the service
period, along with other out of pocket expenses.

Up to 31 December 2013, 41,900,000 share
options under the Share Option Scheme are
granted by the Company to the consultants
of the Group which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for an aggregate of 41,900,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the capital of
the Company with an exercise price of HK$1.18
per share during the exercisable period from 11
August 2010 to 11 February 2020.

% (#&)

(k) BREZAFERRR ()

(i)

RTEH

X R 2 A AT E
RTSEREGE AKS
ZHRRERENEES
NZEXEBRZAFE-B
B2 EZBERRHRE
ZBEE - B P IR R L
RE 2 B 28 AN KR
HIR AR H BRI - /B
PR B A5 B RE M 2 AR
Bz ARREZRERL -

HE-_ZT—=%+_A
=+—H ARFEMRAE
[ 7 8 [ 2 11 41,900,0001%
BT EITE T 2 BB
ZEHEBRERTERBA
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €8st R FIER ($8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group's accounting policies

Consolidation of an entity in which the Group
does not hold any equity interests

The Group does not hold any ownership interests
in the entity, HLV Duc Hoa. However, based on the
terms of the Contract under which HLV Duc Hoa was
established, the Group receives substantially all of
the returns related to HLV Duc Hoa's operations and
net assets and has the current ability to direct HLV
Duc Hoa's activities that most significantly affect the
returns. The directors of the Company considered that
the Group has maintained de facto control in HLV
Duc Hoa and the Group continues to report it as a
subsidiary.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €& RFIET (#8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period. Non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in
an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains allowance for doubtful
debts based on evaluation of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables, where applicable,
at the end of each reporting period. The
estimates are based on the ageing of the trade
and other receivable balances and the historical
write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the
financial condition of the debtors were to
deteriorate, additional impairment allowance
might be required.

(b) HFFFABERRZEEZRIT
(%&)

(i)

(ii)
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. ®iH{&st R¥IER ()

ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iii) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

If circumstances indicate that the investments in
subsidiaries may not be recoverable, investments
in subsidiaries may be considered impaired,
and an impairment loss may be recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36, Impairment of
Assets. The carrying amount of investments
in subsidiaries is reviewed periodically in order
to assess whether the recoverable amount
has declined below the carrying amount.
The asset is tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the recorded carrying amount may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has
occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the fair value less cost of disposal
and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely
estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for investments in subsidiaries are not
readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the
investments in subsidiaries are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgment relating to level of sales volume,
tariffs and amount of operating costs of the
subsidiaries. The Company uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of sale volume, tariffs and amount of
operating costs of the subsidiaries.
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €& RFIET (#8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b) FHstAHBRZZEERIE
(Continued) (#8)

(iv) Net realisable value of inventories and (iv) FEREMBZRETHA

development and formation costs of graves
Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion
and estimated cost necessary to make the
sale. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

The Group writes down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value based on assessment of the realisability
of development and formation costs of graves
which takes into account cost to completion
based on management’s experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market
conditions. If there is an increase in cost to
completion or a decrease in net sales value,
the net realisable value will decrease which
may result in writing down development and
formation costs of graves to net realisable
value. Write-downs are recorded where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, the carrying
value of development and formation costs of
graves is adjusted in the period in which such
estimate is changed.
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41. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 41. €8st R FIER ($8)
ESTIMATES (Continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation and amortisation

The management reviews the estimated useful
lives of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation and amortisation
charge for the year.

This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of assets
of similar nature and functions and taking into
account anticipated technological changes.
The depreciation and amortisation expenses
for future periods are adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
income taxes in Hong Kong, the PRC, Vietnam
and Taiwan. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current tax and
deferred tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.

(vii) Price of funeral services deeds

The Group determines the pricing of the
funeral services deeds by adding a margin to
the estimated cost of delivering funerals, after
taking into account of major factors including
instruction of the Deed Holders.

This estimate is based on the sub-contracting
fee payable to the sub-contractor for each
funeral service deed performed, the current
market condition and the price of deeds from
sub-contractors. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 42. R&8F_—_ZT—=F+—_A

NEW STANDARDS AND =+—HUEFEERHKER
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET REMZIERT HMEARRE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 ZARERE
DECEMBER 2013
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEREWBWMERT2H BB
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new MASEEBATREE_ZT—=F
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective TZA=T—HBLEFERRER2E
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have not AR R R B AR F
been adopted in these financial statements. TR NERAR
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to ERBBRE  AAMBREER
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle? EREFTA “E-SFE-TC-F
BH 2 F 8 BUE?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to ERUB®RE  BHERBEREER
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle® ERNEETA —E—fE-%-=f%
BE FE s
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments? BEMBRE SRIR
B F95%
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® ERMERE EEERTREY
R 145
Amendments to Mandatory Effective Date of ERUEKRE  ABUBREERZEIRL
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 HKFRS 9 and Transition ERIE9H R Bl ERA SR
Disclosures? ARMBRE BENEE
ERIETH
EHES
Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Investment Entities’ ERRBRE REEE
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 KR 105%
BAIBERE
RAENHRR
B g ES

ENLiA TR
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42. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2013 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions®

Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are
finalised.

4 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements

beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2014.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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